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The Group recorded revenue of RMB858.9 million for the Reporting
Period, representing a decrease of RMB237.2 million, or 21.6%
as compared to RMB1,096.1 million in 2015. This was mainly due
to the decrease in sales of Human Albumin Solution of RMB153.7
million, as the Group encountered a temporary plunge of supply and
the Group’s decision to adjust its sales management strategy during
the Reporting Period. Though the supply has returned to normal
during the fourth quarter, several batches of orders were still under
importation procedures by the end of the Reporting Period.

Gross profit of the Group decreased by 31.4% to RMB104.6 million
for the Reporting Period (2015: RMB152.5 million). This was mainly
due to the decrease in sales volume and the increase in average unit
cost of sales as a result of the depreciation of RMB against USD.

Net profit of the Group further decreased by 73.6% to RMB18.3
million for the Reporting Period (2015: RMB69.4 million), primarily
due to the increase in marketing and promotion expenses and
professional consulting fee.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased by 72.1% to

RMB19.4 million for the Reporting Period (2015: RMB69.6 million).

Basic earnings per share amounted to RMB0.013 for the Reporting
Period (2015: RMB0.058).
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to our
Shareholders for their attention and support to the Company, and present
the report of the Group for the Reporting Period.

2016, the first year of the “13th Five-Year Plan” and the “Development
Plan for Healthy China”, is also an important year when the
pharmaceutical industry deepened its reform in an all-round manner.
Multiple policies were rolled out for the industry in a concentrated way,
including centralized public bidding in drug purchasing on provincial
level, control of medical expenses within the acceptable range of medical
insurance, secondary bargaining, two-invoice system, reform of new
medicine registration, verification of clinical trial data, quality consistency
evaluation for generic drugs, and production process verification. Given
the concentration of policies and an increasingly stringent regulatory
environment, the Chinese pharmaceutical industry is believed to face a
high-pressure policy environment, which would hardly change within
the short term. Consequently, Chinese pharmaceutical firms were under
tremendous operational pressure for business adjustment.

Nevertheless, 2016 is also a crucial year for the emergence of the
entire Chinese pharmaceutical industry. The demand of pharmaceutical
consumption in China was boosted by higher resident income, upgrade
of consumption structure, faster growth of aging population and
urbanization, the progress of the Healthy China strategy, and a more
robust system of medical insurance, all driving the swift expansion of the
Chinese medical market. During the “13th Five-Year Plan” period, the
Chinese government is to lay its emphasis on enhancing the economies
of scale and innovative capacity of the pharmaceutical industry and
comprehensively improving product quality and the supply assurance
system. This will facilitate the pharmaceutical industry in its long-term and
sustained development.

For the Group, 2016 is a year full of pressure and challenges. Amidst
the changes to domestic and foreign economic situations and policy
environment, we were consistent in controlling risks and seeking
opportunities out of uncertainties. We were active in adapting to new
policies and a new market environment, with efforts to maintain the
market share of our existing product portfolio and build a stronger
marketing network. Still, the Group’s results were subject to serious
impacts by a pharmaceutical industry under adjustment and operational
pressure. During the Reporting Period, revenue from sales was RMB858.9
million, decreasing by 21.6% as compared with 2015; profit for the year
was RMB18.3 million, representing a year-on-year decline of 73.6%.
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Chairman'’s Statement (Continued)
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Since its establishment, the Group has been focusing on the Chinese
pharmaceutical market with intensive and meticulous efforts, providing
comprehensive marketing, promotion and channel management
("MPCM") services for small and medium-sized overseas pharmaceutical
manufacturers which lack independent marketing capacity. Following
years of practice and development, the Group’s marketing network has
gained a certain scale. Based on its full understanding of the Chinese
pharmaceutical market, the Group actively adjusts its models of internal
management and product sales in response to market and policy changes.
During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to build its marketing
network with greater efforts. The Group obtained the 100% equity
interest in Qingdao Ruichi Pharmaceuticals Company Limited (“Qingdao
Ruichi”) by way of equity acquisition. As an important move for the
Group to further improve its MPCM services, the acquisition has not only
enriched the Group's existing product portfolio, but materialized its layout
strategy of establishing a marketing sub-center in East China, so as to
consolidate and expand the Group’s market in Northern China.

The Group’s product portfolio covers multiple therapeutic areas, such
as blood products, anti-infectives and products for digestive and
cardiovascular systems. As a long-term partner with Octapharma (a global
leading manufacturer of blood products), the Group will remain firm in
developing blood products as a core area of business and continue the
close cooperation with Octapharma, with efforts to provide more MPCM
services for its Human Albumin and to explore new opportunities of
product cooperation with Octapharma.

While continuing to develop its system of internal control and risk
management, the Group also paid significant attention to its corporate
social responsibilities and practised them during the Group’s governance
over the Reporting Period. With that in mind, | am pleased to announce
the Group's first publication of an Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") report in this year’s annual report.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank
our Shareholders, customers and partners for their trust and support
during the year, and all the employees of the Group for their hard work
and contribution. We will seize the market opportunities brought by
the transformation and upgrade of the pharmaceutical industry. The
Group will continue with blood products as its core products, expand its
marketing network by optimizing the product portfolio, and continuously
improve the competitiveness, in an effort to create maximum value for the
Shareholders, customers and other stakeholders.

Huang Xiangbin
Chairman

27 March, 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B W& DA

Business review

The Chinese pharmaceutical industry relies heavily on policies. Any
minor adjustment of policies and regulations would invariably have a
major impact upon relevant businesses in the industry. In recent years,
the pharmaceutical industry has experienced the gradual tightening
of its policies, with expenses control, anti-corruption and industrial
standards emerging as the focuses of the pharmaceutical reform. As
a critical year for pharmaceutical reform, 2016 saw new policies rolled
out frequently, in relation to pharmaceutical manufacturing, circulation,
delivery and administration, with stricter standards imposed on the
management of pharmaceutical companies, pharmaceutical circulation
and quality inspection. The new policies and stricter standards spurred
positive industrial competition, and played a significant influence
on the pharmaceutical industry. Given multiple changes in market
environment and policies, pharmaceutical companies were confronted by
unprecedented challenges in respect of production and operation, and
the enormous pressure on sales and profit margins.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has been active in adjusting and
reforming its sales model, to adapt to the changes to economic situations
and policies from home and abroad which led to a temporary decline of
sales volume. Meanwhile, the Group also suffered from the depreciation
of RMB against USD, which led to increase in the purchase cost, and
unstable product supply caused by the supplier’s transformation and
upgrade of production lines. As a result, the Group’s overall operating
results were affected significantly. During the Reporting Period, the Group
recorded a revenue of RMB858.9 million (2015: RMB1,096.1 million),
representing a year-on-year decrease of 21.6%. Net profit amounted to
RMB18.3 million (2015: RMB69.4 million), representing a year-on-year
decrease of 73.6%. Without the impact of one-off listing expenses and
share option amortisation expenses, the adjusted net profit registered a
year-on-year decline of 48.4% to RMB35.8 million, compared with last
year.

Facing the pressure and challenge, during the Reporting Period, the
Group sustained its stable partnership with Octapharma, which is a
global leading manufacturer of blood products, with a firm grasp of the
fast development of domestic blood product industry; the Group also
continued to develop its marketing network with intensive and meticulous
efforts, to improve the ability of providing MPCM services for small and
medium-sized overseas pharmaceutical manufacturers. Meanwhile, we
applied our international vision and accurate judgment of the Chinese
pharmaceutical market to continue our exploration and introduction of
quality products, in a bid to expand our product portfolio.
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1. Enriching and Optimizing Our Product Portfolio

The Group’s existing product portfolio encompasses many quality
products by small and medium-sized overseas pharmaceutical
manufacturers, covering multiple therapeutic areas such as
anti-infectives, blood products, and products for digestive and
cardiovascular systems. Included in such products are blood products
(which are in short supply in the Chinese market) and prescription
drugs which can meet the huge demand for high-quality drugs with
excellent clinical results among medical institutions and patients.

Human Albumin Solution

Dating back to the early 1940s, blood products have undergone
decades of fast development. Such products have grown from
Human Albumin at the very beginning to the current 20-plus
categories in three series, encompassing such sub-categories as
Human Albumin, immune globulin and blood coagulation factors.
Across the world, governments and members of the public have
paid growing attention to the safety of blood products, with
tightened government supervision of the blood product industry.
Such attention and supervision, coupled with corporate mergers
and acquisitions, has resulted in a decline of the number of foreign
businesses of blood products from more than 100 to around 20
at present. Given the approval granted to new indications and
an improved rate of diagnosis, the Plasma Protein Therapeutics
Association (PPTA) predicts that the market demand for blood
products will retain a high-speed growth around the globe. As
to the Chinese industry of blood products, production licensing
and the establishment of plasma collection stations are subject to
strict control by government regulators, which has resulted in the
relatively slow improvement in the amount of plasma collection and
production capacity, compared with the fast growth of demand.
Since the second half of 2015, the removal of restrictions on blood
product price has led Chinese provinces to successively include
blood products in the catalogue of categories for price negotiation
and launch online procurement programs for such products. Price
renegotiations have led to the price increase of various blood
products.

Manufactured by Octapharma, which is a global leading
manufacturer of blood products and included as a Category B
product in the National Reimbursement Drug List (NRDL), the Human
Albumin Solution operated by the Group is used to treat the shock
caused by hypovolemia, remove edema and poisonous substances,
and treat neonatal hyper-bilirubinemia. As the exclusive service
provider of Octapharma Human Albumin Solution for 24 Chinese

. . SR u (H Y o=
1 0 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
o o
O o)o

LENELERES

AEERBERESBRESRBEI /BRI
BAENBEER RENBRLEY  MRE
fn OBERS - DIE RGFZER A - &
FEmMEBEETEMS L HA B mA R
an o IR R BEEE - BESNERAMR
FH - mEEENEMANRRFERONET B o

AL A ZEATEE

& R G TR0 440 FE R ) » (BT F R
RRERE - EMRECHEVNANREHEE
FAMBEY - RREQMEMEFESIREA
F20%ERE - BN ABEANRTMRERE
MRHRLZEMENEREETEIES - SEBF
HIMRERITEMEFTE LN - N ESEZM
BFEHEME - EIMNDRE R E D HERRE 100
ZRBIEBAIN20RELH © BEEFHEEE
MEMFZ e RMES - BBRNREDSEHRE
(PPTATERTAR PR 2B IMR L G T 35 5 KD i IR
B RRE - mPEERNNMEERITE
AR A EE B 1) 78 R MR s R A I 2 B BT S
EPIMEIREIL - BRI E A EEMEE N
R PRIEROFRDALE - B2015F
TEFLR - BEEMREREEHFE  2E84
PEEBMRBBMAAHZERERSITRBE
EEEREIER  BAETEE  SIREMAN
BB TRRENRT -

AEEKLEMANAERISREHR2RMBER
mEBZ —MRBERFHEBARAE - AVaER
MAEEESI RN - HRKEMBESHE -
MERSEARMES  EREKXEREHIRE
e ERRRFHRIBAMNAEZEAISHRERE
24(84E - MREARWBRRBHER - K&
BRER T AMAEAISHRESE BEBIZTE

Annual Report 2016



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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provinces, municipalities and autonomous regions, the Group has
ensured a reasonable price increase of Human Albumin Solution
during the tendering process in each province, in a bid to lay a good
market foundation for the sales of Human Albumin Solution. In
the meantime, the Group raised the sales price of Human Albumin
Solution over the Reporting Period. Based on its sound judgment of
the trend in the blood product industry, the Group took the initiative
to extend the sales of Human Albumin Solution to provinces which
had yet to start price adjustment for the product, in addition
to the supply of Human Albumin Solution in provinces where
such price adjustment is completed. The extension aims to both
boost the market share of the product and its market penetration
continuously. However, the comprehensive transformation and
upgrade of production lines by suppliers resulted in a temporary
plunge of supply of Octapharma Human Albumin Solution during
the Reporting Period; Though the supply has returned to normal
during the fourth quarter, several batches of orders were still
under importation procedures by the end of the Reporting Period.
Meanwhile, the Group adjusted its sales strategy in an attempt to
reduce reliance on its major suppliers which resulted in a decrease
in sales volume by 27.5% as compared with last year, with revenue
amounting to RMB514.3 million which represented a decline of
23.0% as compared with last year.

Axetine (Cefuroxime Sodium for injection)

In April 2011, the Ministry of Health, PRC, issued the 2011 National
Rectification Plan for the Clinical Application of Antibacterial Agents
(QONMF2BEMEEYRIAERRIEREREETZ)). Since then,
a slew of tightening policies had been rolled out across the country,
to restrain the use of antibacterial agents. Such restriction remained
one of the most influential policies in the pharmaceutical industry in
2016, with the antibacterial-agent market under the restrictions of
both general hospitals and primary medical institutions. In addition,
all the categories in the catalogue of antibacterial agents were
subject to strict management in respect of the dynamic management
of the supply catalogue of antibacterial agents, their procurement
and doctor’s prescriptions. As such, the market of antibacterial
agents was confronted with serious, unprecedented challenges.

Manufactured by Medochemie Ltd. from Cyprus, the Axetine
operated by the Group is among the second generation of
cephalosporin antibiotics. Axetine is used to treat bacterial infections,
including respiratory infection, urinary tract infection, and skin and
soft tissue infections. The product has been included in the National
Catalogue of Essential Pharmaceuticals and the Category A product
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of NRDL. Affected by multiple factors such as macro-economy,
pharmaceutical environment and industrial policies, antibacterial
agents are exposed to the acceleration of downside risks. Against
the backdrop of the control of medical expenses and the “Order of
Restraining the Use of Antibacterial Agents”, the tendering prices
have dropped in some provinces, with a certain impact upon the
current sales of Axetine. Nonetheless, the product serves as a major
anti-infection medicine domestically, owing to its high adherence
and safety. Years of brand building and marketing network
expansion have established Axetine as a product of good reputation
and brand recognition in China. During the Reporting Period, the
Group highlighted a differentiated approach on Axetine, with
continuous efforts to increase its market penetration. As a result,
the Group maintained steady sales of Axetine, and realized revenue
of RMB244.9 million, representing a decrease of 5.0% as compared
with last year.

Medocef (Cefoperazone Sodium for injection)

Also manufactured by Medochemie Ltd. and operated by the
Group, Medocef is among the third generation of cephalosporin
antibiotics. The product is used to treat bacterial infections caused
by sensitive lactamase, including respiratory infection, urinary tract
infection, biliary tract infection, abdominal infection, skin and soft
tissue infections, pelvic infection and septicemia; the product is
also effective in treating the brain infections caused by influenza
and meningococcus. During the Reporting Period, due to tightened
policies and the unstable supply caused by pharmaceutical plants,
revenue from the sales of Medocef amounted to RMB26.3 million
during the Reporting Period, representing a decrease of 55.0% as
compared with last year.

Trifamox IBL (Amoxicillin Sodium and Sulbactam Sodium for
injection)

The Trifamox IBL is a new product introduced by the end of 2016.
Manufactured by Bago from Argentina, Trifamox IBL is a classic
compound preparation of penicillin-amidase inhibitors, and an
imported original product recommended by the relevant guideline
for the empirical treatment of community acquired pneumonia (CAP)
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of children. Characteristic of an extensive antibacterial range, a great
effect of enzyme inhibition, safety and reliability, Trifamox IBL is a
top choice of empirical medication in the early-stage antibacterial
treatment of community-acquired infection and nosocomial
infection. The product is used to treat the respiratory infection, skin
and soft tissue infections, pelvic infection, urinary system infection,
oral cavity infection and severe systemic infection caused by B-
lactamase generating bacteria resistant to beta—lactam antibiotics
and cephalosporin. During the Reporting Period, the Group was in
the transfer process with its existing product market, and planned
to further boost the sales of Trifamox IBL by leveraging the Group’s
mature sales network of antibiotics. However, during the Reporting
Period, revenue from the sales of Trifamox IBL amounted to RMBO0.9
million, due to its short time of introduction, its nature of “restricted
medication”, and tightened policies.

Taurolite (Tauroursodeoxycholic acid capsule)

Manufactured by Bruschettini S.r.l. from ltaly, the Taurolite operated
by the Group is used to dissolve cholelithiasis. Overseas clinical
tests revealed that Taurolite yielded good clinical results in treating
cholestasis liver disease and primary biliary cholangitis and could
be used to treat cholelithiasis recurrence after surgery. As the 3rd
generation cholic-acid drug with an exclusive brand market in
China, Taurolite enjoys advantages such as higher water-binding
capacity, greater safety and bioavailability, better solubility and
quicker effect. The product serves as a stone-dissolving drug to
replace ursodeoxycholic acid. During the Reporting Period, the
Group, through constant communication and training, helped its
agents to gain positive understanding of the Group's sales strategies
and provide active cooperation on developing hospital clients and
building the brand, all in line with the Company’s product promotion
strategies. The Group further promoted gallstone indications and
hosted academic conferences to educate doctors, to further expand
Taurolite’s market coverage. Still, affected by a weak market
foundation and the control of pharmaceutical expenses, revenue
from the sales of Taurolite amounted to RMB63.1 million during the
Reporting Period, representing a decrease of 28.4% as compared
with last year.

Esafosfina (Fructose 1, 6-diphosphate for injection)

Manufactured by Biomedica Foscama Group S.p.A. from
Italy, the Esafosfina operated by the Group is used to treat
hypophosphatemia, chronic alcohol poisoning, long-term
malnutrition, chronic respiratory failure and other chronic diseases.
The product also serves as a supplementary therapeutic drug for
angina, heart failure, heart attack and acute myocardial congestion.
With its role in treating cardiovascular diseases, the product is
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included as a Category B product of NRDL. Fructose diphosphate
is one of the top three cardiovascular medicines in China, while
Esafosfina is the only imported diphosphate medicine in the Chinese
market. During a new round of tendering for medicine procurement,
the Group ensured that the online price of Esafosfina was
competitive against the domestic categories in the tendering process
of each province, in a bid to lay a good market foundation for the
sales of Esafosfina. Affected by centralized provincial tendering and
procurement and the limited progress in developing hospital clients
during the Reporting Period, the sales results of Esafosfina were not
prominent after its price increase; revenue from the sales of Esafosfina
amounted to RMB9.4 million, representing a decrease of 13.8% as
compared with last year.

TAD (Reduced Glutathione for injection)

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not receive the renewed
registration certificate for imported medicine of TAD, which
prevented the Group from the effective sales and seriously affected
the market share of the product. Hence, considering the product’s
small market, the uncertain timeframe of certificate renewal and
the need to optimize its product portfolio, the Group agreed to
cease the distribution agreement of TAD with Trendful Development
Limited, an independent third party with a compensation of RMB1.7
million and hence caused a loss of RMB1.4 million.

Marketing Network Development

Apart from the continuous enrichment and optimization of its
product portfolio, the Group is committed to sustaining its marketing
network expansion, with continuous enhancement of distributor
management as one key development strategy of the Group. The
Group provides its marketing service through its internal teams and
their cooperation with third-party promoters.

In the first half of 2016, the Group restructured its business and
established product divisions, to further its effort to build a more
professional internal team and conduct precision management of
its third-party promoters. The Group boosted its marketing business
structure through internal coordination and recruitment of external
talents, with each division equipped with managers in charge of
sales, commerce, finance, customer service and products. Each
division formulates marketing strategies centered on its product line,
provides overall management for the provinces and areas of each
main region, and further segments the market of each provincial
and area. The Group implemented a pilot marketing program,
to promote its products among hospitals and carry out academic
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promotion activities within the pilot scope, help build model
hospitals and boost the brand recognition of the Group’s products,
as well as provide marketing for evidence-based medical learning. In
respect of building its sales team, the Group continuously enhanced
relevant training and performance appraisal for its in-service staff,
committing efforts to improve the team’s capability of academic
promotion and expand its scale, in order to build an outstanding
team for more product promotion and market expansion plans in
the future.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had an internal marketing
team of more than 60 members.

In areas beyond the pilot marketing program, marketing is
completed through the cooperation between the Group's internal
teams and third-party promoters. Each division has overhauled the
existing distributor network of products, with work to engage, train
and supervise third-party promoters and eliminate distributors who
fail to comply with national policies and requirements and adapt to
the Company’s development strategies and objectives. To ensure the
quality of its marketing network, the Group has taken the initiative
to optimize its sales channels by exploring excellent third-party
promoters from respective areas to carry out marketing in non-pilot
scheme areas. The move is to fully capitalize on such promoters’
experience in different areas, continuously provide targeted
product sales and promotion to more hospitals, and expand market
coverage.

In addition, the Group had further improved the direct participation
of its internal marketing team in product marketing activities.
In this regard, approaches include regularly training third-party
promoters on product knowledge, hosting or taking part in medical
or pharmaceutical conferences, symposiums and product seminars
to directly partake in the academic promotion activities of products,
and extend the opinion leadership network for the main therapeutic
areas of products. All the approaches serve to ensure accurate and
timely delivery of product information to doctors. Except for product
promotion, the Group has taken the initiative to invite third-party
promoters from across the country to discuss the major impact of
relevant policies, to increase the added value and attraction of the
Group's training. During the Reporting Period, the Group had 316
distributors in 31 provinces, municipalities and autonomous regions,
covering 1,071 Class-lll hospitals, 1,345 Class-Il hospitals, 434 Class-I
hospitals and over 700 pharmacies and other medical institutions.
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3. Acquisition
On 4 November 2016, the Company has signed an equity transfer
agreement with independent third parties Ms. Dou Yiging and Mr.
Liu Zhengiang; and on 22 December 2016, the Group completed its
acquisition of the entire equity interest in Qingdao Ruichi at a total
consideration of RMB37.7 million.

Qingdao Ruichi is mainly engaged in pharmaceutical import,
distribution and channel management, with close and stable
business ties with multiple overseas pharmaceutical companies.
The core products of Qingdao Ruichi include amoxicillin sodium
and sulbactam sodium for injection (brand name: Trifamox IBL),
triptorelin acetate (brand name: Diphereline) and ginkgo biloba
(brand name: Tanakan), their sales covering the entire market of
China. Qingdao Ruichi has qualifications on the pharmaceutical
operation permit and the operation permits for some Categories Il
and Il medical equipment. By acquiring Qingdao Ruichi, the Group
has further enriched its existing product portfolio and established
its marketing sub-center in East China and further consolidated and
expanded the market in Northeast China. The Group integrates its
MPCM services with Qingdao Ruichi’s national channel management
platform in order to quickly improve the Group’s MPCM services
provided for overseas suppliers and deepen the cooperation with
them. At the same time, Qingdao Ruichi possesses qualification
certificates such as Good Supply Practice (“GSP"”), pharmaceutical
supply permit and medical equipment business license, which create
the condition for the Group to embark on the sales of medical
equipment.

Save as mentioned above, the Company did not hold any material
investments, and there was no material acquisition or disposal of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the Reporting Period.

4. The Cold Chain Storage Facility
Considering its future demand for business expansion and the
significant demand for pharmaceutical cold chains in the storage
and delivery of blood products and bio-products, the Group has
constructed a cold chain facility and research and development base
in Shuangliu District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province. In April 2016,
the State Council promulgated a revised edition of the Regulation
on the Administration of Vaccine Circulation and Injection ({&
R BAIER EREE M) ); in June 2016, China Food and
Drug Administration and the National Health and Family Planning
Commission jointly issued a notice, stipulating that the whole
delivery process of vaccines shall not be separated from cold
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chain control, regular monitoring and temperature recording, to
ensure the quality of vaccines. The new policy has underlined the
determination of regulating the Chinese pharmaceutical industry
and implied that the medical cold chain industry in China has
entered an era of rapid growth. The Group has almost completed
the first phase of its cold chain facility (15,000 square meters),
which can satisfy the Company’s storage demand and provide
better control for the quality and safety of the blood products in
our product portfolio. Additionally, we will be able to provide third
parties with medical cold-chain storage services of high quality, upon
the completion of the second phase (which includes 25,000 square
meters of cold chain storage and 47,000 square meters of research
and development base).

5. Research and Development

The Group has entered into a collaboration agreement with the
China Academy of Chinese Medical Sciences to develop “Sinco 1”,
a realgar-based chemical medicine for treating acute promyelocytic
leukemia. The collaboration aims for the upstream extension of
the Group's business and the future provision of a new medicine
for patients in the therapeutic area. By the end of the Reporting
Period, the Group has attained certain progress in the research and
development of Sinco |, with current efforts to design and build a
pilot plant for pilot experiments. Such experiments are expected
to start in the first half of 2017. During the Reporting Period, the
Group incurred RMB5.1 million as the research and development
expenses for developing Sinco |.

Outlook

Having experienced years of high-speed development, the Chinese
healthcare industry is facing many challenges and undergoing reform
in the short term. Notwithstanding the short-term operating pressure
brought by stringent regulatory requirements promulgated by the PRC
government, it is believed that the Chinese pharmaceutical industry will
be further optimized, with the Chinese population aging at a faster pace,
the indiscriminative implementation of the Second-Child Policy, a rising
average income, and consistently expanding market scale. The reform of
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the Chinese medical system has entered a “deep-water zone” where the
entire medical industry is in a process of adjustment and transformation.
The prospects of Chinese healthcare industry remain bright as the entry
threshold is raised, where businesses that adapt to market reforms will
gain more opportunities and maintain the strength. The Group will stick
to its corporate development strategies of expanding the marketing
network and optimizing the product portfolio, maintaining blood products
as the core area of business development, taking the initiative to change
in a harsh environment, and exploring new opportunities for corporate
development, all in an attempt to grow bigger and stronger.

In respect of expanding its marketing network, the Group will continue
its active search for opportunities to acquire quality regional firms of
pharmaceutical circulation, and deliver the expansion of corporate capital,
operational scale and market share. In addition, the Group will build
its sales team at a faster pace and continuously work on extending its
marketing network, in a bid to contribute a higher profit to the Group
and accommodate more products.

As for optimizing its product portfolio, the Group will remain firm in
developing blood products as its core business and continuing its close
cooperation with Octapharma, with further efforts to increase the market
share of Human Albumin Solution in China and actively seek broader
opportunities for new production cooperation. Moreover, the Group will
actively search for quality overseas products that meet the demand of the
Chinese market and the Group's strategies and policies, coupled by active
efforts to identify opportunities of acquiring quality rights of sale to enrich
the product portfolio.

Apart from the above, the Group will continue to enhance the
development of its internal control system and risk management, pay
much attention to and fulfill its corporate social responsibilities throughout
the Group’s governance. The Group will offer its staff a great platform
for career development, and keep working to create greater value for the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).
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Financial review

Revenue

The Group recorded revenue of RMB858.9 million for the Reporting
Period, representing a decrease of RMB237.2 million, or 21.6% as
compared to RMB1,096.1 million in 2015, mainly due to the decrease
in sales volume of Human Albumin Solution by 27.5%, as the Group
encountered a temporary plunge of supply, and adjusted the sales
management strategy during the Reporting Period. Though the supply
was returned to normal in the fourth quarter of 2016, sales volume was
still not fully recovered by the end of the Reporting Period.

Besides the Human Albumin Solution impact, during the Reporting
Period, in response to the issuance of new pharmaceutical policies and
the change of the market environment, the Group was undertaking
reformations on the business model to adapt to these changes. During
the transition period, our sales performance and revenue were affected to
a certain extent. For details, please refer to “Business Review” part under
Management Discussion and Analysis Section.

Cost of sales

The Group recorded the cost of sales of RMB754.3 million for the
Reporting Period, representing a decrease of RMB189.3 million or 20.1%
as compared to RMB943.6 million in 2015, which was largely in line with
the decrease in revenue.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group's gross profit for the Reporting Period decreased by RMB47.9
million, or 31.4% as compared to 2015. Gross profit margin decreased
from 13.9% in 2015 to 12.2% for the Reporting Period. The fluctuation
could be further analysed as below:

(1) Gross profit margin for sales of Human Albumin Solution decreased
by 0.9% from 12.1% in 2015 to 11.2% in 2016, which was mainly
caused by the increased average unit cost of sales by 7.4% as a
result of the depreciation of RMB against USD. The decline was
partially offset by the increase in average selling price by 6.2%
during the Reporting Period.
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(2) Gross profit margin for sales of Taurolite, TAD and Esafosfina
dropped by 15.3%, primarily due to (i) the decrease in selling price
due to intensive market competition and (i) the increase in average
unit cost of sales. As the amortisation cost of approximately RMB5.0
million per annum in relation to the exclusive distribution right was a
fixed cost, when sales volume decreased, the cost allocated to each
unit increased.

Other income and gains

Other income and gains for the Reporting Period amounted to RMB8.5
million, representing an increase of RMB7.7 million as compared with
2015, primarily due to the increase in (i) foreign exchange gain arising
from net foreign currency assets of RMB4.2 million; (ii) interest income on
an available for sale investment of RMB1.8 million; (iii) government grants
of RMBO0.8 million; and (iv) other one-off income of RMBO0.5 million.

Selling and distribution expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded selling and distribution
expenses of RMB11.5 million, representing an increase of RMB5.8 million
as compared with 2015. The Group's selling and distribution expenses
primarily comprised marketing and promotion expenses, staff costs,
transportation expenses and other daily operation expenses incurred by
sales team. During the Reporting Period, especially in the second half of
2016, in order to further explore marketing network, the Group increased
the expenditure to strengthen marketing development and brand
promotion activities, which led to an increase in marketing and promotion
expenses of RMB5.8 million.

Administrative expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded administrative expenses
of RMB62.4 million, representing an increase of RMB21.9 million
as compared with 2015, primarily due to increase in (i) professional
consultation fee of RMB8.3 million; (ii) daily operation expenses of RMB4.0
million; (iii) listing expenses of RMB3.3 million; (iv) directors’ remuneration
and staff costs of RMB3.3 million; (v) research and development
expenditure of RMB2.0 million; and (vi) share option amortisation expense
of RMB1.0 million.

Other expense

The decrease in other expenses of RMB8.9 million from RMB13.4 million
in 2015 to RMB4.5 million during the Reporting Period was primarily
due to the decline in foreign exchange loss of RMB11.2 million, partially
offset by the increase in (i) bank charges of RMB0.8 million and (ii) loss on
disposal of exclusive distribution right of TAD of RMB1.4 million.
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Finance costs

Finance cost increased by RMB2.1 million to RMB9.2 million as compared
with RMB7.1 million in 2015, reflecting the increase in bank borrowings
during the Reporting Period.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expense decreased by RMB10.0 million, or 58.1% to RMB7.2
million as compared with RMB17.2 million in 2015. The effective income
tax rate increased from 19.8% in 2015 to 28.3% during the Reporting
Period, primarily due to the increase in non-deductible listing expenses
and capital expenditures on tax basis.

Profit for the Reporting Period

As a result of the foregoing, the Group'’s net profit decreased by RMB51.1
million, or 73.6% to RMB18.3 million as compared to RMB69.4 million in
2015. Net profit margin declined to 2.1% for the Reporting Period from
6.3% for year 2015.

Inventories

Inventory balances increased by RMB91.0 million to RMB137.6 million
as of 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: RMB46.6 million). The
significant increase was mainly due to (i) the increase in Human Albumin
Solution by RMB45.8 million, which just completed customs clearance
procedures by the end of the Reporting Period; and (ii) the addition
of inventory balance from the acquired subsidiary — Qingdao Ruichi of
RMB43.2 million. To ensure timely delivery of pharmaceutical products,
Qingdao Ruichi needs to keep the inventory balance equivalent to sales
volume of two to three months. Due to the impact of sales volume
decrease and inventory balance increase, the Group's average inventory
turnover days increased from 28 days for the year ended 31 December
2015 to 45 days for the Reporting Period.

Bills and trade receivables

Bills receivable decreased by RMB69.1 million to RMB8.1 million as of 31
December 2016 (31 December 2015: RMB77.2 million), because most of
the prepayments from our customers were made by cash deposits by the
end of the Reporting Period.

Trade receivable balance of RMB11.8 million as of 31 December 2016
was all related to the business of Qingdao Ruichi, which provide a credit
period ranging from 30 to 60 days to its customers. Average bills and
trade receivable turnover days increased slightly from 19 days for the year
ended 31 December 2015 to 21 days for the Reporting Period, mainly
reflecting the impact of Qingdao Ruichi acquisition.
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Based on the invoice date, all trade receivables of the Group as of 31
December 2016 were aged within 2 month and were neither past due or
impaired.

Trade payables

Trade payables decreased by RMB17.0 million to RMB45.8 million as of
31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: RMB62.8 million), due to the
settlement of letters of credit by the end of Reporting Period, partially
offset by the addition of RMB40.1 million from Qingdao Ruichi. The
acquisition of Qingdao Ruichi also led to an increase in trade payable
turnover days from 16 days for the year ended 31 December 2015 to 26
days for the Reporting Period.

Payments in advance
Payments in advance increased by RMB30.5 million to RMB99.9 million as
of 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: RMB69.4 million), primarily
due to the settlement of progress billings in relation to the construction of
cold chain storage facility.

Goodwill

Goodwill increased by RMB23.1 million to RMB58.6 million as of 31
December 2016 (31 December 2015: RMB35.5 million), representing
the goodwill acquired through business combination of Qingdao Ruichi.
Details has been discussed in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis — Business Review — 3. Acquisition” in this announcement.

Available for sale investment

The balance as of 31 December 2016 represented a one-year fund of
HK$120.0 million (equivalent to RMB103.5 million), namely William
Merger and Acquisition Fund No. 9 (the “Fund”) issued by Shenzhen
City William Financial Holding Limited, an independent third party, on 13
July 2016. As of 31 December 2016, the Group’s Fund with a carrying
amount of HK$124.4 million (equivalent to RMB111.3 million) (2015:
not applicable) was measured at fair value. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 13 July 2016 for further details.

Bank borrowings and gearing ratio

As of 31 December 2016, the Group’s interest-bearing bank loans
amounted to RMB165 million (31 December 2015: RMB81.9 million), all
of which were repayable within one year. The Group’s gearing ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by the sum of total equity and net debt,
with net debt equal to interest-bearing bank loans minus cash equivalents.
As of 31 December 2016, the Group’s gearing ratio was 12.1% (31
December 2015: 18.4%,).
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Liquidity and capital resources RBEETRERRKR

The Group's primary uses of cash are to fund working capital and other
recurring expenses, payment for capital expenditure and to service
indebtedness. During the Reporting Period, the Group funded its cash
requirements principally from cash generated from operations and funds
raised from global offerings and bank borrowings.

The following table is a condensed summary of the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows for the Reporting Period:

AEENReTEMERNEEED  INEMER
WS - XNERNERMEEER - RREHA -
AEFRTEFREEEHELNREUAREHREER
RITEFBENESBNARENREFR -

TERR/BAEERFHANGEEHESRERNEAR
&

2016 2015

20165 2015%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREETTT

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities KBRS (BT IRE E5E (29,903) 46,196
Net cash used in investing activities B EBFTRIRE R (206,206) (53,664)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities BETEEE(FTR) RS F5E8 321,921 (3,068)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents IR& MBS EHEYILHN, () F58 85,812 (10,536)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EXREE)TE 8,061 526
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year F¥R & MR EEY 60,206 70,216
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FREGMESEEY 154,079 60,206

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s net cash used in operating
activities was RMB29.9 million as compared to net cash from operating
activities of RMB46.2 million in 2015. This was mainly due to the decrease
in sales volume and payment of share issue expenses in relation to existing
shares of RMB35.4 million.

Net cash used in investing activities

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s net cash used in investing
activities was RMB206.2 million as compared to net cash used in investing
activities of RMB53.7 million in 2015. This was mainly due to (i) the
purchase of an available for sale investment of RMB105.5 million; (ii)
payment for acquisition of Chengdu Hengsheng Ziguang Pharmaceutical
Technology Co., Ltd. and its wholly-owned subsidiary, namely, Linzhi
Ziguang (“Linzhi Ziguang Group”) of RMB27.0 million and (iii) net cash
used in acquisition of Qingdao Ruichi of RMB32.7 million.
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Net cash from/(used in) financing activities

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s net cash from financing activities
was RMB321.9 million as compared to net cash used in financing activities
of RMB3.1 million in 2015. This was mainly due to (i) gross proceeds from
issuance of shares of RMB277.8 million, and (ii) net proceeds from bank
loans of RMB83.1 million; partially offset by the payment of (i) share issue
expenses in relation to new shares of RMB25.2 million (ii) interest paid for
bank loans of RMB9.2 million, and (iii) interim dividend of RMB4.6 million.

The Group's cash and bank balances at the end of the Reporting Period
can be further analysed as follows:

RESEEFATE(FTR)REFE

RBEHA - AEERBRETHERSFEAAR
#6321.98 BT - M2015FMRt B /a8 FMAR & 558
ABARBINEET - L hEZHR)BETRGFTER
BREARK2778EHEIT » R(NIRITERATEHIEA
FEARMESIANEBILATE - D KB @I RD
BN ETHIARE25 288 ¢ (VT EITER
FIEARB2EE T » RiiVFHAREARKIAE
TLATS A EIB Y o

Rk - AEENES RBITABTE— S DI
T -

2016 2015

20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREETFTT

Denominated in RMB A REEEHE 100,945 32,683
Denominated in US$ AZETTEHE 36,467 27,062
Denominated in HK$ LA TTEHE 16,251 113
Denominated in Euro LABRTTEHE 416 348
154,079 60,206

Foreign currency risk

The Group's purchase of products from the overseas suppliers is
denominated in US$ and Euro. Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB, except for certain items of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank balances, other receivables, available-for-sale
investments, prepayments and trade payables that are denominated in
US$, Euro and HKS$.

The Group does not enter into any hedging transactions to manage the
potential fluctuation in foreign currencies. Management monitors the
Group's foreign currency exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure when the need arises.
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Capital expenditure BEARRE
The following table sets out the Group’s capital expenditure for the  TEREHF|FHEHANAEFENEARFL ¢
Reporting Period:
2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFIT
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and BEWE  BERERER
intangible assets mREE 42,780 31,664
Acquisition of subsidiaries W EEHT B A ) 59,688 8,000
Acquisition of non-controlling interests of a BERAREEE-—RMNB AT
subsidiary from then shareholders R FEIE AR - 14,000
102,468 53,664
Indebtedness &%

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of the  IATAXREE @A ERREHARENE LRI
Reporting Period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as  FEYFIEAE R ¢

follows:
2016
20164
Less than 3to
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
RERE PR=EA =Z=+=MEA B
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT AR®TRT AR%®TR AR®Tx
Interest-bearing bank loans FFERITER - 10,092 158,623 168,715
Trade payables H 5 ENRIE - 45,832 - 45,832
Other payables Hib et FoE 926 2,755 54,362 58,043
926 58,679 212,985 272,590
0

A\l
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2015
20154
Less than 3to
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
REXRE JIR=Z@EA =ZE=+—_f@A “REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFRT ARBTT ARETT
Interest-bearing bank loans FHERITER - 17,773 67,153 84,926
Trade payables H 5 EMNFIA - 62,793 - 62,793
Other payables H b fE 708 697 2,728 51,349 54,774
697 83,294 118,502 202,493
Contingent liabilities HAREE

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as of 31 December 2016.

Pledge of assets

As of 31 December 2016, the Group's buildings with net carrying amount
of RMB76.1 million (2015: RMB77.1 million) were pledged to secure
certain bank borrowings, and the Group’s bank balance of RMB52.0
million (2015: RMB22.1 million) were pledged for issuance of letters of
credit for the purchase of pharmaceutical products.

Dividend
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
Reporting Period.

Employee and remuneration policy

As of 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 141 employees. For
the Reporting Period, the total staff costs of the Group was RMB12.8
million as compared to RMB9.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2015.

The Group’s employee remuneration policy is determined by factors such
as remuneration in respect of the local market, the overall remuneration
standard in the industry, the inflation level, corporate operating efficiency
and employee performance. The Group conducts performance appraisals
once every year for its employees, the results of which are applied in
annual salary reviews and promotional assessments. Annual bonuses of
the Group’s employees are determined based on certain performance
criteria and appraisals results. Social insurance contributions are made
by the Group for its PRC employees in accordance with the relevant PRC
regulations.
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The Group also provides continuous learning and training programs to
its employees to enhance their skills and knowledge, so as to maintain
their competitiveness and improve customer service. The Group did not
experience any major difficulties in recruitment, nor did it experience
any material loss in manpower or suffer from any material labor dispute
during the Reporting Period.

In addition, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) to recognise the contribution by certain employees of
the Group, and to provide them with incentives in order to retain them
for the continuing operation and development of the Group.

Risk management

The followings are summary of principal risks and uncertainties identified
by the Company which may have material and adverse impact on
our performance or operation. There may be other principal risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not known to
the Company or which may not be material now but could turn out to be
material in the future.

o Failure to maintain relationships with existing suppliers — The Group
currently sources all the products in portfolio from limited suppliers,
either directly or indirectly through their sales agents.

o Exchange rate fluctuation — The Group’s purchase of products
from the overseas suppliers is denominated in US$ and Euro, and
certain items of bank balances and available-for-sale investments are
denominated in US$, Euro and HKS.

° Decrease in gross profits due to increase in cost and competition.

o Experience prolonged delays or significant disruptions to the supply
of the products.

The Company believes that risk management is essential to the Group's
efficient and effective operation. The Company’s management assists the
Board in evaluating material risk exposure existing in the Group’s business,
and participates in formulating appropriate risk management and internal
control measures, and to ensure its implementation in daily operational
management.
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Relationship with key stakeholders

Human resources is one of the most important assets of the Group.
The Group strives to motivate its employees by providing them with a
clear career path as well as comprehensive and professional training
courses. The Group conducts an internal satisfaction survey every year
and considers carefully employees’ feedback on operating efficiency
and harmony working environment. In addition, the Group also offers
competitive remuneration packages to its employees, including basic
salary, certain benefits and other performance-based incentives.

The Group purchases pharmaceutical products from overseas suppliers,
either directly or indirectly through their sales agents, and generates
revenue by on-selling them to the distributors. The suppliers or their sales
agents have granted the Group rights to market, promote and manage
sales channels for their products in China. The Group maintains a stable
and long-term relationship with suppliers by providing them access to the
growing Chinese market with steady sales growth.

The Group sells pharmaceutical products to distributors, who on-sell
the products to hospitals and pharmacies either directly or indirectly
through their sub-distributors. The Group maintains stable and long-term
relationship with the distributors by providing guidance, training and
support to the distributors to carry out more targeted field marketing and
promotion activities.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is primarily engaged in MPCM services for imported
pharmaceutical products, a line of business that does not have material
impact on the environment. The key environmental impacts from the
Group's operation are related to electricity, water and paper consumption.
The Group is fully aware of the importance of sustainable environmental
development, and has implemented a number of measures to encourage
environmental protection and energy conservation. Please refer to the
section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” for
details.

During the Reporting Period, we did not incur any material cost of
compliance with applicable environmental laws and regulations.

Compliance with laws and regulations

Our business and operations are subject to related laws and regulations
of the Cayman Islands, the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong and the PRC.
During the Reporting Period, we have complied with all related laws and
regulations of the Cayman Islands, the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong
and the PRC, which would have significant impact on the Group.
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Basis of Preparation

The Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the "ESG Guide”), Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules.

Scope of Reporting

The data and information cited in the Report are referenced from the
archived questionnaires, records, statistics and research of the Company.
The Report covers an information period that spans from 1 January 2016
to 31 December 2016, exactly the financial year covered by the 2016
annual report of the Company.

The Report encompasses the information of the Company and all its
subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”.

Contact

Should you have any query or feedback on the Report, please contact us

via the following methods:

e Address: E5-1805, Global Center, 1700 Tianfu Avenue North, Hi-
tech Industrial Development Zone, Chengdu City, Sichuan
Province

o Tel: +86 28 62912988

° Fax: +86 28 62912922

o Email: sinco-pharm@sinco-pharm.cn

o Official website: http://www.sinco-pharm.com
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Overview

As a leading provider of MPCM services in the Chinese pharmaceutical
industry, the Group provides MPCM services for small and medium-sized
overseas pharmaceutical manufacturers which lack independent marketing
capacity in the Chinese market. Experienced and insightful of the Chinese
pharmaceutical market, our management team selects prospective
products through a stringent and effective screening procedure, to drive
the development of the Chinese pharmaceutical import market. By far,
the Group's product portfolio is composed of blood products, antibiotics,
and other pharmaceutical imports that enjoy high-speed growth or a
sizable market.

Core Values

Constant in pursuing pharmaceutical products and technical services
of supreme quality, the Group aspires to become a top partner for
overseas pharmaceutical businesses who intend to enter the Chinese
pharmaceutical market. Sticking to its core values “Simplicity, Innovation,
National, Collaboration, and Openness”, the Group wishes to deliver
good corporate governance and fulfill its environmental and social
responsibilities, to realize sustainable development and promote the
harmony and common prosperity with the investors, staff, suppliers,
distributors, governments, communities, financial institutions and other
stakeholders.

Stakeholder Identification and Communication

The Group pays much attention to its stakeholders’ expectation of
environment and social responsibilities. Through continuous development,
the Group seeks to further improve its internal control system and
corporate governance structure. Based on national laws and regulations,
industrial regulations and the governance framework of a listed company,
the Group communicates with its stakeholders through multiple channels,
in an effort to safeguard their legal rights, establish trustworthy relations,
and jointly push forward corporate development in a continuous and
healthy manner.
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Significant Subjects for Stakeholders and Response

EmAE KBTS

REER [0 R

Type of Stakeholders
EEAER

Focus

BEEH

Means of Communication

EREBEAR

Response and Feedback

gRrENE

Shareholders/Investors

Continuous, stable investment
returns

Timely information disclosure

Corporate operation in
compliance with laws and
regulations

Annual reports, interim reports and
announcements

General meetings

Roadshows/telephone conferences/
meet-and-greets

Media communication mechanism

Press conferences

Opinion monitoring

Consultation via telephone/email/
website

Investor visits

Publishing AGM notices and
resolutions according to
regulations

Timely disclosing corporate
information

Publishing disclosure
announcements and regular
reports according to regulations

REEE FHERB T HIRE @ FERE FHRERAE 1RAR B IR A F RS BAME
RESH(E Bk EE H&%K@ =
BRHNTRES R EEEREREE REHBEARES
ﬁ%‘é%}%L%é%‘J RRERBAENEM RS
mEEmE
EISELA|
BB, HBuER
REERKN
Staff Training and career Direct communication Providing a healthy and safe work
development Performance appraisal environment
Remuneration and benefits Medical checkups Establishing a fair mechanism for
Health and safety Training programmes promotion
Staff opinion surveys Organizing staff activities
Safety management
8T BRI B R BEAR RHERE 22N ITHERE
HH et A BHERZ BN T HE T
RS S gim BB TS
BRI
BIERENA
ZEER
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Type of Stakeholders
EEAER

Focus

BEEH

Means of Communication

EFREBEAR

Response and Feedback

gRrENE

Suppliers

HAER

Standard supplier
management and purchase
process

Timely performance of
contracts

Corporate reputation

CLI S e ]
BT A R
pgEe

Execution of orders/contracts
Direct communication
Supplier management system
Supplier archives

A1 ARBT
BHEER
HERERENE
Y AEIEES

Performing contracts as agreed

Maintaining long-term
collaboration with outstanding
suppliers

Timely payment

Ensuring pharmaceutical quality
and safety

Keeping complete supplier archives

BOBETER

HESHERRERPEIE

R FR

HEREMEEL R

R HERER

Distributors

A robust process of customer
service

A complete mechanism of
information communication

A stable and safe supply of
pharmaceutical products

Timely response to requests

Daily communication
Aftersales service

Customer satisfaction surveys
Customer archives

Visits to distributors

Enhancing quality management
Performing contracts as agreed
Providing distributors with
pharmaceutical knowledge
training and marketing support
Sufficient communication

K HHR 2 E S RETIE HE &R hnREEER
FTERIE SIS ERR% BHEITER
IBE - REWERMHE BERmEERE A SH PR A B AR B D2 8
FFSRE) K By [B1 BPIESR HEE S FE
28, EH Eapapsiil
Governments/ Corporate operation in Government visits Strict complying with laws and
Communities compliance with laws and  Participation in government regulations

regulations
Contributing to community
development

meetings and regular visits
Government projects
Community service

Enhancing safety management
Actively assuming social
responsibility

Bt BRHAPRES W28 EE BRI PERER
Bt @ R WP S EHFS ez e
EFER B A EL g BT
I AR
Financial Institutions Good corporate credit, and Financial reports and Timely repayment of loans
stable capability of loan announcements Maintaining good cooperative
repayment Visits relations
Stable corporate development Direct communication
D RIS RIFHBEER - BEN BmE R NS RISERE R
EERE 28 EE R¥F RIFHEERI R
BT EER HEBR
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Key Stakeholder Activities in 2016
Shareholders/Investors

Our Company's investor relations department is responsible for relaying
the opinions and requests of our investors. Institutional investors and
other minority investors can make their opinions and requests via email,
telephone and website message service. Our investor relations department
would provide one-on-one communication with individual investors,
attend overseas brokerage meetings, and hold roadshows/reverse
roadshows from time to time;

Our internal audit department is responsible for reviewing the financial
conditions and internal control of the Company and all its subsidiaries,
communicate with department managers and senior management on the
identified problems, non-compliance issues and inadequacies, and jointly
prepare rectification and improvement solutions. The department also
follows such rectification results, and reports to the Internal Control and
Corporate Governance Committee and the Audit Committee.

The Group has formulated an information disclosure system in accordance
with relevant laws and regulations, to ensure the identification and
confidentiality of potential inside information until it was disclosed
according to the Listing Rules in a consistent and timely manner.

In 2016, the Company held 5 board meetings and 1 general meeting; the
investor relations department received the visit from 2 large groups of
investors, and hosted 17 one-on-one investor meetings and 6 telephone
conferences with investors.

Staff
The Group has actively safeguarded staff rights and interests, contributed
to social insurances for its staff members, and ensured their entitlement to
such benefits as statutory holidays; the Group has also provided its staff
with a safe work environment and precluded potential risks on health and
safety;

The Group encourages the staff to improve occupational capability and
enrich knowledge through training programmes and self learning;

In 2016, the Group organized more than 20 group activities, 1 medical
checkup, 1 satisfaction survey, 1 fire emergency response and evacuation
drill, 2 group tours, and an average of over 15 hours of internal and
external training for the staff.
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Suppliers

The Group has established a robust supplier management system and
complete supplier archives; to standardize the purchase process, the
Group has formulated the standardization documents targeting the
purchase business of each type of pharmaceutical products;

The Group has established a good mechanism for its communication with
suppliers and provided them with the market updates and sales data of
products, so that the suppliers can adjust their purchase and production
plans accordingly;

In 2016, the Group appraised its suppliers according to the Appraisal
Measures for Suppliers, to ensure that the Group selected quality suppliers
for cooperation. Meanwhile, the Group has enhanced its information
security, with relevant internal regulations formulated and an intranet
system in place for managing information security, to ensure such security
for the suppliers.

Distributors
Our sales personnel pay regular visits to our customers, providing them
with active service support and regular training on product knowledge;

The Group has set up its customer service hotline capable of offering
24-hour service support to the customers. In addition, a multiple-level
complaint process is in place to ensure that the Group can receive and
record customer complaints in detail, with such records to be submitted
to and processed by relevant departments who then give feedback to the
customers;

The Group has established a robust distributor management system and
complete distributor archives, with documents formulated to standardize
the sales business; the Group has also adopted electronic office;

The Group has enhanced its information security, with relevant internal
regulations formulated and an intranet system in place for managing
information security, to ensure such security for the distributors;

In 2016, the Group conducted 1 customer satisfaction survey for its

distributors and organized 16 customer training conferences, 2 distributor
communication conferences and 2 customer appreciation banquets.
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Governments/Communities

The Group was engaged in multiple forms of community service, such as
paying consolation visits to community residents with material difficulties
and undertaking poverty relief work;

In 2016, the Group received 5 visits from competent government
authorities, attended 3 industrial meetings organized by the government,
and arranged a one-on-one poverty relief activity for communities.

Financial Institutions

The Group has formulated an information disclosure system in accordance
with relevant laws and regulations, to ensure the identification and
confidentiality of potential inside information until it was disclosed
according to the Listing Rules in a consistent and timely manner.

Our finance department is responsible for maintaining close
communication with financial institutions so that they fully understand
the Group's corporate credit, loan repayment capability and development
prospects;

In 2016, the Group received more than 50 visits from financial institutions,
and remained in long-term cooperation with over 25 financial institutions
from home and abroad.

Given our continuous expansion, the Group has included sustainable
development into its corporate strategy system, with continuous work to
deliver better management, stronger internal control and active dialogue
and information communication with stakeholders, so that their rights
and interests can be safeguarded to the greatest extent. Furthermore, by
extensive reference to our industrial counterparts’ information disclosure
on sustainable development, the Group has determined the key subjects
for its disclosure of environmental and social responsibilities in the Report,
and carried out targeted work on such responsibilities in 2016.

In 2017, the Group will reassess the key subjects of stakeholders, and

implement our operational objectives and strategic plans, to achieve
sustainable development of our business.
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1. Employment and Labor Practices 1. EERBEIER
1.1 Employment 1.1 E’
The Group strictly complies with the PRC Labor Law, AEBBREBERBRPEARLANBECESH
Employment Promotion Law, Labor Contract Law, Tentative E)CRERER) (BFBERE) (T
Provisions on Salary Payment, Regulations on the Management BXFHEITHRE) (FRABESERK
of Housing Provident Fund, Regulation on the Annual Leave By~ CERBERIED) - (LB R
of Employees, Labor Dispute Mediation and Arbitration Law, L) - CTERBRIEHI) R U #) 25 8D
Regulation on Work-related Injury Insurances, and local labor FERGOIREREET  WASEE THMH
laws and regulation, to employ staff members, contribute BEEATHERBERBEIZRIHEA
to statutory social insurances for them, and ensure their FERBEREM - Btk z o - EEEHIF] T
entitlement to statutory holidays. Furthermore, the Group (CHMERHE) (ETHLEEHE)
has formulated its Remuneration Management System, Staff (B TEEENNFBER RIBAMREES T
Fund Management System, and Staff Reward and Punishment WEFES - AR EEBTINIZZR
Provisions, to improve and ensure staff welfare. In addition to BRARERHA  BILEEMERIRESSE
these systems, our staff members are entitled to such benefits as F o
allowances for transport and missed meals, staff activities and
group tours.
The Group has formulated rigorous recruitment policies and REEE A I AT B R R I EE I R AR
processes, to continuously optimize its human resources TEELEBMANERLEE - &MEE
allocation. As we mainly recruit external talents, the Group FREVE MBI 2 - INsREE A A FR R
works to enhance its cooperation with recruitment agencies, ENeERRNEE  TEYRITNESR
universities and colleges, and establish a good communication e o R - EERA[AZBHEREALLE]
mechanism with these parties. Meanwhile, the Group has set SEEITHEEAREMNATEALR -
up a “Staff Referral Award” to encourage its staff members PRS- FAPERE AL FEth L T 34
to recommend suitable talents to join the Group. Moreover, TRABHEIHEIEEE LAEETE - I
to retain talents, we have provided our staffs of all levels BIEEECGERERHIEVETEREZ
with targeted development and incentive schemes, as well as BETIREEF#E -
staff promotion opportunities through performance appraisal
according to the Group’s Performance Management System.
The Group recruits its staff in strict accordance with its policies 2N 5 B B AR 4R PR 5= 1B B SR RN 1l B R 3
and systems, under which all the job applicants and staff enjoy T REAAEIEENE TREHEN
equal opportunities for employment, with zero tolerance of MERKE  BREHEMARER - F
any discrimination over gender, age, ethnicity, nationality and B - R BUEE - B MBS A EEE
disability. By the end of 2016, the Group had a staff of 141, MEIHNTA - BIE2016FK - AEEE
with a proper gender balance (48.2% being male staff and THBABRINA - BLAIHEE - Bidh
51.8% being female staff). No employment discrimination has Lt D B B48.2%F51.8% @ ANEE KA G
occurred to the Group. HFEREHELE -
8
2016 R . EREEERERAR
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Employment Indicators

EBEEE
Staff by Gender in 2016 Staff by Age in 2016
2016 FETHRIDH 2016 FETFREDM
Number of Staff Number of Staff
BT AH BT A%
80 - 60 58
L 51
70 50k
60
50k 40r
40 - 30
23
30 20+
20F ol 9
0 1 J O 1 1 1
[ Male Female 20 to 30 30 to 40 40 to 50 Above 50
= = 20E305%  30Z40p%  40E505%  S0RRMA L

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a staff outflow of 29, representing a demission* rate of 17.1%.

REREEIR - NREEBBE T29A » BEBR*517.1% o

Departed Staff by Gender in 2016 Departed Staff by Age in 2016
2016 FBER B T4 R0 2016 F BB TFRED M
Number of Staff Number of Staff
BT A#H BT A
25 20
16
20
15
15
10F
8
10k 23
5
5 b
1 j
O 1 J O 1 1 1 J
m Male Female 20t030  30t040  40to50  Above 50
B # 20%305% 30405  40Z505% S0 E

Demission rate = Number of staff departed during the Reporting Period/(Total headcount at the end of the Reporting Period + Number of staff
departed during the Reporting Period)

o OBEMR = REHINBEE THGRESMRE T A IREHABRE T8

g
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1.2 Health and Safety

2016 &R

In respect of staff health and safety, the Group strictly complies
with laws and regulations, such as the PRC Labor Law, Fire
Prevention Law, Occupational Health and Safety Management
System, Special Regulation on the Labor Protection of Female
Staff, Measures for the Ascertainment of Work-related Injuries,
and the Regulation on Work-related Injury Insurances. As
a provider of MPCM services for imported pharmaceutical
products, the Group strives to offer its staff a safe work
environment and prevent all potential risks on health and
safety. In 2016, the Group implemented a series of health
management measures, so that its staff members can work in
a safe environment free of occupational hazards:

> On 19 May 2016, the Group provided its staff members
with health and safety training, during which they were
familiarized with the means of escape around the office
area of Global Center and heightened their awareness of
self-rescue and escape in emergencies.

> On 20 May 2016, the Group organized its headquarters
staff for a fire emergency response and evacuation drill,
to boost the staff’s awareness of safety and precaution,
self-rescue ability and the ability of responding to fire
emergencies.

Site of Fire Drills S5 &R %5
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> The Group pays much attention to the health of its staff
members, providing them with regular medical checkups
at professional institutions each year. At the same time,
the Group organized regular outdoor sports activities,
such as badminton, swimming and running, for its staff
members, in a bid to help them maintain a healthy habit
for work and life.

> The Group has placed a large number of plants at the
office area of its headquarters, to improve the staff’s
work environment. In addition, each year, the Group
engaged professional cleaning companies to clean,
sterilize and maintain its air conditioning systems, carpets
and other office facilities.

During the Reporting Period, the Group incurred no work-
related fatalities among its staff; nor did any staff lose any
work days due to work-related injuries.

1.3 Development and Training
To improve the quality and professional techniques of
staff members, explore their potential and ensure effective
implementation of staff training schemes, the Group has
formulated a detailed Management Measures for Staff Training
and an integrated system and implementation process that
encompass induction, internal training and external training:

> Induction
New recruits are introduced to the general knowledge
of the Group, such as corporate culture, product
knowledge, basic internal control system and process, the
work process of the department concerned, and details
of the work position.

> Internal Training

Based on the actual demands at work, the Group applies
its internal training resources to the communication on
professional knowledge and skills, to share experience.
Such training takes place in the form of self-learning
with shared training materials on the Group’s online
office platform, and discussions at regular departmental
meetings, communication sessions for business teams
and inter-departmental sharing sessions.
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> External Training
The Group encourages its staff members to improve their
professional techniques and, given their efficient work
arrangement, attend training and policy seminars hosted
by external institutions.

The Group has also formulated its Internal Lecturer
Management Measures, to the extent that knowledge and
experience can be shared and inherited within the Group.
More than that, the Group seeks to establish and develop an
excellent lecturer team to provide more efficient and effective
training. In the beginning of each year, the human resources
department formulates an annual training scheme according to
the Group's strategic planning and the actual demand of each
department, prepares training curricular and course content by
the quarter, and incorporates the execution and feedback of
such training schemes into the performance appraisal system.

The Group encourages its staff to communicate with the
management and department leaders, so that staff members
can play a more active role, care for corporate development
and demonstrate greater synergy and creativity. By soliciting
constructive suggestions, the Group is able to identify
corporate management issues, promote inter-departmental
cooperation and effective communication, and work out
solutions to such issues.
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1.4 Labor Standards

The Group executes its staff recruitment in strict compliance
with relevant national and local laws and regulations, including
the PRC Labor Law, Law on the Protection of Minors, and
Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labor. The Staff
Manual of the Group also states that no child labor shall be
employed, together with regular monitoring of employment-
related information and data, to ensure no child labor or forced
labor is employed for all the Group’s business.

Training-related Indicators
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2. Operating Practice

2.1

2016 &R

Supply Chain Management

The Group is well aware that effective procurement
management is critical to ensuring stable corporate operation
and the quality and safety of products and services. Given the
complex and lengthy process of procuring pharmaceutical
imports, the Group has tried to standardize its procurement
process by formulating business standardization documents
for the procurement of various pharmaceutical products. Such
documents are based on a single Management Regulation
on the Procurement of Imported Products and with reference
to the regulations of special authorities such as the PRC
General Administration of Customs, Entry-Exit Inspection and
Quarantine Bureau, and China Food and Drug Administration
(CFDA). More than that, the Group has established a robust
communication mechanism with its suppliers, offering them the
market updates and sales data of products so that the suppliers
can adjust their procurement and sales plans accordingly.

The Group enters into long-term cooperation agreements
with its suppliers through sales agents directly or indirectly.
Under such agreements, the suppliers or their sales agents
grant to the Group the MPCM right in China. Meanwhile, the
Group selects suppliers based on a comprehensive range of
considerations, including product compliance, brand influence,
strategic synergy with the Group’s development, and the sales
prospects in the Chinese market. Furthermore, the Group
regularly appraises its suppliers according to the Appraisal
Measures for Suppliers, to ensure the selection of quality
suppliers for cooperation. Currently, the Group’s suppliers are
mainly small and medium-sized pharmaceutical manufacturers
from overseas countries such as ltaly, Austria and Cyprus.

In addition, the Group continuously enhances its information
security, to protect the privacy of its suppliers and keep their
information confidential. Within the Group, a management
system has been established for information security, with
targeted security strategies for the business network, office
network, servers, computer room management and controlled
visits, all to ensure the information security of the suppliers.
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2.2 Product Responsibility

As an MPCM service provider in the pharmaceutical industry,
the Group operates the products that are all prescription
drugs. To ensure product quality and safety, the Group strictly
complies with the PRC Pharmaceutical Administration Law
and its Implementation Regulations, Good Supply Practice
for Pharmaceutical Products and its Implementation Rules, as
well as other national laws and regulations on product safety.
In addition to its law compliance, the Group has established
a robust system for managing pharmaceutical quality, with
active cooperation with the regulators in their inspections.
Meanwhile, convinced that the entire staff should participate
in quality management, the Group provides internal training
on the knowledge of safety and quality, promotes the policies,
systems and concepts of quality management in an all-round
manner, and educates the staff accordingly.

The Group operates a product mix composed of quality
pharmaceutical imports with an outstanding track record
of safety. Since pharmaceutical products require meticulous
storage conditions, the Group remains its choice of
creditworthy third parties of long-term partnership to provide
warehousing and logistics services. Apart from that, we have
built our cold chain storage facility with advanced temperature-
control technology and a precision system of quality control in
Shuangliu District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province. After obtaining
a land use right certificate to put the facility into operation,
the Group will be more capable of controlling pharmaceutical
safety and quality.

The Group has established a robust process of quality assurance
and procedure of product recall, with strict execution of such
regulations as the Management Regulation on Pharmaceutical
Product Procurement, the Management Regulation on
Pharmaceutical Product Reception, the Management
Regulation on Pharmaceutical Product Acceptance, and the
Management Regulation on Pharmaceutical Product Return, so
that operation can take place in standard processes to ensure
product quality and safety. The Group protects the security and
privacy of its customer information, according to its Distributor
Management Measures, Sales Management System and the
Code of Conduct on Customer Servicing.
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The Group has no corresponding measures for advertising
and labeling, because all its products are prescription drugs
which are prohibited from advertising according to national
regulations, and because CFDA issues the permit on product
packaging and specifications.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not recall any
product due to product quality issues.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not receive any
complaints about its products and services. All the products are
examined by the Institute for Drug Control after their customs
clearance, with an examination report of pharmaceutical
imports issued.

2.3 Anti-corruption

The Group advocates honesty, integrity and responsibility as
its ethical concepts and code of conduct, opposes any form
of corrupt behavior, such as bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering. Hence, the Group has formulated its Anti-
corruption and Anti-bribery Management Regulations and
its Staff Code of Conduct against Corruption and Bribery,
according to laws, relations and the actual industrial condition.
Furthermore, the Group has signed an Anti-corruption and
Anti-bribery Letter of Undertaking with its staff and partners,
included relevant regulations into the staff induction system,
and set up a mailbox for reporting internal non-compliance
behaviors, all in an aim to raise the anti-corruption awareness
among the staff. During the Reporting Period, the Group
hosted one Special Symposium on Pharmaceutical Distribution
Compliance, Anti-corruption and Anti-bribery under the “Two-
invoice System” for the distributors. During their induction,
new recruits receive the training lectures on business reception,
reimbursement, and other practices against corruption and
commercial briberies. In the meantime, special anti-corruption
and anti-bribery training has taken place across the Group,
with cases to illustrate its regulations. Such training aims to
ensure anti-corruption and anti-bribery work carried out in
every department and at every level.
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As for senior management and key posts, the Group hosted
regular staff discussions and training courses, in an effort
to effectively prevent bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering:

> In April 2016, all the staff members attended an anti-
corruption discussion meeting where they learn the anti-
corruption measures of the Group, and study and carry
out anti-corruption and anti-bribery work. The discussion
meeting also aims to urge the Group to have stronger
financial regulation and further improve staff conduct at
work.

> In October 2016, the Group offered special anti-
corruption and anti-bribery training, with cases to
illustrate the regulations of Sinco Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics, so as to further bolster the clean
governance of the Group and its staff.

During the Reporting Period, no case of corruption, extortion,
fraud and money laundering occurred to the Group, with
confirmation that it strictly complied with relevant laws and
regulations such as the PRC Criminal Law and its Judicial
Interpretation, Criminal Procedure law and its Judicial
Interpretation, Interpretation on Several Issues Concerning the
Applicable Laws to Handling Criminal Cases of Embezzlement
and Bribery, and Anti-Money Laundering Law.
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3. Community
Community interest remains a dominant consideration for the Group
in its business development. Not only does it stresses establishing
harmonious and win-win relations with its community stakeholders,
the Group also has active participation in community activities,
to fully understand community demands and ensure community
interest fully incorporated into the Group’s business development.

> Community Activities

The Group takes concrete action to perform its social
responsibility, care for the needy in communities, and actively
join in communities activities. On 11 November 2016, the
CPC Branch of the Group hosted an activity named “Helping
the Needy with Small Wishes” at Zhengjie Community.
With multiple times of pair communication there, the
Group has attained sufficient understanding of the wishes
of the needy. The consolation activities have strengthened
the communication and ties with the residents of Zhengjie
Community, and facilitated such pair relief work with joint
efforts.

> Group Activities

While respecting and safeguarding the rights and interests of
all staff members, the Group is also attentive to their physical
and mental health, and committed to create a beneficial work
environment and a harmonious work atmosphere for them.
To do that, the Group has hosted diverse activities, such as
annual gatherings, birthday parties, departmental activities and
group tours, during which staff members can relax and balance
work with life. This also makes the Group a more cohesive
community.
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In 2016, the Group sent its staff on a tour to Lake Baikal, as a
break from busy work and daily routines to enjoy a holiday tour
of recreation and experience with Mother Nature. That aside,
the Group also hosted multiple birthday parties for its staff, to
better the communication and understanding between them
and immerse them in the care from the Group.
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A Tour to Lake Baikal 849 B hiE8# k% E &)

> Advocating a Healthy Lifestyle

Committed to helping its staff to work and live healthily and
promote mass fitness, the Group organizes sports activities
monthly, such as running, swimming, ball games for the
staff members, encouraging them and their families to stay
healthy through active participation. In 2016, the Group
successively hosted a variety of sports events, such as Jincheng
Lake Running, Swimming through Summer and Badminton
Invitation Tournament. In these activities, the staff saw their
willpower and team spirit improved, their awareness boosted as
to the importance of cooperation, communication and mutual
encouragement, and their motivation stimulated for all-round
growth and progress.

Scenes of Sports Activities & 4525 EEHIRI5
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Environmental RIR
1. Emissions 1. BB
The Group operates all its business in strict compliance with the PRC AEBEELESBEGHRERET(PFEARR
Environmental Protection Law, Law on the Prevention and Control of MEIRIBREE) - (PEARLRBIKS A
Water Pollution, Law on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric E) (REARBEMBEARISRIFAE)  (hEE
Pollution, and Law on the Prevention and Control of Pollution from ARHAMBIRIB IR T AAENVAREMIRE
Environmental Noise, as well as other laws and regulations on REENFEHEESR - YERITREBRENS
environmental protection. The Group also commits concrete action ¥ o
to perform its obligations of environmental protection.
The Group is mainly engaged in the MPCM of pharmaceutical ARAEETENEEOERNEN - HEKE
imports, such business normally causing no environmental impact. EREEIE  ZEEE - RTEHIRBERKY
Besides, the Group has not formulated any regulations concerning 2 MEAEEEHFEEREPNMEHARA
hazardous wastes, since it consumes no natural gas, coal gas or T EREEEEERRERS B TELEMEE
other fuels of direct combustion and generates and discharges WREBEEREZEY RN ARGGTHEEEZEREEY
no large amounts of hazardous wastes during its daily operation. HENEESE - AEFNHEREERENE
Instead, the Group’s emissions mainly comprise the exhaust of BT EEMAERIEN - EEBRREFBEBEMS
all its vehicles, the greenhouse gases indirectly emitted during its IBERAE AN R BE - AR EEEREE
operation, and such non-hazardous wastes as scrap paper, plastics ) o
and house refuse.
Major Emissions Indicators FEHRDIERE
Emissions of Vehicle Exhaust Unit  Emissions in 2016 HRBERER Bl 2016FEHHE
NO, Emissions Kilogram 203.5 RELIINO Y E T 203.5
SO, Emissions Kilogram 0.2 ZEAEHR(SOVHEE = 0.2
Particles Emissions Kilogram 18.1 SR EEE F5 18.1
Total Kilogram 221.8 45 T 221.8
CO2 Emissions Unit Emissions in 2016 bt -2 (@172'374 B 2016FHHE
AEELH =S
Emissions From Electricity Consumption  Tonne 107.0 HHEE 7 107.0
FURMEEN ALK
Emissions From Flights Tonne 145.5 HgmEs i 1455
BIEFEREEN SR
Emissions From Processing Scrap Paper ~ Tonne 5.7 gmEE T 5.7
BIESKEEM Z Ak
Emissions From Processing Sewage Tonne 0.6 gMEE e 0.6
Total Tonne 258.7 A i 258.7
0
2016 3R FERA T IRBR AR
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During the Reporting Period, the Group has almost completed
the development of its cold chain facility (Phase 1) in Shuangliu
District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province. The facility is yet to be put
into operation, since the application of its land use right certificate
is still under processing. The Group stores the construction wastes
generated during its project construction in a centralized manner,
and regularly hands such wastes over to the constructor for
processing. During its operation, the Group generates only a small
amount of scrap paper and house refuse, which leaves no material
impact on the environment. Such non-hazardous wastes are
transported by local property management and civic departments to
refuse depots for processing.

Resource Consumption

Environmental protection is a basic social responsibility for all
businesses. All along, the Group has been an active advocator of
energy saving and emissions reduction. During its daily operation,
the Group actively reduces its consumption of energy and other
resources, to mitigate the environmental impact of its operation. The
Group has formulated the following policies for effective resource
consumption:

> Promoting Paperless Office
During its office operation, the Group completes all its
applications and approvals through an electronic office
platform, in a bid to reduce paper consumption.

> Encouraging Low-carbon Commuting
Not only does the Group encourage its staff to commute on
public transport facilities, it also considers emission reduction
as a priority when purchasing company cars, to cut exhaust
emissions. Meanwhile, the Group has also formulated robust
systems for approving car use and managing air tickets.
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> Reasonable Energy Consumption > ABEFIHEE
The administrative department of the Group checks the use of AEETHEAMBEEGARSERZED
electrical appliance each day, to avoid excessive consumption FABR  BEEKBERE - AfEHT
of electricity. The Group also calculates the consumption of AEHBEGK - B - R FERAEBR - &
water, electricity and paper on a monthly basis, with analysis of HHEASEEAFRJETHONERRA -
abnormal consumption to find out the cause.
Indicators of Energy and Water Consumption BUIR MK BRI EFEHEIR
Energy Consumption Unit Consumption in 2016 HRHREE B  2016FHFEE
Total Electricity Consumption Kilowatt Per Hour 112.7 BIEEE TT R 112.7
Total Gasoline Consumption Tonne 15.8 FRERSE 7 15.8
Total Energy Consumption of TATERER
Standard Coal Tonne 37.1 HREEs M8 37.1
Total Water Consumption Cubic Meter 1,393.2 EFEKE SR 1,393.2

During its operation, the Group only consumes the water from
municipal supply. Given its small consumption of water, the
Group has no problem of obtaining appropriate water sources;
nor does it has any plan or policy formulated to raise water
consumption efficiency.

The Group has its suppliers provide all the packaging materials
for its products, with approximately 1.2 tonnes of paper
consumed in 2016.

3. The Environment and Natural Resources

The business of the Group does not cause any material impact on
the environment and natural resources.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Xiangbin (E%£#7), aged 51, founder of our Group, has
been the Chairman and executive Director of our Group since April 2011.
He is also the Co-Chief Executive Officer of the Company and is mainly
responsible for overall strategic planning and operation management. Mr.
Huang has served as the director of Risun, the controlling shareholder
of the Company, and all the subsidiaries of the Company except for
Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical, Chengdu Hengsheng Ziguang, Sinco
Biotechnology, Qingdao Ruichi and Sinco Shanghai. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Huang was the director and chairman of Vast Surplus
since November 2004 up until now, mainly responsible for strategic
planning and operation of Vast Surplus. After Vast Surplus transferred
its exclusive distribution rights to service Taurolite, TAD and Esafosfina
to Hong Kong Prosperous Group Holding Limited in March 2015, it has
no other business operations. Since then, Mr. Huang has been devoting
a majority of his time to our Group’s business. In addition, Mr. Huang
was also a founder, chief executive officer and director of Chengdu
Ruixin Biopharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd (“Ruixin”) from February
2004 to April 2011. The principal business of Ruixin was consultation in
the pharmaceuticals industry, which included testing and sampling new
pharmaceutical products, providing marketing and promotion services
as well as assisting in obtaining regulatory approvals and registrations
for pharmaceutical products. However, the pharmaceutical products
serviced by Ruixin were mainly traditional Chinese medicine extracts,
which are different from those of the pharmaceutical products serviced
by the Group. Ruixin was not engaged in any business which competed
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group's
business. Furthermore, Ruixin was jointly owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang
and 50% by Mr. Chen Xiangui (an independent third party who is not
considered a connected person or associate of a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules (“Independent Third Party”)) and was
never a member of the Group which was readily disposable for corporate
reorganisation solely based on Mr. Huang's decision. Eventually, as the
management of Ruixin began to focus on the business development of
the Group since Mr. Huang incorporated Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals in
2011, Ruixin did not have any business or operations, which subsequently
led to the passing of the shareholders’ resolutions on 22 September 2015
to voluntarily dissolve Ruixin.

Mr. Huang worked in the Drug Inspection Institute of Guangyuan (&
JOT % iR FT) from July 1988 to July 2004 as pharmacist in charge
of drug quality research as well as collection and delivery of drug safety

information.
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Mr. Huang had been a director of Beijing Guangtong Shidai Medical
Consulting Company Limited (“Beijing Guangtong”) (it R E @K E
IS E R AR AR, a limited liability company established in the PRC
in 2003, since its establishment up until 2004. Prior to the revocation
of its business license, Beijing Guangtong was owned as to 50%, 40%
and 10% by Mr. Huang, Mr. You Fei and Mr. You Hao respectively. Both
Mr. You Fei and Mr. You Hao are Independent Third Parties. Mr. Huang
confirmed that at the time of the revocation of the business license
of Beijing Guangtong, he was not involved in the daily operation of
Beijing Guangtong as he was focusing on the development of Ruixin’s
business. To the best of Mr. Huang's knowledge, Beijing Guangtong
had ceased attending annual inspection (% #%) as it had no business
operation, resulting in its business license being revoked subsequently on
26 November 2004. Mr. Huang confirmed that there is no wrongful act
on his part leading to the revocation and he is not aware of any actual or
potential claim that has been or will be made against him as a result of
the revocation.

Mr. Huang obtained a master’s degree in EMBA from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University (E/&3238 K2 in December 2008 and graduated from the
MBA programme of Renmin University (FFE A R AZ2) in August 2002.
He also obtained a bachelor's degree in botanical resources (24 18 ¥ & R)
from Jilin Agriculture University (S # 22 KE) in July 1988. Mr. Huang
has been studying in the Université Paris — Dauphine under the Executive
Doctorate in Business Administration (EDBA) program since December
2013.

Ms. Zhang Zhijie (58 &#E), aged 48, joined our Group in November
2013 and is an executive Director and vice president for technics of our
Company, mainly responsible for new pharmaceuticals research and
development. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Zhang successively served as
a postdoctoral fellow of the research center, an associate chief physician
(starting from July 2013) and a research fellow (starting from December
2014) of the pharmacognosy study center of the Institute of Chinese
Medical Sciences from July 2008 up until now, and was responsible
for the coordination and management of the daily researches of the
pharmaceutical research centre and was also involved in the process of
setting up the pharmaceuticals research centre. Although Ms. Zhang is
concurrently working at the Institute of Chinese Medical Sciences, she is
heavily involved in the Group'’s research and development programme. Ms.
Zhang is leading the Group’s Sinco | programme as a research fellow for
the Institute of Chinese Medical Sciences.
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The Directors are of the view that Ms. Zhang has been and will continue
to be able to allocate sufficient time to fulfill her duties and responsibilities
as an executive Director based on the following reasons: (i) as Ms. Zhang
is responsible for overseeing the Group’s new pharmaceuticals research
and development, her position as a researcher at the Institute of Chinese
Medical Sciences, in particular her involvement in the development of
Sinco |, is directly related to her role as an executive Director. By working as
a researcher at the Institute of Chinese Medical Sciences, Ms. Zhang is, at
the same time, also fulfilling her responsibilities as an executive Director;
(i) to enable Ms. Zhang to allocate sufficient time to carry out her duties
as an executive Director, the Group has assigned four personnel to
assist Ms. Zhang with the development of Sinco | with respect to clinical
trials, patent applications and manufacturing processes, including two
researchers each with over 15 years of experience in the production and
quality control of pharmaceuticals, a researcher with a master’s degree
in clinical pharmacology specialising in the design and implementation
of pharmaceutical testing and a researcher with a bachelor’s degree in
business administration focusing on pharmaceutical laws who is in charge
of drafting reports and registration-related matters; and (iii) Ms. Zhang has
been diligently attending the Board meetings held by the Company since
she was appointed as an executive Director. In the event that Ms. Zhang
is unable to attend a Board meeting in person, according to the Articles
of Association, she is able to participate in such Board meeting by way of
telephone conference.

Ms. Zhang served as the general manager of Zhaoye Bio-Technology
Co., Ltd CKEAMEIHIABR A F]), a subsidiary of Nanjing Xiaoying
Pharmaceuticals Group Co., Ltd (B 5/ NV&sE £ B H R A A)), from July
2006 to October 2008, mainly responsible for new drug research and
development. She has also engaged in national research projects, which
involved contributing to the testing of mineral medicine and its quality
control. Ms. Zhang was the co-editor of two books and published several
research papers in national and international academic journals. Ms.
Zhang has also been awarded Second Prize for Science and Technology by
the China Association of Chinese Medicine in November 2005. Ms. Zhang
obtained her Ph.D degree in June 2006 from Nanjing University of Chinese
Medicine (Fg R B8 %K 22). Ms. Zhang worked as a pharmacist in Henan
Provincial Pingdingshan City Chinese Medicine Hospital (iJgg& I8
FREEB) from September 1990 to August 2003. She obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Chinese medicine from Henan University of Traditional Chinese
Medicine (Al B9 1 £ 22f5) in July 1990.
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Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chow Siu Lui (88/1%), aged 57, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 1 February 2016.

Mr. Chow currently holds or once held directorship in the following

BYEHITES
WNREE  STH - BEZAARRRBYIENITE
£ E20165F2 A 1HBER -

WAERFEENGEEUTEBBRZ LT RAN

companies listed on the HKSE:

BERT

Name of listed company HKEX stock code Position held Period

EHAEER EEXZRHRSR B HAR

Universal Medical Financial & Technical HKEX: 2666 Independent non-executive  From June 2015 to present
Advisory Services Company Limited BB BT : 2666 director 2015F6 R ES

IRTRERE R B B T A A RIS B IR A A BIUNITES

Fullshare Holdings Limited HKEX: 607 Independent non-executive  From December 2013 to

ERIERERAT EBRGM : 607 director present

BUFRITES 201312 &%

Kong Shum Union Property Management HKEX: 8181 Independent non-executive  From February 2015 to
(Holding) Limited BB ST 8181 director October 2015

BRI EMEEREER)BRAR BIYIFMITER 2015%F2 32015410

NWS Holdings Limited HKEX: 659 Independent non-executive  From March 2012 to June

MelREEARAA BEBZ BT 659 director 2012

BYFRITES 2012933 %2012 6

Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) HKEX: 1635 Independent non-executive  From April 2016 to present
Co., Ltd. BEHERZHA 1635 director 2016F4AES

PERBRARFE(KE)RNERRA BUIFHITES

Futong Technology Development Holdings ~ HKEX: 465 Independent non-executive ~ From December 2016 to
Limited BB ST : 465 director present

ERMBBERERARAT BYIFEMTEE 2016512355

Mr. Chow has extensive experience in fund raising and initial public ~ ZPEERBEEER B R AREE TS UARETES

offering activities in Hong Kong, as well as accounting and financial
related areas. From April 2012 to present, he works as a partner in
charge of the private equity team in VMS Investment Group, where he is
responsible for providing advice on issues regarding fund raising, pre-IPO
group restructuring and due diligence exercises for investment projects.
Prior to that, Mr. Chow was with KPMG Hong Kong for about 28 years
until December 2011 and was admitted as one of its partners in 1995.
He was then mainly responsible for IPO advisory services and assisted
companies in fund raising activities in local and overseas stock exchanges.
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Mr. Chow is the chairman of the Mainland Development Strategies
Advisory Panel of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and a member of the Investment Advisory Committee of the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries (“HKICS").

Mr. Chow obtained a professional diploma in accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University (formally known as Hong Kong Polytechnic),
in November 1983. By profession, he is a member of the HKICS and the
HKICPA.

Mr. Wang Qing (JE#&), aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director with effect from 1 February 2016, mainly responsible
for supervising and providing independent judgement to the Board. Mr.
Wang Qing worked at Dalian University of Technology (K:#32 T KE£2)
from April 2003 up until now. Mr. Wang Qing served as an associate
professor when he first joined Dalian University of Technology and was
later promoted to professor in November 2010 and he was responsible
for research and development and teaching. From July 1986 to September
1997, Mr. Wang Qing worked as a pharmacist supervisor at Liaoning
Provincial Medical Company Limited (%4 251 R & £ 7)), where
he was responsible for drugs inspection and evaluation and participated in
research and technical renovation.

Mr. Wang Qing obtained his Ph.D. in treatment therapy system at
Kyushu Institute of Technology (JUM T2 :K£2) in Japan in March 2003
and a master’s degree in treatment therapy system at Kyushu Institute
of Technology in March 2000. Mr. Wang Qing obtained his bachelor’s
degree in medicinal plants at Jilin Agricultural University (5 #7822 K £2) in
July 1986.

Mr. Liu Wenfang (2I323), aged 79, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 1 February 2016, mainly
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgement to the
Board. Prior to joining our Group, from February 2011 to present, he
serves as an independent director of China Biologic Products, Inc. (=24
BB AR AT, a company listed on NASDAQ (stock code: CBPO). From
2007 to 2011, Mr. Liu Wengfang worked as a chief consultant at Sichuan
Yuanda Shuyang Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd (P0)||:& K BB D AR
‘A a]) where he was responsible for research and promoting new theories
and applications in the medical field. From 2000 to 2007, he served as
the chief engineer and director of Hualan Biological Engineering Inc. (&
AW TRRIRHDBR2A7]) where he was responsible for supervising
the manufacturing process and quality management. From May 1998
to May 1999, he served as the chief engineer of Guiyang Qianfeng Bio
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Manufacture Company (Ef5251& 4 MR R B REF A A]) where he was
responsible for research and developing new products. From 1978 to
1988, he worked in the Institute of Blood Transfusion, Chinese Academy
of Medical Sciences ({2 & Bz & M55 FT) and was engaged
in the segregation and purification of blood and protein and research,
development and quality analysis of blood products.

He obtained a bachelor’'s degree majoring in biochemistry from the
Shenyang Institute of Applied Ecology, Chinese Academy of Sciences
(Fh B R} 220 2 5 JE AR AR REAFFFR A7) (formerly known as the Institute of
Forestry and Soil Sciences) in August 1963.

We have entered into service agreements with each of our executive
Directors and have issued letters of appointment to each of our
independent non-executive Directors. The term of each of the service
agreements and letters of appointment with our Directors is three years.

Senior Management

Mr. Hao Jinghui (i85 #&), aged 41, joined our Group in August 2016
and was appointed as the co-chief executive officer of the Company in
the same month. Mr. Hao is responsible for the Group’s overall business
development, operation and management. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Hao successively served as the finance director, vice president and
general manager for pharmaceutical distribution at Cardinal Health
(Shanghai) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. ({54 F/§E 2GR A F]) from
January 2011 to August 2016, mainly responsible for the pharmaceutical
distribution business across the country. From December 2006 to January
2010, he worked for Eli Lilly and Company, first as the executive director
of finance at its Canadian branch, then as the director for financial
planning and purchasing at its Chinese branch (mainly responsible for
financial management). From April 2004 to December 2006, Mr. Hao was
a financial manager at Procter & Gamble Canada, mainly responsible for
financial analysis and planning. Mr. Hao Jinghui obtained the Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from McGill University in Canada in
April 2004, the Dual Bachelor’s Degree in Industry Management and
English from Tianjin University (KEAXZ) in July 1996, the Certified
Management Accountant certificate issued by The Society of Management
Accountants of Canada (Ontario) in 2007, and the Chartered Professional
Accountant certificate issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Ontario in 2014.
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Mr. Li Yifan (Z—1), aged 37, joined our Group in February 2015 and
was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company in June
2015, mainly responsible for the overall financial strategic planning,
internal control system management, and investment and financing
management of the Group. Mr. Li is also the director of Sichuan Sinco
Pharmaceuticals. Mr. Li has over 10 years of experience in accounting
and financial management. Before joining the Company, Mr. Li worked
for China Polymetallic Mining Limited, a company listed on the HKSE
(stock code: 2133) from March 2011 to January 2015, and last served
as the deputy chief financial officer responsible for financial accounting
and management. From February 2005 to February 2011, he successively
served as an auditor of the Shenzhen branch and a senior auditor of
the Chengdu branch of Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP. Mr. Li obtained
a Master of Science in Finance degree from the University of Stirling in
January 2005 and graduated from Southwestern University of Finance
and Economics (FEREBIAEKER) in July 2002 with a bachelor’s degree in
management. He has been a Chinese Certified Public Accountant since
January 2012.

Ms. Wu Yue (R3H), aged 37, joined our Group in December 2014 and
currently holds the position of Vice President for administration and
public affairs of the Group. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Wu served as
a business manager of Baxter Healthcare Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (&
HERHERWE 5 (L8)AMK AR for Southwest China and Northwest
China from October 2014 to December 2014, responsible for business
management. She served as a regional business manager of Jin Bao Shen
Nursing Products (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (£ B EEBEER(LE) AR A
a)) from June 2013 to September 2014, mainly responsible for business
management. Ms. Wu served as a senior regional business manager of
Becton Dickinson Medical Devices (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (Z8:hE& &5 ( £
&) BBR A F]) from November 2008 to June 2013. Ms. Wu worked for
Pfizer Investment Co., Ltd. where she served as a regional manager of
its commercial and retail business department from September 2004 to
October 2008. Ms. Wu received a bachelor’s degree in accounting from
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics (P53 814X K £2) in June
2004.

Mr. Lei Shifeng (F ttt$£), aged 50, joined our Group in July 2016 as the
general manager of Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical and was appointed as
the general manager of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals in October 2016,
mainly responsible for its overall operation and management. Mr. Lei is
also the director of Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical Chengdu Hengsheng
Ziguang and Sinco Biotechnology. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lei
worked for Sichuan Derentang Traditional Chinese Medicine Technology
Co., Ltd. (PU)I1{E{- BRI B RMHARAR]), mainly responsible for
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procurement, manufacturing and quality. From May 2001 to May
2007, he worked as the vice general manager of Chengdu Zhongxin
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (BXEPHRFTELFE AR A F]), mainly responsible
for the overall business operation and management. From July 1988 to
April 2001, he was a manager at Chengdu Traditional Chinese Medicine
Company (&S R ZERT/2AR]), mainly responsible for the procurement
and business operation and management of its branches. Mr. Lei Shifeng
earned his bachelor’s degree from Jilin Agricultural University (S5 & 2
KE) in July 1988 and the Certified Pharmacist qualification in January
2000.

Mr. Yang Yukai (# E5l), aged 38, joined our Group in July 2016 and
was appointed as the Company’s chief officer for marketing and operation
in September 2016, mainly responsible for the sales and marketing of
all the product lines of the Company. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Yang worked as the director of business development at Cardinal Health
(Shanghai) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (5% )88 EEER/AE]), mainly
responsible for developing new business. From May 2003 to September
2005, he was the national business manager of Organon International
(China), mainly responsible for the business management of imported
products across the country. From July 2001 to May 2003, he was a
regional manager of Shanghai Shukang Biotechnology Limited (_F/&£k
FERHAER AR, mainly responsible for regional sales. Mr. Yang Yukai
earned his bachelor’s degree in bioengineering from Nanjing University of
Science and Technology (B IETAE) in June 2001.

Mr. Peng Fei (327), aged 43, joined our Group in April 2011 and was
appointed as the Financial Controller of our Company in June 2015,
mainly responsible for overall finance management. Mr. Peng is also the
director of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals and Qingdao Ruichi. Prior to
joining our Group, Mr. Peng served as the finance manager of Ruixin from
September 2004 to March 2011, responsible for finance management.
Mr. Peng Fei also served as the finance staff of the Third Construction
Section of the Factory Construction Engineering Bureau, the Ministry of
Railway and China Railway Construction Engineering Group North Project
Co., Ltd. (BIBHEBIERFE=T2K FEHEIEREILFTIRERA
al]) from September 1991 to August 2004, mainly responsible for the
company's finance management. Mr. Peng obtained a bachelor’s degree
in accounting from Southwestern University of Finance and Economics
(PR BT 48 KE2) in December 2006. He also obtained the qualification
of Registered Tax Agent issued by Sichuan Provincial Human Resources
Department (P0)1|‘4 AZ5EE) in April 2009, and obtained the license as a
senior accountant from Chengdu Reform Leading Group of Professional
Titles in April 2013.

2016 &R

B8 - 82001458 ZE 200745 7 (LB Ak EBch 7 42 %
BRAFPEFEIELIE T EAF N R EEEKELE
B - 8198847 A E20014F4 A (LB EB T P %5471
AREEE  FEHEEFESRNRRBREFCEER
T - EHERLAEN1988F7 AR EMEEALE
T4 - 2000F 1 BIEBHREBERMER -

BESSLE 3858 0 M2016F7AMALRER - B
2016 F9 AR FE AR AR ZIHESBE 28K
NEFTBEMENIEEMISESE TIE - IMAKRRQA]
Bl BEIAECIHREEE SEEGRAR ¥
BERBE  TEZAERAMEBHEE - B2003F5
AZE2005F9 AT BBMREREGR A TR EER
HiE FTATENESNEERBERIE - 8
200147 AE200345 A X8 LS8 FEREER AR
AR FEAERGPEETE - HBEILERN
200156 AERBERIET RBAEY TIRELZBN -

EREE - 4358 0 B2011F48MARER - 12015
FOAEZTAARNRMERE T BAEEEUE
IR - ZEAENANERAZERSERHNE
F o MARERER - ZHEBE2004F9HAE2011F3
BEARMOTHECE  AEVBEER - EREES
1991F9AE2004F8 A EFHBHEMIIERE =
TRE - P#EETEELFTRERARMBAL
FTEBRERAYMBER - ZEER2006F 12 ARSEA
P ERB ST BB LB - FA2009F4 FEF T
BASBEFMBHBRIBARS - KR2013F4 A E
TMHENEEE MR TR SR

o E?' EHEBEIRARA

59



Director and Senior Management (Continued)

ESNSREEE (&)

)

oo

o Ui

A L

Mr. Li Xianghong (Z# %), aged 32, was appointed as the Deputy
Director of Sales of the Company in June 2015 and has over seven years of
experience in sales and marketing management. Mr. Li joined the Group
in April 2011, mainly responsible for the marketing and promotion of
the pharmaceutical products operated by Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals.
Before joining Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals, Mr. Li served as the sales
manager of Ruixin from July 2009 to March 2011, mainly responsible for
product sales. From May 2007 to May 2009, he was a regional manager
of Jiangsu Chinese Pharmaceutical Technology Development Corporation
(IEr& P B ER T3 R 40 F)), mainly responsible for its management of
sales in the southwest region of the PRC. From April 2006 to April 2007,
Mr. Li was a sales representative of Changzhou Fangyuan Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (FINFEIRLEEHFRAT]), mainly responsible for its management
of regional sales. Mr. Li graduated from Chengdu University of Technology
(AKX #EBIE T AE2) and obtained his degree in numerical control machining
technology in June 2006.

Company Secretary

Ms. Ko Wing Yu (S 5&%4F), was appointed as the joint company secretary
of the Company since April 2015 and has over 10 years of experience of
management in the pharmaceuticals industry.

Before joining the Group, from January 2013 to April 2015, Ms. Ko served
as the general manager of Vast Surplus, and was mainly responsible for
its daily operation. From August 2011 to January 2013, Ms. Ko worked
at Industrial Securities (HK) Financial Holdings Limited (#5% (&%) &
RRIZEAC A BR A A]) as an administrative manager. From October 2002 to
August 2011, Ms. Ko served as the deputy general manager of Vital
Group Holdings Limited (4B EBIERE AR A 7)) (currently known as
CGN Mining Company Limited whose shares are listed on the HKSE (Stock
Code: 1164)). From November 1994 to December 2000, Ms. Ko served
as the general manager of Yinli Foreign Investors Golf Club Company
Limited (3R FISNe = B R BRIBZEEBE PR A 7)), and was mainly responsible
for building the golf course and its daily management and planning. Ms.
Ko holds a bachelor’s degree in Accountancy.

Ms. Wong Sau Ping (E33%) is a joint company secretary of the
Company. Ms. Wong is a senior manager of the Listing Services
Department of TMF Hong Kong Limited (a fellow subsidiary of KCS Hong
Kong Limited). She has over 15 years of experience in the company
secretarial field. Ms. Wong had worked for one of the four largest
international audit firms, where she served large and well-known
companies listed on the HKSE. Ms. Wong holds a bachelor degree in
business administration and a master degree in professional accounting
and information system. She is an associate member of the HKICS and
the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administration in the United
Kingdom.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited ZBEEEMARSHEBEERAEFENAREL 2 KEEX

consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period.

Global Offering

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16 March
2015 as an exempted company with limited liability under the Cayman
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (the “Companies Law”). The
Company'’s shares were listed on the HKSE on 10 March 2016 (the “Listing
Date").

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
Group is principally engaged in the provision of comprehensive marketing,
promotion and channel management service for imported pharmaceutical
products in China. The analysis of the revenue of the principal activities
of the Group during the Reporting Period is set out in the note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Business Review and Results

A review of the business of the Group during the Reporting Period is
provided in “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8 to 28. An
analysis of the Group’s performance during the Reporting Period using
financial key performance indicators is provided in the Financial Highlights
on page 4 of this annual report.

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income on page 99 of this annual report.

Final Dividends
The Directors do not recommend a final dividend for the Reporting Period.

Closure of the Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
23 May 2017 to Friday, 26 May 2017, both days inclusive, in order to
determine the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled to attend
the forthcoming AGM to be held on Friday, 26 May 2017. All transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must
be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 22 May 2017.
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Financial Summary HBEE
A summary of the Group's results, assets, liabilities for the last five — ANEEBETEMNEE 2 %48 BE  BEIHE
financial years are set out on page 4 of this annual report. This summary — SR AREHRFEAE o A B PEKK BT S BTE

does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements. WERH—ZD
Use of Net Proceeds from Listing FHABRIERERR

Net proceeds from the listing of the Company (after deducting AR F FHAERIEZHE(KEHGEHEAS ERAERE
underwriting fee and relevant expenses) amounted to approximately B )415260.0E BET(HHEROARK217.2H
HK$260.0 million (equivalent to approximately RMB217.2 million). As of  #7T) - R20165%12A310 - AR¥K1236BETE
31 December 2016, RMB123.6 million has been utilised in the manner ZEBRAKEEAN AR HEA20165F12 A30H A&
consistent with the allocation set out in the Prospectus and the Company’'s B F{SHRIBRBHAEFEHM A ER -
announcement dated 30 December 2016 regarding the change in use of

e

proceeds.
Utilised Unutilised
Proceeds Proceeds
Proposed as of as of
use of 31 December 31 December
proceeds 2016 2016
20165 20165
12A31H 12A31H
FRGFIER 28/ REA
Uses R BRERZ Fr8RIE Fri8RE
RMB million RMB million RMB million
AREBET AREBEET ARBBET
(i)  Acquisition of iy Wi
— Sales and distribution rights of —FEMRHEE R HE
new products
— businesses in the pharmaceutical —BETEABEANG
industry with proprietary intellectual ERSIERE INhE
property or growth potential 79.1 36.5 42.6
(i) Repaying a portion of the outstanding (i) BEERELEERNAEE
loans and bank trade credits due from HMABEDHERMIRTES
the Group which were guaranteed by =8
Mr. Huang 60.7 60.7 -
(iii) Developing cold chain facility and (i) ) ERRTR R LR
research and development base located e M I A
in Sichuan Shuangliu Bonded Area - - -
(iv) Deposits for obtaining letters of credit (v) BUSERZENRS 60.0 9.0 51.0
(v)  Working capital and other general (v) ZEESREM—MEE
corporate purposes Rz 17.4 17.4 -
Total ~ 217.2 123.6 93.6
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Major Customers and Suppliers

For the Reporting Period, the Group’s products purchased from the
largest supplier, accounted for 62.0% (2015: 63.7%) of total products
purchased, and products purchased from five largest suppliers accounted
for 100.0% (2015: 100.0%) of our total products purchased.

For the Reporting Period, the Group's sales to largest customer accounted
for 18.6% (2015: 21.1%) of our revenue, and sales to the five largest
customers accounted for 44.3% (2015: 60.0%) of our total revenue.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group's five
largest customers and suppliers.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Subsidiaries
Details of the major subsidiaries of the Company as of 31 December 2016
are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Reporting
Period are set out on page 102 in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law and the Articles of Association, amounted to
approximately RMB271.0 million (as at 31 December 2015: RMB13.9
million).
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Bank Loans

Particulars of bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2016 are set
out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

RITER
AEEM2016F 12 A31H ZRITERFBEHNEGES
B SRz I EE23 -

BT E
RERRBBN TERER - ARATERMHRE

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the Shareholders, the Company had
adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) which
became effective on 10 March 2016 (the “Listing Date”).

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide an incentive
or reward for Eligible Participants (defined below) for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Company and/or any of
its subsidiaries.

Eligible participants

The Board may subject to and in accordance with the provisions
of the Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules, at its discretion
grant options to any full-time or part-time employees, including
executives, senior management or officers (including executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive directors) of the Company,
its subsidiaries or any entity in which the Group holds any equity
interest, and to any company wholly owned by one or more persons
belonging to any of the above classes of participants who, in the
absolute discretion of the Board has contributed or will contribute to
the Group (collectively, the “Eligible Participants”).

Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
ten years from 1 February 2016, after which time no further option
will be granted.

Total number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
not, in aggregate, exceed 160,000,000, representing 9.91% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this report.
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Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless approved by Shareholders, the total number of Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options granted to any participant
(including exercised and outstanding options) under the Share
Option Scheme in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall
not exceed 1% of the total Shares in issue.

Offer period and amount payable for options

An option may be accepted by an Eligible Participant within 15
days from the date of the offer of grant of the option. A nominal
consideration of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the grant
of option.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

The period during which an option must be held before it can be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
shall be one year after the date on which the option is granted. The
Board may in its absolute discretion impose further restrictions on
the exercise of the option.

Period within which the Share must be taken up
Subject to the discretion of the Board who may impose restrictions
on the exercise of the option, any option may be exercised one year
after the date on which the options is granted and shall expire on
the earlier of the last day of (i) a six year period from the date of
such grant and (i) the expiration of the Share Option Scheme.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The price per Share at which a Grantee may subscribe for Shares
upon exercise of an option (the “Exercise Price”) shall be a price
determined by the Board but in any event shall be at least the
highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the HKSE's daily
guotations sheets on the date on which the option is granted,;

(i)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the HKSE's
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately

preceding the date of grant of that option; and

(iii)  the nominal value of the Shares.
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The summary of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme that

RIBBRERT IR MR AR E BB HARITENE

were still outstanding as at the date of this report are as follows: PRAERE AN -
Number of Options
b il
Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed
duringthe  duringthe  duringthe  during the Held at Held at Exercise
Reporting Reporting Reporting Reporting  thelisting 31 December, price per
Period Period Period Period Date 2016 Share®
Grantee's name Date of grant EREEHA CREESHR CRESER CREEER RETES R016% BRRA  Exercise period®
BEARE RiAH Ri i it X3 BE  NANAER ke MR
Mr. Hao Jinghui®” 21 September 2016 5,000,000 - - - - 5,000,000 HK$0.568 21 September 2017-
it 2016597217 0568%7 20 September 2022
WITEIANEE
2022497208
Employees in aggregate 21 September 2016 25,000,000 - - - - 25,000,000 HK$0.568 21 September 2017-
[E8a# 2016597217 05685 20 September 2022
0175982182
20259R208
Total: 30,000,000 - - - - 30,000,000
8y
Notes: Biat -
(1) Mr. Hao Jinghui is the co-chief executive officer of the Company ("Co- (1) M EWEE 4L AR DG EITHREE ([HETHE

@)

(©)
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chief Executive Officer”). Pursuant to Rule 17.04(1) of the Listing Rules, the
grant of options to the Co-chief Executive Officer has been approved by the
independent non-executive Directors. Save as disclosed above, none of the
Grantees is a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder or an associate
of any of them.

The exercise price represents not less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of HK$0.540 per Share as stated in the HKSE's daily quotation sheets on 21
September 2016, being the Date of such grant; (i) the average closing price
of HK$0.568 per Share as stated in the HKSE's daily quotation sheets for
five business days immediately preceding the Date of such grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Share at HK$0.0001 per Share.

40% of the options granted shall be vested and can be exercised upon one
year commencing the date of such grant (i.e. 21 September 2017) and a
continuous employment of one year. Another 30% of the options granted,
shall be vested and can be exercised upon two years commencing the date
of such grant (i.e. 21 September 2018) and a continuous employment of two
years. The remaining 30% of the options granted, shall be vested and can
be exercised upon three years commencing the date of such grant (i.e. 21
September 2019) and a continuous employment of three years.
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Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the Share Option Scheme of the Company as disclosed above,
no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that
will or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by
the Company during the Reporting Period or subsisted at the end of the
Reporting Period.

Directors
The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Huang Xiangbin (Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Zhang Zhijie

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Chow Siu Lui (appointed on 1 February 2016)
Mr. Wang Qing (appointed on 1 February 2016)
Mr. Liu Wenfang (appointed on 1 February 2016)

In accordance with article 16.2 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Huang
Xiangbin and Mr. Chow Siu Lui will retire and being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election as Directors at the forthcoming AGM.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected/elected at the forthcoming AGM
are set out in the circular to the Shareholders.

Directors’ and Senior Management'’s Biographies
Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out on pages 52 to 60 of this annual report.
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Confirmation of Independence of

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received a confirmation of independence pursuant to
rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive
Directors and the Company considers such Directors to be independent in
accordance with rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Service Contracts and Letter of
Appointments

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with
the Company on 2 June 2015 for a term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date, which may be terminated by not less than one month'’s
notice in writing served by either party to the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment on 1 February 2016 for an initial term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts of Significance

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
an entity connected with a Director had, directly or indirectly, a material
interest subsisted during or at the end of the Reporting Period.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors or their respective associates had engaged in
or had any interest in any business which competes or may compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group during the
Reporting Period.
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Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

Employees and Emolument Policy

As of 31 December 2016, the Group had an aggregate of 141 full-
time employees. The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) was set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance of the Directors and senior management
and comparable market practices.

Remuneration of Directors and Five Individuals with
Highest Emoluments

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Changes to Information in Respect of Directors
Up to the date of this report, there were no changes to information which
are required to be disclosed and had been disclosed by Directors pursuant
to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Position in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or (i) which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the
register maintained by the Company, or (iii) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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() Interest in Shares or Underlying Shares of the Company () AR BEMH BRI B S
Number of
Shares or Approximate
underlying percentage of
Shares® shareholding
Name of Director Nature of interest B3 =48R interest
EFEHA ERtE RGOHEO REBAE D W
Mr. Huang® Interest in controlled corporation 1,050,000,000(L) 65.01%
LA NI LERER
Mr. Hao Jinghui Beneficial owner 5,000,000(L)ti 0.31%
D=y Eitas EnlEAA
Notes: Kiat

(i) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(i) Risun is owned as to 100% by Mr. Huang; therefore Mr. Huang is
deemed to be interested in the 1,050,000,000 Shares held by Risun.

(i)  These represent the interests in underlying Shares in respect of the
share options granted by the Company to Mr. Hao Jinghui on 21
September 2016.

(iv)  The calculation is based on the total number of 1,615,220,000 Shares
in issue as at 31 December 2016.

(i) Interest in associated corporation

() FERILIEZBALREOPIFENITE

(i) RisunFAELEEZEHH - Bt HREWEE
A RisunFTE1,050,000,000 8% 19 ot 25 o

(i)  ZERHGBEARFNR2016FIA21 AR T =
¥ 5 A B0 BB IS A A RA RO AR RARR (D R YRS o

(v) % EPLHIRIER2016412 A31 B A H
1,615,220,0000% B2 31T D Mt EI5H ©

(i) PAEEEEE MRS

Amount of
registered Approximate
Name of share capital percentage of
Name of Director associated corporation Nature of interest S shareholding interest
BEEpsE HE=E AR BEME RAEHE RESNE DL
Ms. Zhang Zhijie Sinco Biotechnology Interest in controlled RMB300,000 30%
P o e BRIEEYRF corporation® AR#300,0007T

REEAEER

Note:

(i) Sinco Biotechnology is owned as to 30% by Beijing Kang Tai Yun Dao
Technology Co., Ltd., which is in turn owned as to 60% by Ms. Zhang
Zhijie.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interest or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to the Model

Code. -
i% oo

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
o
O o)o

Hist

() ERREYREHIERRFEERHEAR AR
B30%HE% - Mt RFEEBERHTERARIHEK
BT ER60% R

B EXPTEEESN 0 R20165F12 8318 » AR RE
EREFBTHRABBMERNARA R SEBREE(TE
RFEH RS GKRGIEXVED) KRG - BERGSEH
FHEA SR A B ALERARRIREESRIBE
1&BIE3521{E R E AT EMELMARNERSIAR -
FAREIZESFRIZE ST AR A R E AR FTHE
fHERS SRR »

Annual Report 2016



Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEEREE)

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save as otherwise disclosed in this report, no rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company
were granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children under
18 years of age, nor were any such rights exercised by them. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors, or their respective spouse or children under 18 years
of age, to acquire such rights in any other body corporate during the
period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2016.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2016, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons/entities (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

(i) Interest in the Company

EERERODES ZEF
BAHESEREEN  BERTINESIHEES
B LB 3 R 18 5% T 20 T {A] LA Uk B8 S X R AR A7 3k
BEHH NEFF MR - 5% IMEI T (T A B
Ao B EMHEEE20165F12831 8 1HEM » AR
AINEEAMEARBME LI ASESHEESH
HIF B R 1858 T L E B TR E A AB R R
FIEZHE »

EERRNIR G RAABERAD Pz m R
=)

20165128318 » MEFAAM - REBEAQAE
RBES L ERGEIB6KEBTFENELMARATRE
B UTAL/ BRE(EEHARAETEZITHAER
IR SABER O P A RIBEE S KBS KIS
XVEBEE2 K 370 SR MU A M AN A B BB A e 2R s

AN

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding
Name Nature of interest Shares® interest(v
=t EEME RGHFEO IRFEBAE 2w
Risun Beneficial owner 1,050,000,000(L) 65.01%
EnEBA
Wisen Group Holding Beneficial owner 90,000,000(L) 5.57%
Limited (“Wisen") EmEEA
Wisen Group Holding
Limited ([Wisen])
Mr. Liu Sichuanfi Interest in controlled corporation 90,000,000(L) 5.57%

218115 & MR EBE R

Notes:
(i) The letter “"L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(i) Risun is owned as to 100% by Mr. Huang; therefore Mr. Huang is
deemed to be interested in the 1,050,000,000 Shares held by Risun.

(i) Wisen is owned as to 100% by Mr. Liu Sichuan; therefore Mr. Liu
Sichuan is deemed to be interested in the 90,000,000 Shares held by
Wisen.

(iv)  The calculation is based on the total number of 1,615,220,000 Shares
in issue as at 31 December 2016.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Directors were
not aware of any persons (who were not Directors or chief executive
of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required,
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein.

2016 &R
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(i)  WisenB 2121 EE2EHE - Bt - FIR)I15%
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the period from
the Listing Date to 31 December 2016.

Connected Transaction

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group are
set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements. Save as the
bank loans guaranteed by Mr. Huang as disclosed in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statement, the related party transactions were
all terminated when the Company become listed on the Main Board
of HKSE. Pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules, the guarantee
provided by Mr. Huang as disclosed in note 23 is connected transaction
exempted from announcement, reporting, annual review and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.90 of the Listing
Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the above
connected transaction.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the Companies Law where the Company was incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis
to existing Shareholders.

Tax Relief and Exemption
The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding the Company’s securities.

Non-Competition Undertaking

On 1 February 2016, Mr, Huang Xiangbin and Risun, our controlling
shareholders entered into a deed of non-competition in favour of our
Company (for itself and on behalf of all members of the Group), pursuant
to which they have undertaken, subject to and except as mentioned in the
Prospectus, that they, would not, and would procure that none of their
associates (other than any member of our Group) will directly or indirectly,
engage in any business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or
indirectly, with our Group’s business as described in the Prospectus in the
PRC or any other places in which our Group carries on business.

The Company has received confirmations from the controlling

shareholders confirming their compliance with the deed of non-
competition during the Reporting Period.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision
As at the date of this report, all Directors of the Company were covered
under the liability insurance purchased by the Company for the Directors.

Director’s Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save as disclosed in the Prospectus, at no time during the Reporting Period
was the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Charitable Donations
For the Reporting Period, the Group made no charitable and other
donations.

Subsequent Events
As of the date of this annual report, the Group has no material
subsequent events that needs to be disclosed.

Disclosure Under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
responsibility of disclosure under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules regarding
the provision of advance by the Company to an entity.

Code of Conduct Regarding Directors’ Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry
with the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they had complied with
such code of conduct throughout the Reporting Period.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 75 to 92 of this annual report.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued
share capital, the prescribed minimum percentage of public float approved
by the HKSE and permitted under the Listing Rules, are held by the public
at all times as of the date of this report.

Audit Committee

The principal duties of the audit committee of the Company (”Audit
Committee”) include the review and supervision of the Group's financial
reporting system, the preparation of financial statements and internal
control procedures. It also acts as an important link between the Board
and the external auditor in matters within the scope of the group audit.

The annual results for the Reporting Period of the Company have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Auditor
Ernst & Young has acted as auditor of the Company for the Reporting
Period.

Ernst & Young shall retire in the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Huang Xiangbin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2017
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Corporate Governance Practices TEERER
The Group are committed to maintaining high standards of corporate  AEBE NN S/KEMDEES  LMREAREA

governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has adopted the CG
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of corporate governance. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Company has complied with all applicable code provisions under the CG
Code except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 as mentioned
in the paragraph headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” of
this report. The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are outlined later in this report. The Company will continue
to review and monitor its corporate governance practices to ensure
compliance with the CG Code.

The Board

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, oversees
the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business and performance.
The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for day-to-day
management and operation of the Group to the senior management
of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs,
the Board has established four Board committees including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) and the Internal Control and Corporate
Governance Committee (the “Internal Control and Corporate Governance
Committee”) (together, the “Board Committees”). The Board has
delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference.

All Directors have carried out duties in good faith and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and have acted in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in respect of

legal action against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be reviewed
on an annual basis.
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Board Composition
As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises two executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Huang Xiangbin
Ms. Zhang Zhijie

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chow Siu Lui

Mr. Wang Qing

Mr. Liu Wenfang

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has been in
compliance with the requirements under rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has also complied with rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board.

The Company believes that the diversity of Board members will be
immensely beneficial for the enhancement of the Company’s performance.
Therefore, the Company has adopted a Board diversity policy to ensure
that the Company will, when determining the composition of the Board,
consider Board diversity in terms of, among other things, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills and knowledge.
The Board diversity policy sets out the approach towards achieving
diversity on the Board. Pursuant to the Board diversity policy, all Board
appointments will be based on merits, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity of
the Board.

As each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his/

her independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
considers all of them to be independent parties.
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Save as disclosed in the Directors’ biographies set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report,
none of the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship) with any other
Director and chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Internal Control and Corporate Governance Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose the
number and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations
and other significant commitments as well as the identity and the time
involved to the issuer, Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments
and any subsequent change to the Company in a timely manner.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction and
information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the
Company's operations and businesses as well as his/her responsibilities
under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations. The Company also
arranges regular seminars to provide Directors with updates on latest
development and changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements from time to time. The Directors are also provided
with regular updates on the Company’s performance, position and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
company secretary of the Company has from time to time updated and
provided written training materials relating to the roles, functions and
duties of a Director.
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According to the information provided by the Directors, a summary
of training received by the Directors throughout the year ended 31
December 2016 is as follows:

RIEFEZEEFIEHMOER  EFREE20165F12A31
HIEFEMESHSZIMENT

Nature of Continuous
Professional
Development Programmes

Name of Director EElR BEEERRGTENNE
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Huang Xiangbin B RE A, C&D
Ms. Zhang Zhijie SRR+ A, C&D
Independent Non-executive Directors BUIHPITESE
Mr. Chow Siu Lui WNTEE A, B, C&D
Mr. Wang Qing AR AL A, C&D
Mr. Liu Wenfang IS5kt A, C&D
Notes: Mt
A:  Attending seminars and/or meetings and/or forums and/or briefings A HERERHEERFRER KRS
B:  Giving talks in the seminars and/or meetings and/or forums B: MBER/HEHRNimELER
C:  Attending training relevant to the Company'’s business conducted by lawyers C:  H/F e AN B B R B SRR RO 3|

D: MEAWCERER ZFBENLEBE LTRAIKE

D:  Reading materials relevant to corporate governance, director’s duties and
responsibilities, listing rules and other relevant ordinances
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and performed by different
individuals.

Under the organization structure of the Company, Mr. Huang was the
Chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer. With Mr. Huang’s
extensive experience in the pharmaceutical industry, the Board considered
that vesting the roles of chairman and chief executive officer in the same
person is beneficial to the business prospects and management of the
Group. The check and balance of power and authority is ensured by the
operation of the senior management and the Board, which comprises
experienced and high calibre individuals. Accordingly, the Board believes
that this arrangement will not impact on the balance of power and
authorizations between the Board and the management of the Company.

Following the appointment of Mr. Hao Jinghui as the co-chief executive
officer of the Company with effect from 16 August 2016. Mr, Huang
Xiangbin acts as the co-chief executive officer of the Company. Mr.
Huang and Mr. Hao are responsible for the Group’s overall business
development, operation and management.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has signed a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from their respective date
of appointment subject to termination as provided in the service contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from their respective date of appointment.

The appointments of executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are subject to the provisions of retirement and rotation of
Directors under the Articles of Association and the applicable Listing Rules.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-election
of Directors and succession planning for Directors.
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In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation and shall be eligible for re-election and re-appointment
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
at every AGM and any new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy or
as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself for re-election by
Shareholders at the next general meeting after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-election
of Directors and succession planning for Directors.

Board Meetings

The Company intends to hold Board meetings regularly, at least four times
a year, and at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than
fourteen days will be given for all regular Board meetings to provide all
Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda
for a regular meeting.

For other Board and Board Committee meetings, reasonable notice
is generally given. The agenda and accompanying board papers are
dispatched to the Directors or Board Committee members at least
three days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time
to review the papers and are adequately prepared for the meetings.
When Directors or Board Committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given
an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman prior to the
meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the joint company secretary
with copies circulated to all Directors for information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail about the matters considered by the Board
and the Board Committees and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting
and Board Committee meeting are/will be sent to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is
held. Minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection by Directors.

. _ SR u (H Y o=
80 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited o
o o
O o)o

REABERAR  ERAB =Nz —WNEF(WE
EANBA = =EE RIZEAREAEENDR=
DZ—HEFEAB)BBRET  YABBNERER
BERELEXBERREHNZME RBZEF(R2HE
NEABREEARNTARZENER) ARIE=F
FmRE—R - B EREARE B Z=RMEZR T
FEESRANTEERACRZERN TREBERAR
g LAaBRSREITEER

ERLMI - BEMESNEFBREHNEGEEN
Al - BEZEGRERTESSEN  UREEHNE

FRERLEFRTHENESSRERBER -
E -

ARFREMBTEREEH  BFELOR - KB
BFEERTEE FMAEFEITERBAKNEHR
BITMEL4RXE2REF  FHARESHFES
& BRABNTEHANITERERANEE

REMEEEREZZEGERMNE - AR —HKE
FHATBAN - FREMENETS XTSRS HAM
HMELIRTTEFAEFTZRENE - UBRES
BERREHHEENERXERAERIELTD LR -
EFeEEZReNEARLREER  ANEeR
ERARTHRNEELRREE BRI ARESEIER
BRENEBR - GRLHEABEARAWERT  BA
BReREERERN  UHSEERCH -

EXeR L ERLE RN ERCBAECEE
EFELEZZEEMEBNEENEBNRE - 81
EERENEABIER - SEFeRNESEE
EANTRCHERLAR BREARTERRE
EENEANTEEESES  UEARSREER - &%
SERNERLCHAIMHERSER -

Annual Report 2016



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERERE (E)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, five Board meeting and one
general meeting were held and the attendance record of each Director is
set out in the table below:

REZE2016F12A31HILFE - HEfTTRHAES
GEHREABRRERRE SEEHHFBREIHNT

St

Attended/
Eligible to attend
the Board meeting(s)

Attended/
Eligible to attend
the general meeting

BHE THE BHE AIHE
Directors == EESERH BRAXERE
Mr. Huang Xiangbin HEW LA 5/5 11
Ms. Zhang Zhijie sREG T 5/5 11
Mr. Chow Siu Lui B EE 5/5 171
Mr. Wang Qing AR A 5/5 11
Mr. Liu Wenfang BN 5/5 1”1

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
dealings in the Company'’s securities.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2016.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters. Directors could have recourse to
seek independent professional advice in performing their duties at the
Company's expense and are encouraged to access and to consult with the
Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into
by the management.
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Corporate Governance Function and Internal Control and
Corporate Governance Committee

The Internal Control and Corporate Governance Committee comprises
three members, namely Mr. Chow Siu Lui (chairman), Mr. Liu Wenfang
and Mr. Wang Qing, all of them are independent non-executive Directors.

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the collective
responsibility of the Directors and delegated the corporate governance
duties to the Internal Control and Corporate Governance Committee
which includes, without limitation:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the
Company;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors of the
Company;

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the code and disclosure
in the corporate governance report of the Company (the “Corporate
Governance Report”); and

(f)  to oversee the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis and ensure that a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and its subsidiaries has been conducted at least
annually and report to Shareholders that it has done so in its
Corporate Governance Report. The review shall cover all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.

The written terms of reference of the Internal Control and Corporate

Governance Committee are available on the websites of the HKSE and the
Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, one Internal Control and
Corporate Governance Committee was held and the attendance records
are set out below:

HE2016F12A31HILFE -
MAHE

HBIT—RAEBHES
AREREH  MFELEHIIMT

Attendance/

Number of meeting

Directors Bz HERY,EERE
Mr. Chow Siu Lui BT EE 7
Mr. Wang Qing pasi-pirtas 7
Mr. Liu Wenfang B3 e E 11

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Chow Siu
Lui (chairman), Mr. Liu Wenfang and Mr. Wang Qing, all of them are
independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include but not limited to the
following:

(@) to review the relationship with the Auditor by reference to the work
performed by the Auditor, their fees and terms of engagement,
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the Auditor;

(b) to review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function,
compliance officer or the Auditor before submission to the Board;
and

() to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management
system and associated procedures, including the adequacy of the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the websites of the HKSE and the Company.
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HZE2016F12A31HILEFE - HBITMABEZEZE
CEH BEREECeRMNLFLCEENNT

During the year ended 31 December 2016, two Audit Committee
Meetings were held and the attendance records of the Audit Committee
Meeting are set out below:

Attendance/

Number of meeting(s)

Directors B HERE EERE
Mr. Chow Siu Lui B wEE 2/2
Mr. Wang Qing pasli=ptes 2/2
Mr. Liu Wenfang B3 e E 2/2

FMEES
YFMEZEeA=2KE BEMBIFRNTESRT
BRE(ERE)  BIXFEERURTEEREHRK

Mr. Liu Wenfang and one executive Director namely Ms. Zhang Zhijie. T o

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, including two
independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Wang Qing (chairman),

FMZE NI 2RERBETRNUTEIE:

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include but not
limited to the following:

RARNREERSREREN BB MR a4
BEHFIER LBRANFMRRIEFRESESIR

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy 1.
and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration;

AENEE SR T AR BRER SR REER

reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board,; M

2. to review and approve performance-based remuneration with 2.

to determine the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management. These include benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;
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7. to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate; and

8.  to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the HKSE and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, four Remuneration Committee
Meetings were held and the attendance records are set out below:

o

7. A RIEEERITAREMERRIRLINS
RAOBREZS - WERBEES QRT3 &
]

=
BEESOERLT B BETAESIERE
&

8. MWRIUBBERHEIMHEAL(ERZR LR
)2 BB TF HA S BB

FHEZEeNEMBRESECHNBEHIARAR
REEVN

HZE2016F12A31HILEFE - HBITOAEFMHEZE
g% AHELEHIOT

Attendance/

Number of meeting(s)

Directors BEx HERE, EERE
Mr. Wang Qing TR EAE 4/4
Ms. Zhang Zhijie sREGEZ T+ 4/4
Mr. Liu Wenfang B35 4/4

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members, including
one executive Director namely Mr. Huang Xiangbin (chairman), and two
independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Liu Wenfang and Mr.
Chow Siu Lui.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company'’s corporate strategy;

2. toidentify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection

of individuals nominated for directorships;

3. to assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
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4.  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of Directors and the succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive officer;
and

5. toreview the Board diversity policy.

The Nomination Committee assesses the candidate or incumbent on
criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time and
effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The recommendations of
the Nomination Committee will then be put to the Board for decision. The
written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on
the websites of the HKSE and the Company.

4. HREECREFZEEERES(LERIERT
BRH METHENESSRHHEBER &

5. BEUEFSZITHEEK -

REZEGENZHEENEEREANELESE - 21
g B - B R RETTRS B E FrRE IR AR BT
RREH BAKHEEBERREZEEERE - #F
ZEENEAREEECHNE BRI RARRRE
uf o

During the year ended 31 December 2016, two Nomination Committee & %2016 12 A31BILFE - BT TRRIERE
Meeting was held and the attendance records are set out below: 8ggE  HELSIIMT
Attendance/
Number of meeting
Directors E=x HEREEERE
Mr. Huang Xiangbin H=EW SR A 2/2
Mr. Chow Siu Lui R E 2/2
Mr. Liu Wenfang BN 5 2/2

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report. The remuneration
of senior management, whose biographies are set out on pages 57 to 60
of this annual report, for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out
below:

EENSNEEE T M
ERHWFBERAFRE S BEIREMES - B4R
ERE(RENEBRESENANFRESTZ0E) RERE
2016F 12 A31 B IEFEREE T

Number of individual

Remuneration band (RMB) FHERE (ARE) AE
Below 1,000,000 1,000,00054 8
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Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting in
Respect of Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 which give a true and
fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group'’s
results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are put to the
Board for approval. The Company provides all members of the Board with
monthly updates on Company’s performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the Auditor regarding their reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 93 to 98 of this annual report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for
maintaining an adequate risk management and internal control systems
to safeguard Shareholder investments and Company assets and reviewing
the effectiveness of such system on an annual basis.

The Group’s internal audit department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The major tasks of the internal
audit department are reviewing the financial condition and internal
control of the Company and conducting comprehensive audits of all
branches and subsidiaries of the Company on a regular basis.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and considered
the risk management and internal control system to be effective and
adequate.
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Main Characteristics of the Risk Management and [EREERASPIEHRANTEISE,

Internal Control Systems

The Group'’s risk management framework is structured in the following 7<= B KRR B IBAELL LA T EIFI R = EH 48 [

“Three Lines of Defense” model as a guide: EA3ES| -

Board of Directors
EEg
Internal Control and Corporate Governance Committee Audit Committee
RSB RAEEREES EZZEE
2nd Line of Defense: 3rd Line of Defense:
Risk Management and Internal Control Team Internal Audit Department
R AREE R ER FEIA - PAE AR
1st Line of Defense:
AII Business Departments
B - BEBEF

The Board acknowledges its responsibility of overseeing the Group's #Ee@BAHASTERAEEE GEERAIPEEE

risk management and internal control systems and reviewing their &%t - WiEBAIIEHI RO EEAEE @ ([ NERIE %U

effectiveness at least annually through the Internal Control and Corporate M{¥EEREE € ) NEBERELZES R/ \ti%@i

Governance Committee (the “ICCG Committee”) and the Audit  ERR - ﬁ%@%ﬁﬁ@%ﬁﬁﬁéxm Eyrym @Tﬁﬂ?f

Committee. Such review encompasses all major control aspects, including
finance, operation and compliance. Such risk management and internal
control systems can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

The Board has completed its annual review of the internal control and risk
management systems of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2016, with all the above major control aspects covered. The Board has
considered the operation of risk management and internal control systems
to be generally adequate and effective, with no significant areas brought
to its attention during the year.
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The ICCG Committee and the Audit Committee assist the Board to fulfill
its responsibilities of risk management and internal control, ensuring
adequate resources, staff qualifications and experience, staff training
courses and related budgets for the Group in executing its accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions. The committees also
considers the important investigation results concerning the matters of
risk management and internal control, reports to and raise suggestions to
the Board.

1st Line of Defense

By preparing a risk list with risk control responsibility allocated to
departments, the Group is able to deliver risk management across all
the business departments. These departments continuously review and
assess the risks that may have a potential impact on corporate operation,
and effectively execute the process control for business according to the
respective functions and departmental regulations, all in a bid to raise the
efficiency in risk management.

2nd Line of Defense

Composed of nominated department managers and senior management,
the Risk Management and Internal Control Team organizes business
departments to identify, assess and manage the risks that may have a
potential impact on corporate operation, and ensures the implementation
of proper measures and internal control regulations to address major
risks. In the meantime, the Team monitors risks and takes measures to
reduce the risks in daily operation, provides timely response to and follow-
up of the investigation results of internal control from the Internal Audit
Department, and confirms to the Board as to the effectiveness of such risk
management and internal control systems.

3rd Line of Defense

The Internal Audit Department executes the actual review procedure, to
collect the evidence on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, and report the review results
to the ICCG Committee. In addition, the Department raises suggestions
to the Board and the management, to address major institutional
inadequacies or any control loopholes spotted.

External auditors further complement the third line of defense in respect

of the major risk and control issues on financial reporting procedures that
are spotted during the review process.
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Procedures Applied to Identifying, Assessing and

Managing Major Risks

e Determining the scope: preparing uniform risk terms and risk
assessment standards for the Group.

e Risk identification: identifying the risks that may have a potential
impact on corporate operation

e Risk assessment: considering risks in respect of the degree of
importance of their impact on business and their occurrence, and
assessing the risks identified

e Risk management: establishing risk management policies and
internal control procedures, to avert or reduce risks

e Risk monitoring and reporting: continuously monitoring relevant
risks, ensuring proper procedures of internal control, and regularly
reporting to the management and the Board on the results of risk
monitoring

Function of Internal Audit

The Group's Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The Department's main
responsibilities are to review the financial conditions and internal control
of the Company and all its subsidiaries, communicate with department
managers and senior management on the identified problems, non-
compliance issues and inadequacies, and jointly prepare rectification and
improvement solutions. The Department also follows such rectification
results, and reports to the ICCG Committee and the Audit Committee.

Information Disclosure System

The Group has formulated its information disclosure system, to ensure the
identification and confidentiality of potential inside information until it is
disclosed according to the Listing Rules in a consistent and timely manner.
The procedures for publishing and processing inside information include:

e Business department managers as the people in charge of
information reporting;

e Senior management as the people in charge of the information
confidentiality of their respective business segments;

e The Board as the party in charge of information disclosure; and

e The Investor Relations Department and the Board Secretary as
the parties responsible for managing information disclosure, the
reporting, audit and disclosure of information which needs public
announcement, and archiving and keeping such information
disclosure documents and announcements.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERERE (E)

Auditor’'s Remuneration

The remuneration for the audit services provided by the Auditor to the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2016 was approximately
RMB2,680,000. There is no remuneration paid to the Auditor in respect of
non-audit services.

Company Secretary

Ms. Ko Wing Yu (“Ms. Ko"), one of our joint company secretaries of the
Company, is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that the Board policies and procedures, as well as
the applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company also
engages Ms. Wong Sau Ping (“Ms. Wong"), senior manager of TMF Hong
Kong Limited (a company secretarial service provider), as another joint
company secretary to assist Ms. Ko to discharge her duties as company
secretary of the Company. The primary corporate contact person at the
Company is Ms. Ko, one of the joint company secretaries of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, Ms. Ko and Ms. Wong have
undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
respectively in compliance with rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Communication with Shareholders and Investor
Relations

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and strategies. The
Company also recognizes the importance of timely and non-selective
disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to
make the informed investment decisions.

The AGM provides opportunity for the Shareholders to communicate
directly with the Directors. The Chairman of the Company and the
chairmen of the Board Committees will attend the AGM to answer
Shareholders’ questions. The Auditor will also attend the AGM to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of
the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a shareholders’
communication policy which aims at establishing a two-way relationship
and communication between the Company and the Shareholders and
maintains a website of the Company at www.sinco-pharm.com, where
up-to-date information on the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information, corporate governance practices and
other information are available for public access.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution will
be proposed for each issue at general meetings, including the election of
individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the HKSE in a timely manner after each
general meeting.

Convening of extraordinary general meeting and putting
forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company according to the Articles of Association. Any
one or more members holding as at date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or any one of the joint
company secretaries of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures
are available on the website of the Company.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could send their enquiries to the headquarters
of the Company at E5-1805, Global Centre, No. 1700, North section of
Tianfu Avenue, High-Tech Zone, Chengdu, Sichuan, PRC. (email address:
sinco-pharm@sinco-pharm.cn).

Change in Constitutional Documents

The amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of Association have
been adopted on 1 February 2016 and with effect from the Listing Date,
and there were no significant changes in the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

VR EE: S

To the shareholders of Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 99 to 172, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as of 31 December 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as of 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B AR S (&)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

BRETSEHR

Timing of revenue recognition
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENETNAEREBRRENSEE

The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016
amounted to RMB858,894,000. Revenue is recognised
when the risks and rewards of the underlying products have
been transferred to the customer, which coincides with
acknowledgement of receipt of goods by the buyer. Focus
areas are mainly related to cut-off conditions, which involves
higher assessed risk of material misstatement. As such we
have considered revenue recognition is significant to our audit,
requiring special audit consideration.

The Group’s disclosures about revenue is included in note
2.4 "summary of significant accounting policies” and note 4
“revenue and operating segment information”.

BEEBEHZE206F12A31BELFEN N EAARK
858,894,0007T ° Wz s HY I B2 A8 B 22 on A R\ B 2 [ S 8
BEEPR B BERAKRIERR - ER@ETEHEEER
BIEGEGE - EFAEAERETERRA AR S o Bt
B REERGERT IIENED - FE2ETRAETE
f%:o

B 4 B A RIS O BB R 52 4] X B H BRI E | R
AT RS S HAR ] -

Our audit procedures included, amongst others, assessing
internal controls regarding the timing of the revenue
recognition. We also performed substantive testing, such
as analytical procedures, sample testing of transactions and
review of sales contracts.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B AR S (&)

Key audit matters (Continued)

BARETEE(E)

Key audit matter

BRETSE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

BB A

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

TEETETRNTEERERNSEH

In accordance with IFRSs, the Group is required to annually
test the amount of goodwill for impairment. This annual
impairment test is significant to our audit because the goodwill
balance of RMB58,632,000 as of 31 December 2016 which
consists of goodwill of RMB35,526,000 arising from the
acquisition of Chengdu Hengsheng Ziguang Pharmaceutical
Technology Co., Ltd. and goodwill of RMB23,106,000 arising
from the acquisition of Qingdao Ruichi Pharmaceuticals
Company Limited, is material to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, management’s impairment assessment
process is complex and highly judgmental and is based on
assumptions, specially budgeted gross margins, growth rates
and the discount rate, which are affected by expected future
market or economic conditions.

The Group’s disclosures about impairment assessment of
goodwill are included in note 3
estimates” and note 15 “goodwill”.

“significant accounting
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Our audit procedures included:

e  We tested the impairment model selected for the
pharmaceutical products cash-generating unit (“CGU")
which is the sole group of CGU of the Group (the
“Pharmaceutical CGU"”) by understanding the model
methodology and comparing that to our understanding
of the Pharmaceutical CGU and checking its mathematical
accuracy;

e We compared key market-derived estimates, including
selling prices of pharmaceutical products and interest
rates, against external data;

e We compared key operational estimates in the models to
source data and publically available information where it
existed; and

e  We involved our valuation specialist to assist us in
evaluating the key valuation parameters such as discount
rate calculation, terminal growth rate applied and the
valuation model used in the impairment assessment
models, which are complex assumptions used in the
estimation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B AR S (&)

Other information included in the Annual Report
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B AR S (&)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group'’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B AR S (&)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the

consolidated financial statements (Continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Siu Fung Terence Ho.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBmkEMAEERER

Year ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016512A31HIEFE

2016 2015
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
b ARBTT ARETTT
REVENUE &= 4 858,894 1,096,071
Cost of sales HEKA (754,326) (943,564)
Gross profit EF 104,568 152,507
Other income and gains H A A Rz 5 8,533 827
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HEAY (11,470) (5,709)
Administrative expenses TERAX (62,419) (40,524)
Other expenses HibHAxZ (4,459) (13,358)
Finance costs TR AR 6 (9,187) (7,105)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREL AT R 7 25,566 86,638
Income tax expense ISR 9 (7,229) (17,197)
PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FRBFRZEBALLE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 18,337 69,441
Attributable to: AT AL RELG
Owners of the parent ISYNSIEZZEPN 19,367 69,614
Non-controlling interests IEIE AR T (1,030) (173)
18,337 69,441
Earnings per share attributable to ordinary & AR EREREEA AMES
equity holders of the parent: BRER
- Basic and diluted (RMB) —EAREHE(ARET) 11 0.013 0.058
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e B ISR R R

31 December 2016 2016%E12HA31H

2016 2015
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
(=2 AR¥T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - W= N&E 12 103,712 96,922
Intangible assets EREE 13 32,454 40,378
Payments in advance TaftFIAE 14 99,858 69,427
Goodwill S 15 58,632 35,526
Deposit %E 16 3,000 3,000
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 297,656 245,253
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories =8 17 137,602 46,563
Trade and bills receivables E G EOE M EWEE 18 19,868 77,186
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  F8{t3RIB - &2 ¢ & Eith fE UL FRIE 16 67,115 35,802
Financial assets at fair value DERFHIEEERAFERA
through profit or loss BRremEE
classified as held for trading 146 -
Available-for-sale investment HEHEERE 19 111,261 -
Pledged bank balances BEAIRITLE 20 52,029 22,068
Cash and cash equivalents e RHEEEEY 20 102,050 38,138
Total current assets REEEMAE 490,071 219,757
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables B S ERFIE 21 45,832 62,793
Advances from customers BEE8R 45,665 33,707
Other payables ,H\{mféﬁ% 22 61,734 84,132
Interest-bearing bank loans SHEIRTTER 23 165,000 81,915
Tax payable J?EHMIE 12,221 8,909
Total current liabilities REEEEE 330,452 271,456
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RBEE(AR)FHE 159,619 (51,699)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABASE 457,275 193,554
Net assets BEZFE 457,275 193,554
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
FREMERR R (F)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

2016 2015
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b AR¥T T AREETTT
EQUITY fE=
Equity attributable to B RAREE AEGER
owners of the parent
Issued capital BEITARA 24 130 95
Reserves i 26 458,049 193,333
458,179 193,428
Non-controlling interests FEIERR A (904) 126
Total equity EREE 457,275 193,554
Huang Xiangbin Zhang Zhijie
B REA
Director Director
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

SEREDE

Il‘/_.R

Year ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016512A31HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATREAERE
Changes
Share Share innon- Non-
Issued  premium Contributed  Statutory option controlling  Retained controlling Total
capital  account surplus reserve reserve interests  earnings Total interests equity
2R
BRIRE RORER E4RS IERE BRERE E8%9  REEA & FERER  BRAE
RMB000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
(note 24)  (note 26(3))  (note 26(b))  (note 26(c))  (note 26(d)
(Hitoa) (Witze) (ha2e) (Wtzee) (w260
At 1 January 2015 #20155151A - - 4250 11,090 - ) 89,832 105,214 18,271 123,485
Profit and total comprehensive income  EREFI R 2 ERAEHE
for the year - - - - - - 69,614 69,614 (173) 69,441
Transfer from retained earnings ] - - - 196 - = (196) = = =
Issue of shares Bkt 95 1453 - - - - - 14628 - 14628
Acquisition of non-controling interests Ui IR IER - - - - - 3972 - 3972 (17.972)  (14,000)
At 31 December 2015 and R2015512A31R
1 January 2016 R201651818 95 14,533* 4,250* 11,286* =* 4,014*  159,250* 193,428 126 193,554
Profit and total comprehensive income  EREFI K2 ERAEE
for the year - - - - - - 19,367 19,367 (1,030) 18,337
Interim 2016 dividend declared (note 10)  EiR20165+ Bk (H10) - (4,555) - - - - - (4,555) - (4,555)
Transfer from retained earnings ERBET - - 3219 - - (3219) -
Issue of new shares (note 24(a)) BITHIRO (Wito4e) 34 267578 - - - - - 267612 - 267612
Issue of new shares (note 24(b)) BITHRG (Wito4) 1 10,184 - - - - - 10,185 - 10,185
Share issue expenses RIDETEY - (28,853) - - - - - (28,853) - (28,853)
Equity-settled share option amangement  [RIE&EERIERH
(note 25) (Hi#25) - - - - 995 - - 995 - 995
At 31 December 2016 20165128318 130 258.887¢ 4250 14505* 995+ 4014  1753%8* 458,179 (904) 457,275
& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZEHEBROESAVBMUARTHEEBEEARE

RMB458,049,000 (2015: RMB193,333,000) in the consolidated statement of

financial position.
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GEHERER

Year ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016512A31HIEFE

2016 2015
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
FsE ARET T ARBF T
CASH FLOWS FROM RETBHRERERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax PR3 A1 A 25,566 86,638
Adjustments for: AT EIEFE -
Depreciation e 7 5,554 5,185
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERH 7 5112 5,045
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss REWEN (W), BB (11,962) 4,109
Loss on disposal of an exclusive distribution right R & BR A& $HEREE 7 1,435 -
Equity-settled share option expense PARR HE 45 B B AR IR 25 995 =
Interest income on an available-for-sale investment & B ATt & 38 & B9 5 S A 5 (1,810) -
Fair value gains on financial assets at fair value HEARIEEEEREREATE
through profit or loss classified as held FENEREBENTFERS
for trading (146) =
Finance costs BATSRAR 6 9,187 7,105
Bank interest income RITFEUA 5 (655) (390)
33,276 107,692
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills receivables 2 5 e /1B K&
FEREER D,/ (#10) 69,069 (40,270)
Increase in prepayments, BRHIE - e Rk
deposits and other receivables E A FE U FRIEIE N (29,648) (2,784)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD,/ (M) (47,864) 54,113
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables B S ENFIEE I, (R) (57,086) 44,156
Decrease in other payables Hin e ZIEm L (3,937) (8,490)
Increase/(decrease) in advances from customers  BFEEZEANCRA) 10,131 (94,743)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations LERS/(FFB)ES (26,059) 59,674
Interest received U RS 655 390
Tax paid [RARES 2 (4,499) (13,868)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities &= E8F5,/(FTA)
BeREFE (29,903) 46,196
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETEBRERERE
Purchases of items of property, BEWE f%& SRR
plant and equipment (12,037) (10,245)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEVEE (312) (20)
Proceeds from disposal of an REBRCHEMSHIE
exclusive distribution right 1,749 -
Increase in payments in advance FERTFRIAE (30,431) (21,399)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B Bt A A 27 (59,688) (8,000)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests of )& P P R L B —
a subsidiary from then shareholders M RM IR E R - (14,000)
Purchase of an available-for-sale investment BEAHHERE (105,487) =
Net cash flows used in investing activities REZHMAREREFE (206,206) (53,664)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

mERERERE)

Year ended 31 December 2016 & ZE2016512A31H IEFE

2016 2015
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000
BsE AR¥TR AREFT

CASH FLOWS FROM METHHRERERE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid BAFIE (9,187) (7,105)
Proceeds from issuance of shares BRI FT{S RIE 277,797 =
Share issue expenses R EITRY (25,156) =
Proceeds from bank loans RITE RS RE 211,039 258,882
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (127,924) (273,793)
Dividends paid ERRRE (4,648) =
Advance from a related party —ZRE R - 25,633
Payment o a related party m—RZEEA R - (6,685)
Net cash flows from/(used in) MEEENE, (FTH)

financing activities RengFs 321,921 (3,068)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN RERREEEY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS @i,/ Ghd ) FEE 85,812 (10,536)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EXEHTE TR 8,061 526
Cash and cash equivalents at FHReRREFED

beginning of year 60,206 70,216
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRASRREZEY

END OF YEAR 154,079 60,206
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RERRSZBYERDN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in BBARRRAFR S R

the statement of financial position ReEEY 20 102,050 38,138
Time deposits with original maturity of [REEAR TR =EH

less than three months when acquired, REEITEAE RN

pledged as security for issuance of EHTER

letters of credit 20 52,029 22,068
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in RERERMIBEELBEEEY

the statement of cash flows 154,079 60,206
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR ERR MR

31 December 2016 2016%E12HA31H

Corporate and Group Information

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 16 March 2015. The registered office address of
the Company is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands. The Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong is Unit 4408A, 44/F, Cosco Tower, 183 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group were principally engaged in marketing,
promotion and channel management services for improved human
plasma-based pharmaceutical, antibiotics and other pharmaceuticals
focused on therapeutic areas complementary to human plasma-
based products and other fast-growing categories in Mainland
China. There were no significant changes in the nature of the

NAREBER

RATAR20156F3 16 A EFA S S ML
WERRERAT KRR M I EE It
#P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands * RE B ETE &
¥ ABEEESEREPISHPEANEME
4408AZ ©

FR - AEEFERPERMA EE A MR
B0 MARREFNAEEEEABMER S
R EL At IRR 38 R0 Bl B 00 EL A B2 R A T 05
8 EERRBEERY - NEEEEXKAE

Group’s principal activities during the year.

In the opinion of the Directors, Risun, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), is the parent and the ultimate holding

company of the Company.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

ZERAE  Risun(FEHEBE

RES ) ML

RIEIEIR AT

MELRER

RARIMBARBFEOT :

HRREE((RBER
BRE]) RARRNERE R

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued ordinary/

Percentage of equity

registration and registered attributable to the
Name place of business share capital Company Principal activities
TR R BRITLE/ KRREL
% AEEE R BTN BEAAN TEEK
Direct Indirect
HEE i
% %
Starwell Group Holding Limited 26 November 2013 US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
Az SEERER R BVI 50,0003 7T REER
20134114268
RBRARES
Bright Ritzy Limited 5 August 2016 US$1 100 - Investment holding
RERRAT BVI 1% REER
201658 H5AH
EERARES
Hong Kong Prosperous Group Holding 20 December 2013 HK$100 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
Limited (“Hong Kong Prosperous”) Hong Kong 10078 7T WEER
BREREERRERAT 2013F12A208
([&#EE]) BB
Glorious Empire Limited 26 August 2016 HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
BHE AR AR Hong Kong 18T AR
201658 H26H
BB
8Os
PRI SR RAR A

2016 &R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

RAREEER(E)
MEBARER(E)

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1.
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place and date of

incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity

registration and registered attributable to the
Name place of business share capital Company Principal activities
SR MR BRTEE/ KREEE
g AHEE XA AR A BREESML TEEK
Direct Indirect
= ik
% %
Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals’ 1 April 2011 RMB50,000,000 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
7Ol ERR A B Mainland China AR#:50,000,0007 HEEM
201154518
Bl
Sinco Biotechnology 25 November 2013 RMB1,000,000 - 70 Research and development on
FRIE A RO Mainland China AE#1,000,0007T pharmaceutical products
2013F11 /4258 BoHE
FEI A
Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical 26 February 2014 RMB2,000,000 - 100 Providing warehouse facilities for
RAERA R & Mainland China AE#2,000,0007T pharmaceutical products
201452268 REEREBRIE
HEA
Chengdu Hengsheng Ziguang 4 March 2015 RMB100,000 - 100 Consultation on medical and
R ERE SR Mainland China AR®100,0007T biological technology
201543 R4H BR IR
HEIRH,
Linzhi Ziguang 17 November 2014 RMB10,000,000 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
HELKO Mainland China AE#10,000,0007 HEER
20145117178
HEI A,
Sinco Shanghai Trading Co; Ltd. 25 August 2016 RMB5,000,000 - 100 Trading and consultation
ERR(EE)BEFERARN Mainland China AE#5,000,0007C ECVES
201658 H25H
IR,
Qingdao Yusheng Hengying 15 November 2016 RMB30,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Trading Co., Ltd.0 Mainland China AE30,000,00075 REER
BEERBRESERAF 2016511A158
Bl
Qingdao Ruichi 15 May 2007 RMB10,000,000 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
BB Mainland China AK#10,000,0007 HEEm
200745/ 1508
FEI A

| - 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

2.1

Corporate and Group Information (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

(i) Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals, Sinco Shanghai Trading Co., Ltd.
(“Sinco Shanghai”) and Qingdao Yusheng Hengying Trading Co.,
Ltd. (“Qingdao Yusheng”) are registered as wholly-foreign-owned
enterprises under the PRC law.

(i) These subsidiaries are registered as domestic enterprises under the PRC

law.

During the year, the Group acquired Qingdao Ruichi, from two
independent third party individuals. Further details of this acquisition
are included in note 27 to the financial statements.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
IFRS, which comprise standards and interpretations approved by
the IASB, and International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Standing Interpretations Committee interpretations approved by the
International Accounting Standards Committee that remain in effect.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention. These
financial statements are presented in RMB and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2016. A subsidiary is an entity, directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

2016 &R

2.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

. _ SR u (H Y o=
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2.1 REEE(E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary; (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of
any investments retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit
in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The Group has adopted the following new and revised standards for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the
IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Consolidation Exception
Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to IAS 16 and Clarification of Acceptable Methods
IAS 38 of Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to IAS 16 and Agriculture: Bearer Plants

IAS 41
Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRSs

2012-2014 Cycle

The adoption of the above new and revised standards has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRS

2.3 CBEMMHERAE A B B T R 5 2 R

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRS,

that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 10 and

IAS 28

IFRS 15

Amendments to IFRS 15

Amendments to IAS 40

IFRIC 22

IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 7

Amendments to IAS 12

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements

2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with
Customers?

Transfers of Investment Property?

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration?
Leases?

Disclosure Initiative'

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses’

Amendments to IFRS 12
Clarification of the Scope of
the Standard’

Amendments to IFRS 1 Deletion of
Short-term Exemptions for First-
time Adopts?

Amendments to IAS 28 measuring
an Associate or Joint Venture at
Fair Value?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRS (Continued)

Further information about those IFRS that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 2 in June 2016 that address
three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction;
the classification of a share-based payment transaction with net
settlement features for withholding a certain amount in order to
meet the employee’s tax obligation associated with the share-
based payment; and accounting where a modification to the terms
and conditions of a share-based payment transaction changes its
classification from cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments
clarify that the approach used to account for vesting conditions
when measuring equity-settled share-based payments also applies
to cash-settled share-based payments. The amendments introduce
an exception so that a share-based payment transaction with net
share settlement features for withholding a certain amount in order
to meet the employee’s tax obligation is classified in its entirety as
an equity-settled share-based payment transaction when certain
conditions are met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if
the terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction are modified, with the result that it becomes an
equity-settled share-based payment transaction, the transaction is
accounted for as an equity-settled transaction from the date of the
modification. The Group expects to adopt the amendments from
1 January 2018. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRS (Continued)

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9, bringing
together all phases of the financial instruments project to replace
IAS 39 and all previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 9 from
1 January 2018. The Group expects that the adoption of IFRS 9
will have an impact on the classification and measurement of the
Group's financial assets. Further information about the impact will
be available nearer the implementation date of the standard.

IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all current
revenue recognition requirements under IFRS. In April 2016, the
IASB issued amendments to IFRS 15 to address the implementation
issues on identifying performance obligations, application guidance
on principal versus agent and licences of intellectual property, and
transition. The amendments are also intended to help ensure a more
consistent application when entities adopt IFRS 15 and decrease the
cost and complexity of applying the standard. The Group expects
to adopt IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and is currently assessing the
impact of IFRS 15 upon adoption.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRS (Continued)

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases — Incentives
and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most leases. The
standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases
of low-value assets and short-term leases. At the commencement
date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease
payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right
to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-
use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless the
right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment property in IAS
40. The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest
on the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees
will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on
the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use
asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease liability
upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease
term and change in future lease payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine those payments. Lessees will
generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting
under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting
under IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the
same classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases. The Group expects to adopt
IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 and is currently assessing the impact of
IFRS 16 upon adoption.

Amendments to IAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash changes. The amendments will result in
additional disclosure to be provided in the financial statements. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTBEHE

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values
of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as of the acquisition date. This includes
the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the (a) consideration transferred, (b) the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and (c) any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the
net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as of 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwiill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories
and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Related parties (Continued)
or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives of
items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Useful lives
Leasehold land and buildings 34-60 years
Office equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 4-5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents items of property, plant and
equipment under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 FES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less any impairment losses and
are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The principal estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as
follows:

Exclusive distribution rights 9 years
Software 5 years

Operating leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a
lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception
date. The arrangement is assessed for whether fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or
the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if
that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases, net of any incentives received from the lessor, are charged to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating lease are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the entire lease
payments are included in the cost of land and buildings as a finance
lease in property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded
at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of sale in the near term. Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with positive net changes in fair value presented as other income
and gains and negative net changes in fair value presented as
finance costs in profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not
include any dividends or interest earned on these financial assets,
which are recognised in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in “Other income
and gains” in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in profit or loss in “Finance costs” for loans and in “Other
expenses” for receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 FESHBEHE(E)

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities.
Investments classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response
to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss in other income, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to profit or loss in
other gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding
the available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised in
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition” below.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may
elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has the ability
and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until
maturity.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primary derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in
a collective assessment of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or
through the use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or decreased by adjusting the allowance amount. If
a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to in profit or
loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at
the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence
that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IR ERR M ()

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables and
interest-bearing bank loans.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of loans and borrowings is as follows:

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank loans are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in “Finance costs” in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average method. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IR ERR M ()

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Income tax (Continued)
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and released to profit or loss by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the goods sold;

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(¢) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Share-based payments
The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Subject to the
shareholders’ agreement, the Company may also allot and issue
certain new shares in the Company for the purpose of providing
incentives for specific employees to remain with the Group and to
motivate them to strive for the further development and expansion
of the Group. Employees (including the co-chief executive) of the
Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the
date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances, further details of which are given in note 25 to the
financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at
the end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as of the beginning
and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Other employee benefits
Pension scheme
The employees of the subsidiaries in Mainland China are required
to participate in a defined central pension scheme managed by the
local municipal government of the areas in Mainland China in which
they operate. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of the relevant part of the payroll of these employees
to the central pension scheme. The Group has no obligation for the
payment of retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.
The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

In addition to the above, the Group also participates in a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme
(the “MPF Scheme™) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for its employees in Hong Kong. The Company’s
contributions have been capped to HK$1,500 per month since
1 June 2014 for each of its employees in Hong Kong and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Housing fund

Contributions to a defined contribution housing fund administered
by the Public Accumulation Funds Administration Centre in Mainland
China are charged to profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 FESHBEHE(E)

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
Directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria
is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products not exceeding five to
seven years, commencing from the date when the products are put
into commercial production.

3. Significant Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements require
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IR ERR M ()

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

3. Significant Accounting Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(@)

()

©

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill as of 31 December 2016 was
RMB58,632,000 (2015: RMB35,526,00). Further details are
given in note 15 to the financial statements.

Impairment of receivables

Impairment of receivables is estimated based on an assessment
of the recoverability of receivables. The assessment of
impairment of receivables involves the use of estimates and
judgements. An estimate for doubtful debts is made when
collection of the full amount under the invoice is no longer
probable, as supported by objective evidence using available
contemporary and historical information to evaluate the
exposure. Bad debts are written off as incurred. Where the
actual outcome or expectation in the future is different from
the original estimates, such differences will affect the carrying
value of receivables and thus the impairment loss in the period
in which such estimate is changed. There was no impairment
provision for receivables during the year (2015: Nil).

PRC corporate income tax (“PRC CIT”)

The Group's operating subsidiaries in Mainland China are
subject to PRC CIT. As a result of the fact that certain matters
relating to PRC CIT have not been confirmed by the relevant
local tax authorities, objective estimates based on currently
enacted tax laws, regulations and other related policies are
required in determining the provision for PRC CIT to be made.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact
the income tax expense and tax provision in the period in
which the differences realise. The carrying amounts of PRC CIT
payable as of 31 December 2016 was RMB4,777,000 (2015:
RMB2,733,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IR ERR M ()

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

3. Significant Accounting Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

)

(e

W)

2016 &R

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated,
or it will write off or write down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. The useful
lives of property, plant and equipment are disclosed in note 2.4
to the financial statements.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated cost to be
incurred to completion and disposal. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical experience
of selling products of a similar nature. Management reassesses
these estimates at the end of each reporting period. The
carrying amount of inventories as of 31 December 2016 was
RMB137,602,000 (2015: RMB46,563,000).

Research expenses

Research expenses are expensed in accordance with the
accounting policy for research and development costs in note
2.4 to the financial statements. Determining the amounts to be
expensed requires management to make judgements on the
research and development progress. Research costs charged to
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted
to RMB5,089,000 (2015: RMB3,028,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

Revenue and Operating Segment Information
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, net of
various types of government surcharges.

The Group's revenue and contribution to consolidated results are
mainly derived from its sales of Human Albumin Solution, antibiotics
and other pharmaceutical products focused on therapeutic areas
complementary to human plasma-based products and other fast-
growing categories in Mainland China, which is regarded as a single
reportable segment in a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s senior management
for purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment. In
addition, the principal non-current assets employed by the Group
are located in Mainland China. Accordingly, no segment analysis is
presented other than entity-wide disclosures.

Entity-wide disclosures

Information about products

The following table sets forth the total revenue from external
customers by product and the percentage of total revenue by
product during the year:
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2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T % AREBTIT %
Sales of goods: HEEY -
Human Albumin Solution AMBAER R 514,265 59.9 668,007 60.9
Antibiotics (Axetine, Medocef and 1A= (AR

Trifamox IBL) BiEN RIEFRER) 272,069 31.7 316,312 289

Others (Taurolite, TAD and EmCHER - TER
Esafosfina) TEE) 72,560 8.4 111,752 10.2
858,894 100.0 1,096,071 100.0

Geographical information Hhfz B

All external revenue of the Group during each of the two years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 was attributable to customers
located in Mainland China, the place of domicile of the Group's
operating entities. The Group’s non-current assets are all located in
Mainland China.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e RRMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

4. Revenue and Operating Segment Information
(Continued)
Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)
Information about major customers
Revenue from each of the major customers, which amounted to

LB AEMAKE(E)
FEEFEH

KEREERP IR (5AKEDN10% 3 IA

10% or more of the total revenue, is set out below: B)EHT -
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREETTT
Customer A ZEA 159,587 231,140
Customer B =FB * 180,310
Customer C EPC * -
Customer D ZFED * _
Customer E ZFE * _
o Less than 10% * D10%
5. Other Income and Gains H AU A R Wz
An analysis of other income and gains is as follows: BRAEMMA KRBT T
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBFT
Bank interest income SRITF BULA 655 390
Government grants* BB * 1,205 415
Foreign exchange gains, net bE W e 58 4,231 =
Interest income on an available-for-sale RE A HERERNFBUA
investment (note 19) (H17E19) 1,810 =
Fair value gains on financial assets at fair value DERFIEFEEFRBRIEAT
through profit or loss classified as held for B ENemEE A TEKE
trading 146 _
Others Hit 486 22
8,533 827

* There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to the
government grants.

* WEBWBSHEN KRB TR SRR ER -

6. Finance Costs b %N
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BHEM BRI
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®TT AREFTT
Interest on bank loans SRITEFF B 8,627 5,688
Interest on discounted bills receivable (note 18)  fEUKBLIRZEFI & (H13718) 560 1,417
9,187 7,105
A,
2016 R ZEERRBR AR

o gi BRIES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

7. Profit Before Tax 7. BRBIENGEF
The Group's profit before tax was arrived at after charging/(crediting): REEABRB AT R DA%, (FEA) A TS I8
‘G
2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
P s ARBTT ARBFT
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKA 754,326 943,564
Employee benefit expense EERAFAX
(including directors’ remuneration (BFEMIEES
as set out in note 8): FRElE S E) -
Wages and salaries IERE® 9,152 7,403
Welfare and other benefits R R E A R 25 1,078 516
Equity-settled share option expense LARR I 4 E B AR I 2 25 995 -
Pension scheme contributions RIS EEIHR
— Defined contribution fund —ERERES 1,080 974
Housing fund FEAES
— Defined contribution fund —TREHRFES 466 439
Total employee benefit expense EERMAX L% 12,771 9,332
Depreciation of items of property, M - B &
plant and equipment BBEBTE 12 5,554 5,185
Amortisation of intangible assets* B EERE 13 5,112 5,045
Research expenses HrRAZ 5,089 3,028
Operating lease rentals e 1,418 1,048
Foreign exchanges losses/(gains), net (&5 Eie, (Mas ) F5 (4,231) 11,167
Loss on disposal of an exclusive BB HER EE
distribution right (note 13) (Htat13) 1,435 =
Auditors’ remuneration TR ERAD 7 2,680 1,345
*  The amortisation of intangible assets for the year ended 31 December * EZE2016F12A31AILFENEFLEEREA
2016 of RMB5,044,000 (note 13) is included in “Cost of sales” in profit ER#5,044,0007T (FizE13) 5t AtBaa = a $4ERK
or loss. NI

o, &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e RRMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

8. Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Remuneration
and Five Highest Paid Employees
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
HKSE, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EERFETHRAEBHFMUARTER
E#HES
RETEMRAMES ETRA - BEDRAIEHIE
383(1)(a) * (b) ~ (QOR(MIERA R (BEEERNH
ERAPIE2HHE - FREFREBTHA
EHMMT

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREFTT
Fees e 565 -
Other emoluments: Hipfis -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R NEYEF 2,274 188
Equity-settled share option expense LA E R B IR 166 =
Pension scheme contributions RN FTEIHS
— Defined contribution fund —ERHFES 4 46
3,009 234
During the year, a co-chief executive officer was granted share FA - RBARRARERERT S - BEITIRAAE
options, in respect of his services to the Group, under the share MAEERENRBER THRIRE - E— 25

option scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out
in note 25 to the financial statements. The fair value of such options,
which has been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as of the date of grant and the amount included in
the financial statements for the current year is included in the above
directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
the year were as follows:

R BHRERMT25 - ZEENBEPEER
HERNBEEN A HEDRER L A HIEE - mat
AREEFHHRROSBEHN DAEERERTT
A BB BIRET -

(a) BAFHTES
FACNBILIFNTEENREMT ¢

2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

2015

Mr. Chow Siu Lui
Mr. Liu Wenfang
Mr. Wang Qing

PEELE
B3 kAE
EERAE

145 =
145 =
145 =

435 =

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year.

2016 &R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

8. Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Remuneration 8 EERIETHRAEHFMUBREZR

and Five Highest Paid Employees (Continued) SEHEE(8)
(b) Executive directors and the chief executive (b) HITEERFEITHAR
Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme
Fees in kind expense contributions Total
e 28 URELEN RBiKE
e REVEN  BRERX TEMRR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT AR®TT ARETT ARETR
2016 20165
Executive directors and WITEER
the chief executive: EX:6TEUN-
— Mr. Huang Xiangbin* — B - 1,554 - 4 1,558
~ Mr. Hao Jinghui* — BRI R A - 720 166 - 886
- Ms. Zhang Zhijie — RSt 130 - - - 130
130 2,274 166 4 2,574
2015 20154
Executive directors: WITES
— Mr. Huang Xiangbin —EEWEAE - 188 - 46 234
- Ms. Zhang Zhijie — RSt = = = = -
- 188 - 46 234
@ Mr. Hao Jinghui was appointed as the Company’s co-chief * MRIESEER2016F8 A 16 BEZ T AR
executive officer on 16 August 2016. Mr. Huang Xiangbin acts NEBEITBRAAE - NBRIBAEREE
as the co-chief executive officer of the Company following the RANRBBITBAAEE - FEW LR
appointment of Mr. Hao Jinghui as the co-chief executive officer EARRAEEITERAES - B20165F8A 16
of the Company with effect from 16 August 2016. BABAER -
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FABEEENENRBRNETM I
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. ZHE o

o, &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

8. Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Remuneration 8.

and Five Highest Paid Employees (Continued)

(c) Five highest paid employees
The five highest paid employees during the year included one
director and a co-chief executive officer (2015: one director),
details of whose remuneration are set out above. Details of the
remuneration during the year of the remaining three (2015:
four) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor a
chief executive of the Company as follows:

EERFTETHAEFMURTEER
aHES(E)
(0 hEESFES

FA AERSHEEERE—RESER—
BEEITHRAE(2015F - —RES) - &
HINFHISEN EXX o HER=4(2015%F :
MR REFHIEARREEREETRAR
BERFRNFHIESOT

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETT AR¥ETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ERRREDER 1,025 966
Pension scheme contributions RIRSEEIfER 71 238
Equity-settled share option expense AR E MBI R 292 =
1,388 1,204

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
band is as follows:

MeNFTIHBEENSSFHIFEERIFE
ZITHRABREHABMT

2016 2015

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z%1,000,000/8 7T

During the year, share options were granted to three non-
director and non-chief executive highest paid employees in
respect of their services to the Group, further details of which
are included in the disclosures in note 25 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as of the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the current year is included in
the above non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees’ remuneration disclosures.

2016 &R

RAFEE  stEARKERENRY - @
—EERFFEERFTRITRARRE
BT BEAE & — R AR B REN
A25HREERA - EEEBHANER
ERNEBBRENATFERR T AHE
E o REFAMBRRTHSESA L&
BEFFEENIFEETRABRERMN
WKEERA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR PR RAR M ()

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

Income Tax

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands.

Hong Kong profit tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% on the
Group's assessable profit derived from Hong Kong. The Group had
such profit during the year ended 31 December 2016 and therefore
provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made accordingly.

The provision for PRC CIT is based on the respective PRC CIT
rates applicable to the subsidiaries located in Mainland China as
determined in accordance with the relevant income tax rules and
regulations of Mainland China for the year. Except for certain
subsidiaries domiciled in the PRC (the “PRC subsidiaries”) that are
entitled to a preferential income tax rate, other PRC subsidiaries are
subject to the PRC CIT rate of 25% during the two years ended 31
December 2016.

The major components of income tax expense are as follows:

i

RENSES REBEARH SRR
AEBBAGMHESHEREBEBRESNE
fAFSH: -

AEEREBEBNERNA B IZBBH G
E16.5% 5 - NEENEE20165F12A31H
IEFESSERFE - AEEEFEHER
B -

R EMSHBREDREZFATE NGRS
PRSTLAR A SRR P RE 20 B i R 170 Fp B P 3t
BRBIMHEDEMEHTEE - #1E2016
FI12A3MAEMESFE - FRRAREEMOET
MEBAR([HEMNBAR ) BEEZEEEMSH
RSN - E i BB A R AR D B XS
THER25% T o

FERMX T BARBAMT

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AREETTT

Current tax: BNEATRIE -
Income tax in Mainland China for the year R B R A R PSR 5,961 11,021
Income tax in Hong Kong for the year BBFERNEM 1,268 6,176
Charge for the year FREA 7,229 17,197

. _ SR u (H Y o=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

9. Income Tax (Continued)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the applicable tax rate for companies within the Group to the tax
expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

Fri8®i(48)

AR BT 2 A A B E R E R R R BLAT
S8 PR BB T SR B R S BRI S
HERIT -

2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
Profit before tax M A BT A 25,566 86,638
Added: disallowed expenses incurred by the A RA BB
Company* AR * 14,012 14,917
Profit before tax generated by Hong Kong BB NP BB A R
and PRC subsidiaries FFr 2 4 B BR T AL A 39,578 101,555
Tax at the respective statutory tax rates BMEBEEMRAENTBIIA
— PRC subsidiaries at 25% — R E A AiR25% 5t & 9,593 16,873
- Hong Kong subsidiary at 16.5% —BBNBARIR16.5%H 199 5,118
Lower tax rate for certain subsidiaries (note (a)) EHTHE A B AKX
(B15t@) (4,977) (6,668)
Expenses not deductible for tax I b 1,233 1,349
Income not subject to tax BERBIUA (447) =
Tax losses not recognised AEERTIEEE 1,628 524
7,229 17,197

* Expenses incurred by the Company during each of the two years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 mainly consisted of listing fees,
consultancy service fees and foreign exchange differences incurred by
the Company. These expenses are not expected to be tax deductible.

Notes:

(@) Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals is entitled to a preferential tax rate
of 15% according to the “Western Development Policy” until 31
December 2020.

From year 2015 to year 2017, the income tax rate of the Tibet
Autonomous Region has changed from 15% to 9%. Accordingly, Linzhi
Ziguang is entitled to the 9% preferential tax rate for the year ended
31 December 2016.

2016 &R

@ HE2016F K2015F 12 A3 B IR EFES
F o ANABMEANRSZESBERNQRMES
WEMER  FHARSEARELZSE - Z25H

XEHRATAMHAL

Bt

(@) REIABAFEBER] WIIBREEEXES

15%MERFE - HE2020F12831H -

2015 E 20175 81 - AR B REMTEHE
RKEHIS%EE HBI% - AL - HE2016512
A31BLEFE  MEEXBEZEI%EERR

iy

"
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR PR RAR M ()

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

9.

Income Tax (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)  Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations of the PRC, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement has been effective from 1 January 2008 and applied
to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The withholding tax rate for the
Group is 10%.

As of 31 December 2016, no deferred tax liability has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiary
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the Directors, it is
not probable that this subsidiary will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future after their assessment based on factors which
included the dividend policy, the level of working capital required for
the Group’s operations and the expansion of the Group’s operations
in Mainland China. The aggregate amount of temporary differences as
associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB188,224,000 (2015: RMB160,176,000).

10. Dividends

11.

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
o
O o)o

9. FEBL(E)
Hiat : (40)

(b)

RABR BTSRRI R ER + SR B RAR 3L
HISNE 1 E AN E R A IR B EU10%
HTFERL © 5% FE E2008F1 A1 BE#EAER - I
EAR2007F 12 A31HEMEF - M EA
BONEIR A E AT Rl A R B AR M S ek - A
AIHARBEHTENRE - REENBENH XA
10% °

HZE2016F12A318 » YERAEBERFRHA
HRK 32 KB B A Rl PR By AR BB BRI P B0 T8
MBRERELERIEEE - EFRA  ERRERK
R AEEEBAENEEESKERAERE
AFREAMOEBERZEITIGEE - ZMBR
AR AI AR K ATRED IR B BAAF - RAHLEE
R A B AR ENEREER
EA AR %188,224,0007T (20154 : AR
160,176,0007T) ERELE TR HE & ©

10. K&

RMB’'000
ARBFT

Interim-HK$0.0033 (2015: not applicable) per ordinary share & BiE A% & 3@ A%0.0033/8 7T
(20155 : TNEA) 4,555

The interim dividend has been paid out from the Company’s share
premium account.

At a meeting of the Directors held on 27 March 2017, the Directors
resolved not to pay final dividends to shareholders (2015 final
dividend: Not applicable).

Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ordinary
Equity Holders of the Company

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015 is based on the profit for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,535,776,448
(2015: 1,200,000,000) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share for
the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 as no diluting events
occurred during the current and the prior years.

\ &7

at
o

11.

FHIR S ERARRRMAERIKN

BEOMN2017FE3A27TEBITNESS S LS
N AR AR HIR B (20155 R EFRL 8.« il

F) e

RRABREBRBEABRGERER

HZE2016F M2015F 12 A31 B ItFEMNER
EREF  RERARGLBRIFEABLE
EmF - RERDEITE B MNETIHH
1,535,776,4480% (20154 : 1,200,000,000% )5t

st
=
A

ARIREEMBAFEYELRBES At
HZE20165F R2015F12 A3 B ILEENERE
KRB EFE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

12. Property, Plant and Equipment 12. 1% - BMERRE

Leasehold Construction
land and Office Motor  in progress
buildings equipment vehicles (“CIP”) Total
HELHEK WAE HEIR
gF R AE ((ERIE) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETE ARETR ARETRT ARETT ARETR
31 December 2016 20165128318
Cost: A
At 1 January 2016 201651718 91,417 3,729 10,005 - 105,151
Additions NE - 399 7,084 4,525 12,008
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 27)  UEE—FSH B AR
(H15227) - 336 - - 336
Transferred from CIP BETRIRE 1,153 - - (1,153) -
At 31 December 2016 #2016F12A8318 92,570 4,464 17,089
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHFE -
At 1 January 2016 R2016%1818 3,233 1312 3,684
Provided for the year (note 7) ENBEME7) 2,274 760 2,520
At 31 December 2016 #2016 128318 5,507 2,072 6,204
Net carrying amount: ARERE
At 1 January 2016 »20165181H 88,184 2,417 6,321
At 31 December 2016 720165124310 87,063 2,392 10,885
31 December 2015 20155128318
Cost: B
At 1 January 2015 #2015%1 818 91,417 3,409 8,312
Additions NE - 254 1,693
Acquisition of subsidiaries YeEEhE R A) = 66 -
At 31 December 2015 #2015 12A31H 91,417 3,729 10,005
Accumulated depreciation: REHE
At 1 January 2015 #2015F1 718 931 582 1,531
Provided for the year FREE 2,302 730 2,153
At 31 December 2015 2015512 A31H 3,233 1,312 3,684
Net carrying amount: BREHE :
At 1 January 2015 R2015F1 818 90,486 2,827 6,781
At 31 December 2015 #2015 12A31H 88,184 2,417 6,321
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

12. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

(@) As of 31 December 2016, the Group’s buildings with net
carrying amounts of approximately RMB14,090,000 (2015:
RMB11,027,000), were erected on the land where the Group is
still in the process of applying for the land use rights certificate.
The Directors are of the view that the Group is entitled to
lawfully and validly occupy and use the above-mentioned land.
The Directors are also of the opinion that the aforesaid matter
will not have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
position as of 31 December 2016.

(b) As of 31 December 2016, the Group’s buildings with net
carrying amounts of RMB76,145,000 (2015: RMB77,089,000)
were pledged to a bank to secure the bank loans (note 23 (b)).

() The Group’s land included in property, plant and equipment
is situated in Mainland China and held under medium lease
terms.

SR u (H Y o=
1 46 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited g
O o oo

12. 9% - BERZREB(E)

(a)

(b)

(c)

R20165F12 8318 » NEBEREEFEYD
A R #14,090,000 7t (20154 : AR
11,027,0007T) VEF RN A S B HF
T AEEN LI EERALTEE
BEGEREBNARER L+ - &
ENRE - L EEHAEENR2016F12
A3BMEBHRR TS B TMEATE -

R2016F 128318 » AEBEREEEEAS
AR #76,145,000 7 (20154 : AR
77,089,0007T) HIEFEHEA T —MHR1T -
ERIRITERMER(M5E23(0)) °

SAME - BERRENAEE AR
hEAL - P HBBEORE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR PR RAR M ()

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

13. Intangible Assets

13. BEEE

Exclusive

distribution
Software rights* Total
Eg BRGHRE et
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBETTT ARMET T ARET T

Cost at 1 January 2016, 20161 A 1BIZMKA -

net of accumulated amortisation kR REHEEE 30 40,348 40,378
Additions NE 372 - 372
Disposals BE - (3,184) (3,184)
Amortisation provided during the year 4 A1 S5 848 (H327)

(note 7) (68) (5,044) (5,112)
At 31 December 2016 2016412 A31H 334 32,120 32,454
At 31 December 2016: M2016512H318 -

Cost B AN 403 41,298 41,701

Accumulated amortisation ST (69) (9,178) (9,247)
Net carrying amount BRMERE 334 32,120 32,454
Cost at 1 January 2015, 7201541 51 BIRAA

net of accumulated amortisation OBk RETEEGE = = -
Additions INE 20 45,392 45,412
Acquisition of subsidiaries L BB S A R 11 = 11
Amortisation provided during the year 4 (N5 B 5 (1) (5,044) (5,045)
At 31 December 2015 72015412 831H 30 40,348 40,378
At 31 December 2015: 20159128318 :

Cost B 31 45,392 45,423

Accumulated amortisation REHE#E (M (5,044) (5,045)
Net carrying amount BREVFE 30 40,348 40,378

@ It represented the purchased exclusive distribution rights by the Group EAREEIURSRES G ARK45,392,0007T

from Vast Surplus, a company controlled by Mr. Huang Xiangbin, in
respect of the respective distribution rights for Taurolite, TAD and
Esafosfina for nine years since 1 January 2015 in Mainland China, at
a cash consideration in aggregate of RMB45,392,000. These exclusive
distribution rights are amortised on a straight-line basis over the useful

life of nine years.

As of 31 December 2016, the net carrying amount of the distribution
right to TAD was RMB3,184,000. Given the longer-than-expected
renewal period and the uncertainty in the renewal process in respect
of the import drug license for TAD, the Group agreed to cease the
distribution agreement of TAD with Trendful Development Limited, an
independent third party with a compensation of RMB1,749,000 and
hence caused a loss amounted to RMB1,435,000 (note 7) recorded as

“other expenses” during the year ended 31 December 2016.

2016 &R

MEHEEWEEEHREREEBRCHEE - R
AEERENY RREKEEESERTERLA
20154F1 A1 BTN FHLEHERE - ZFBRE
SHAEARBR B AR BB IR N\ AF 0] {5 FA 4R HAME B -

R2016512A31H - REFLEENERDFEAR
AR ¥3,184,0007T ° HAFREF B Mt O & a] 35
NEEHREHRESEBEATHETEE - MK
SEREBEHBEESARK,749,0007T 8 &7
FE=FEEERAMR A AR R HER®
W E B REZE2016512 A31 8B I FE s
B8 AR % 1,435,0007T (M 5E7) ABRPIVE E A
Fx] o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

14. Payments in Advance 14. FERRKIE

2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFTT
In respect of-: LA IR B By7E 1T 30H -
Prepayments made in relation to property, plant HYE - R MREEES
and equipment TEfTFRIR 99,858 69,427
15. Goodwill 15. B8
RMB’000
ARBFT
Cost at 1 January 2015, net of accumulated impairment M2015F1 A1 BIREA - MR EFRIE =
Acquisition of subsidiaries WM B A &) 35,526
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2015 72015412 A31 BEA A R AREFE 35,526
At 31 December 2015: MR2015% 128318 -
Cost R 35,526
Accumulated impairment 2EHRAE =
Net carrying amount BREDFE 35,526
Cost at 1 January 2016, net of accumulated impairment MK20165F1 A1 BIREA - MR RFRIE 35,526
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 27) W B AT (MaE27) 23,106
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2016 72016912 A31 B KA K BREFE 58,632
At 31 December 2016: R20165F12A318 -
Cost R 58,632
Accumulated impairment 2EHRAE =
Net carrying amount AR FE 58,632

Goodwill is acquired through the business combination of Linzhi
Ziguang Group on 31 March 2015 and the business combination
of Qingdao Ruichi on 22 December 2016. Goodwill acquired
through business combinations is allocated to the CGU which is the

Pharmaceutical Product CGU.

. A SR u (H Y o=
148 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
o o
O o)o

EEE BN RN EEMN 201543 A31 BER
S5 R EBIREN20165F12 822 B EKA 6
FREL - BREBEHBENIEEIRERS
EABEN - AERIBSEEEN -

Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

15. Goodwill (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

The recoverable amount of the group of CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections which
is based on financial forecast approved by the Company’s Directors
covering a period of five years. The discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 20.1%, which is determined by reference to the
average rates for similar industry and the business risk of the relevant
business units. Cash flows beyond the five-year period were assumed
to be stable.

The following describes each key assumption on which management
has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing
of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross margin
achieved in the year immediately before the budget year, increased
for expected market development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific
risks relating to the relevant unit.

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with external
information sources.

2016 &R

15. BHE(E)

AR E R

HREEE EAARIN AR E S B RAERNA
RAEFHENAFRUBRAFLNR SRR
BRZEREEEET - ReRERAMRA
BRI /20.1% * LTSS E BN THEN T
bR RARBAERS B X AR LB © LA
RS RERRRAIETE -

ERER/ETHEREIAKFIERRERA
FrIBH) B IAE 2T

BHENX - REEEREEMNXAIEEEEN
AEENERBEEFEN —FMASHFHEER
KRBTSRI -

BRI —FRARE IR R BTATLL R - RREREEN
W R BV E R

BT E2RENEERINLVERIRIREFR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

16. Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

16. AN IR » RER A EWFIER

2016 2015
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
gz AR¥TT AREFIT
Current portion mENE D
Prepayments in respect of: LA IE A BFET500E -
— purchase of inventories —BEFE 21,123 657
— consultation service fee — B HARGSE (a) 5,443 4,890
— technical service fee — TR IE & - 3,429
— deferred listing fee —RE LTS - 3,697
— others —H 469 551
Deposits e 1,748 1,158
Other receivables in respect of: LA IR B B E M Y E
— value-added tax recoverable — DU B E R 36,049 21,257
— purchase rebate —EBERrH 874 -
— staff advances —BI#K 297 163
— others —H 1,112 =
67,115 35,802
Non-current portion ERBIE D
Deposit in respect of: KUTIEE S -
- CIP —TEETRE (b) 3,000 3,000
70,115 38,802
Notes: Hist -

(@  The balance as of 31 December 2016 primarily consists of (i) a
prepayment of RMB4,000,000 made to an independent third party, in
relation to the service for assisting in the registration of certain products
in the national insurance catalogue, which will be fully refunded if the
products failed to be registered in the national insurance catalogue
by 31 December 2017; (ii) a prepayment of RMB2,019,000 made to
an independent third party, in relation to consultation services on the
market share expansion of the Group’s pharmaceutical products and
incorporating the Group’s sales centre in Shanghai covering the period
from 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017, of which RMB1,010,000 has been
released to profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2016.

(b)  The balances represent a deposit paid to an independent third party in
respect of the construction of the Group's warehouse.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial

assets included in the above relate to receivables for which there
was no recent history of default.

. A SR u (H Y o=
1 50 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
o o
O o)o

(@ HZE2016F12A31MBMNAEHEZBIEOH T
REBERBREZPELE TERNRS MRS
3= AR 5 E AR 4,000,0007T ¢ fHE G
HZE2017F 12 A31 HARENEBRRR B 8H &
i AEENFESEERE  ()5h2016F7A
1HZE2017F6 A30A M A ER A S @B R
THEHERR LSRRI AEBEHEFOHNHER
AR5 MBS 58 = TE 1 5B A R %2,019,000
7T Hh AR1,010,000TE T AE E 20164
12A318IEFEMER -

(b) HHERAEEEERZRN T —RBILE=H
BE -

P EESEBRRRE - St A LR AR R
BESIIEIE R SRR EERAR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AL
WIN

BB IR (E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

17.

18.

Inventories
At the end of the reporting period, all inventories represent
purchased goods of pharmaceutical products.

17. 7€

RBEMR - FIEFRECRBERED

Trade and Bills Receivables . ESERREREREE
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETT AREETTT
Trade receivables = e e 11,751 =
Bills receivable U 8,117 77,186
19,868 77,186

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on full
payment in advance of delivery either in cash or in bills receivable
accepted by a bank, except for certain customers which are granted
credit terms ranging from 30 days to 60 days. The Group maintains
strict control over the settlements of its outstanding receivables
and has a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing and unsecured.

Based on the invoice date, all trade receivables of the Group as of
31 December 2016 were aged within two months and were neither
past due or impaired.

As of 31 December 2016, the Group discounted certain bills
receivable accepted by banks in the PRC, with a carrying amount
in aggregate of RMB94,687,270 (2015: RMB201,301,000) (the
“Derecognised Bills”). The Derecognised Bills have been accepted by
reputable banks in the PRC like China Construction Bank, Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China, China Merchants Bank, Bank of
Communications, Bank of China and Bank of Chengdu and have a
maturity within two months at the end of the reporting period. In
accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the
holders of the Derecognised Bills have a right of recourse against the
Group if the PRC banks default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In
the opinion of the Directors, the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly,
it has derecognised the full carrying amounts of the Derecognised
Bills and the associated advances on discounting.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REIERERMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

18.

19.

Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued)

The maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted cash
flows to repurchase these Derecognised Bills is equal to their face
amounts. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair values of the
Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills are not
significant.

During the year, the Group has recognised interest expenses of
RMB560,000 (2015: RMB1,417,000) (note 6) on discounted bills
receivable. No gains or losses were recognised from the Continuing
Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively. The discounting
has been made evenly throughout the year.

Avaiable-For-Sale Investment

The available-for-sale investment represents a one-year fund of
HK$120,000,000 (equivalent to RMB103,500,000), issued by
Shenzhen City William Financial Holding Limited, an independent
third party, on 13 July 2016. The fixed return rate of the Fund is
3.6% per annum based on the stable income from investment
portfolio including bonds, reverse repurchase bonds, bank deposits,
negotiable certificates of deposit, exchange market funds, other
financial products which is having low risk profile with high
liquidity. The Fund is redeemable by the Group at any time after
the subscription upon giving a written notice of not less than five
days in advance of the redemption. Therefore, the above investment
is designated as an available-for-sale debt instrument. Pursuant
to the underlying contract, the Fund is principal guaranteed upon
redemption or maturity. As of 31 December 2016, the Group's
Fund with a carrying amount of HK$124,423,000 (equivalent to
RMB111,261,000) (2015: not applicable) was measured at fair value.

During the year, the accrued interest income on the Group’s
available-for-sale investment recognised as “other income” in profit
or loss amounted to HK$2,024,000 (equivalent to RMB1,810,000)
(2015: not applicable).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

20. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged Bank 20. R&RBRESZEYRSIEFRITEL

Balances
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREETTT
Cash and bank balances Ba MIRTTA 8 154,079 60,206
Less: Pledged bank balances* A BERRI TR (52,029) (22,068)
Cash and cash equivalents HehBEeEEY 102,050 38,138

* The balances represent time deposits with original maturity of less than
three months pledged for issuance of letters of credit for the purchase

of pharmaceutical products.

The Group's cash and bank balances at the end of the reporting

period can be further analysed as follows:

* RBERIHBATEB=EA  ABEBEHEN

BB B T KR R0 E IR -

RBEMR - AEENRE MRITHERTE—F

DU :

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT

Denominated in RMB BAAREEEHE 100,945 32,683
Denominated in US$ LAZETTAHE 36,467 27,062
Denominated in HK$ LA TTATHE 16,251 113
Denominated in Euro LABRTTEHE 416 348
154,079 60,206

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange

business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for the period of three
months, and earn interest at the respective deposit rates. The bank
balances and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks

with no recent history of default.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

21. Trade Payables 21.

An aged analysis of trade payables as of the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

B 5% BANRE
REEHR - BHRMNFBENER A HRER
DT

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBFT

Within three months =EAR 45,832 62,793

Trade payables of the Group are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled within 90 days.

AEENE S ENFA/S T ERBEROR
MAEF

22. Other Payables 22. HtIEN IR
2016 2015
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k=g ARET T AREFT
Payables related to: BRAATIE B BIFERFIE -
Payroll and welfare payable R TIE RAER 1,219 1,485
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB N&E 1,399 1,428
Intangible assets mEEE 60 -
Deposits received BiliES (a) 54,362 51,349
Acquisition of subsidiaries g1 0)=0NG] (b) 2,100 27,000
Consulting and professional fees BANEEER 1,296 1,300
Tax other than income tax PG TLRR N B I8 372 794
Other payables Hib e FIE 926 776
61,734 84,132
Notes: iz

(@)  The balances represent refundable deposits received from the Group's
distributors according to the sales contracts in order to guarantee their
performance under the distribution agreement.

(b)  The balance as of 31 December 2016 represents the remaining
consideration payable in respect of the acquisition of 100% equity
interest in Qindgdao Ruichi from two independent third party
individuals.

The balance as of 31 December 2015 represents the remaining
consideration payable in respect of the acquisition of a 100% equity
interest in Linzhi Ziguang Group from an independent third party,
which has been fully settled by cash during the year ended 31
December 2016.

All other payables of the Group are non-interest-bearing and
unsecured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

23. Interest-Bearing Bank Loans

23. GFERITER

2016 2015
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AR¥T ARET T
Bank loans: RITER

Secured and guaranteed BEEEEER (a) - 15,000
Secured BHEA (b) 35,000 46,915
Guaranteed BHER (0 110,000 20,000
Unsecured 44K (d) 20,000 =
165,000 81,915

Bank loans repayable: JEERIRITER :
Within one year —FR 165,000 81,915

Notes: Bt

(@)  The balances as of 31 December 2015 represent one-year bank loans
granted by Bank of Chengdu to the Group, which bear interest at fixed
rates ranging from 5.98% to 6.30% per annum and are guaranteed by
Mr. Huang Xiangbin and secured by the Group’s buildings. Such loans
were repaid by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2016.

(b)  The balance as of 31 December 2016 represents a one-year bank loan
granted by Bank of Chengdu to the Group bearing a fixed interest rate
of 5.22% per annum, which is secured by the Group’s buildings (note
12).

(c)  The balances as of 31 December 2016 consist of (i) a one-year bank
loan of RMB100,000,000 granted by Ping An Bank to the Group
bearing a fixed interest of 5.22% per annum, which is guaranteed
by Sichuan Kelun Pharmaceuticals Trading Co., Ltd. (“Kelun
Pharmaceuticals”), an independent third party at nil consideration; and
(ii) a one-year bank loan of RMB10,000,000 granted by Bank of China
to the Group bearing an interest rate of 2.01% above the one-year
China Inter Bank Offered Rate (“CIBOR) which is guaranteed by Kelun
Pharmaceuticals.

(d)  The balance as of 31 December 2016 represents six-months bank loans
of RMB20,000,000 granted by Bank of China to the Group bearing
interest rates of 1.58% above the one-year CIBOR.

Management has assessed that the fair values of the above interest-

bearing bank loans approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

2016 &R
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31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

24. Share Capital 24. IR
Shares &)
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Authorised: JETE
3,800,000,000 (31 December 2015: 3,800,000,000/%
3,800,000,000) ordinary shares of (2015128318 :
HK$0.0001 each 3,800,000,000/% ) &%
E{E0.0001 B TH) & BAR 304 304
Issued and fully paid: EEITREE :
1,615,220,000 (31 December 2015: 1,615,220,000/%
1,200,000,000) ordinary shares of (201512 A31H
HK$0.0001 each 1,200,000,0004% ) &%
E{E0.0001 B TH) & BAR 130 95
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as RARRAZEHHENAT
follows:
Number of Nominal value of
ordinary shares  ordinary shares
ZEREE ZERMEE
Notes RMB’000
BitEE ARETR
At 1 January 2016 7201641818 1,200,000,000 95
Issuance of new shares BITHRD (a) 400,000,000 34
Issuance of new shares BITHAR D (b) 15,220,000 1
At 31 December 2016 2016512 A31H 1,615,220,000 130
Notes: Hiat -

(@  In connection with the listing of the Company’s shares on the HKSE
on 10 March 2016, 400,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.0001
each were issued at a price of HK$0.8 per share for a total cash
consideration, before listing expenses, of HK$320,000,000. The
proceeds of HK$40,000, representing the par value, have been
credited to the Company's share capital and the remaining proceeds of
HK$319,960,000 have been credited to the share premium account.

(b) On 7 April 2016, 15,220,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each
were issued via the partial exercise of the over-allotment option at a
price of HK$0.8 per share for a total consideration of HK$12,176,000.
The proceeds of HK$2,000, representing the par value, have been
credited to the Company’s share capital and the remaining proceeds of
HK$12,174,000 have been credited to the share premium account.
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31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

25. Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the development of
the Group. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme are
employees (whether full time or part time) of the Company, its
subsidiaries or any entity in which the Group holds any equity
interest (the “Invested Entity”), including directors (including
independent non-executive directors) and senior management of the
Company, its subsidiaries and any Invested Entity. The Share Option
Scheme was approved by the Company’s shareholders on 1 February
2016 and became effective upon the Listing and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from 1
February 2016.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is an
amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the Share
Option Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
15 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a vesting period of one to three years and ends
on a date which is not later than six years from the date of offer of
the share options or the expiry date of the Share Option Scheme, if
earlier.
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31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

25. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 25. FBARREETEI(E)
The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Directors, BBRENTTEENKESET - ETNER TS
but may not be less than the higher of (i) the HKSE closing price of FHESE - ()VADTIRMOAEREZL R L
the Company's shares on the date of offer of the share options; and EEBZTRRTE  R)VARRRHBEEEZY)
(i) the average HKSE closing price of the Company's shares for the BERIAER 5 HER BB AT RME -

five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to FERR D A T35 A AR SR IRR A =
vote at shareholders’ meetings. ERRER o
The following share options were outstanding under the Share LA BF AN E AR IR BT 211 TR A BB AR AEE -

Option Scheme during the year:

Weighted
average Number of
exercise price options
InFEFIITEE BREZE
HKS$ per Share ‘000
BRRHET T4
As of 1 January 2016 7K2016F181H - -
Granted during the year* FRRH* 0.568 30,000
As of 31 December 2016 2016512 A31H 0.568 30,000
*  0On 21 September 2016, 30,000,000 share options were granted by the *  R2016F9A21H - ARAERARRETA
Company at the exercise price of HK$0.568 per share to certain of the BERZ2EEHAEEERMELNER - RIR
eligible participants of the Company in respect of their contributions to MRS BIIR TR (B T AR0.568 B T M F i
the Group’s development under the Share Option Scheme. 30,000,00017 HE A& HE ©
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options R2016F 12 A31H M ARITHEEREMNITEE X
outstanding as at 31 December 2016 are as follows: FTEERLAT

Number of Exercise price

options per share Exercise period
BRERE BRITEE 1TES
‘000 HK$
15 BT
12,000 0.568 From 21 September 2017 to 20 September 2022
2017%9H21H%E202249H20H
9,000 0.568 From 21 September 2018 to 20 September 2022
201849 821H%E202249820H
9,000 0.568 From 21 September 2019 to 20 September 2022

201959H21H%E202249H20H

30,000

o, &
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31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

25. Share Option Scheme (Continued)
The fair value of the share options granted during the year was
HK$6,485,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB5,578,000) or
HK$0.22 each (equivalent to approximately RMBO0.19), of which
the Group recognised a share option expense of HK$1,157,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB995,000) during the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: not applicable).

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the
year under the Share Option Scheme was estimated as of the date
of grant, using a binomial model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The following
table lists the inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) Nil
Expected volatility (%) 48.75
Risk-free interest rate (%) 0.72

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily
be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 30,000,000
share options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue
of 30,000,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$3,000 and share premium of at least
HK$17,037,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 30,000,000 share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 1.9% of the Company’s
shares in issue as of that date.
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26. Reserves
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(a) Share premium account

The application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the
constitutional documents and the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium is distributable as dividend
on the condition that the Company is able to pay its debts
when they fall due in the ordinary course of business at the
time the proposed dividend is to be paid.

(b) Contributed surplus
The contributed surplus represents the aggregate nominal
amount of the paid-up capital of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals
attributable to the owners of the Company.

(c) Statutory reserve
In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and the
respective articles of association of subsidiaries domiciled
in Mainland China, each of the PRC subsidiaries is required
to allocate 10% of its profit after tax, as determined in
accordance with PRC GAAP, to the statutory surplus reserve (the
“SSR") until such reserve reaches 50% of its registered capital.

As Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals, Sinco Shanghai and Qingdao
Yusheng are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises, allocation
to the SSR is not required. According to the Rules for the
Implementation of Foreign-funded Enterprise Law of the PRC
and articles of association of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals,
Sinco Shanghai and Qingdao Yusheng, they are required to
allocate 10% of their profit after tax in accordance with PRC
GAAP to the statutory reserve fund (the “SRF”) until such
reserve reaches 50% of their respective registered capital.

The SSR and the SRF are non-distributable except in the
event of liquidation and subject to certain restrictions set out
in the relevant PRC regulations. They can be used to offset
accumulated losses or capitalised as paid-up capital.
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26. Reserves (Continued)
(d) Share option reserve
The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments
in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to the share premium account when the related
options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits
should the related options expire or be forfeited.

27. Business Combination

On 22 December 2016, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in
Qingdao Ruichi from two independent third party individuals, namely
Ms. Dou Yiging and Mr. Liu Zhengiang. Qingdao Ruichi is primarily
engaged in the sale of pharmaceutical products. The acquisition was
made as part of the Group'’s strategy to enrich its product portfolios
and expand its pharmaceutical product portfolios in Mainland
China. The total purchase consideration for the acquisition was
RMB37,730,000, of which RMB35,630,000 was paid during the year
ended 31 December 2016 and the remaining RMB2,100,000 will be
paid 180 days following the completion of such acquisition.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Qingdao
Ruichi as of the date of acquisition were as follows:

26.

27.

E(E)

(d) Bt
BREFRBEESROERRITERBRE
MRFE  E—TFBERMBRERME2.4
BRI RERON RO ST BERAM
At o e B IE R AR T (A
EREER - SR B RS AR B B S
RN E R G A o

¥%a0f

M2016F 128220 - A"EBEEMEBILE=FH
AABE— BT RERSTERES SRS
gt - SEWMMEENEEREEES - A H
WEBARERTEANEEERMAS RIEX
ELEEHRIE—E D c WEERERARKE
37,730,0007T © H A A R#35,630,0007T 2 7%
HZE2016F 12 A31HLEFESN - BEARE
2,100,000 T8 7AH RIS 72K 18 180K A SZ 1+ ©

R RS Smt ] EAEERAENQT
(ERUNNE

Fair value
recognised on

acquisition

153

BN

AFEE

RMB’'000

AREFIT

Property, plant and equipment (note 12) M - B RREHE12) 336
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSFED 2,942
Trade receivables B 5 W RIA 11,751
Other receivables H b pe kI8 5,362
Inventories FE 43,175
Trade payables 2 N FRIE (40,125)
Advance from customers B (1,827)
Other payables H A fETRIE (6,408)
Tax payable FERI 1A (582)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATES| R R #RI A E R EATE 14,624
Goodwill on acquisition (note 15) W E AR E (Mt 15) 23,106
37,730

2016 &R
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31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

27. Business Combination (Continued) 27. ¥%E6(E)
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
U
Xy
AFEE
RMB’000
AREFT
Satisfied by: LATRB G R AT
Cash "4 35,630
Other payables H At R FRIE 2,100
37,730
An analysis of the cash flow in respect of the acquisition of a WE—RINBARMNERRSRESD T
subsidiary is as follows:
RMB’000
ARBFT
Cash consideration ReNRE (35,630)
Cash and bank balances acquired FrisIR & RARITAEER 2,942
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents BEekBLSEYRL FE 32,688
Since the acquisition, Qingdao Ruichi contributed nil to the Group's BUEEIAR - EEnMRE RN EEEHZE2016
revenue and the consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December F12A3MBEFEMKRE RS ZMELER ©
2016.
Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year, BBEBEHRENET - IAEERBZE
the revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the year 201612 A31 HIEFE MR A KiaF 5 RIfE A
ended 31 December 2016 would have been RMB988,984,000 and AR#988,984,0007T &2 A R #19,661,0007T °

RMB19,661,000, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e RRMEE(E)

31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

28. Operating Lease Arrangements
As lessee
The Group leases certain of its office properties under an operating
lease arrangement. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms
ranging from one to three years. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group had total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

28. EEBIRH
TEREMEA
ARBREEETORIRESTHOME - 1)
$AMATAN T —E=F - NIREHFK - &%
EIRE T AT AR SRR BB R SR A E R
EREWT -

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFTT
Within one year —FR 925 216
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_ERAFN(BREEEMT) 1,121 542
2,046 758
29. Commitments 29. &IE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the REBERBRE AR ERFELT -
reporting period:
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTFT
Contracted, but not provided for: 2 ETAB KRB -
— Construction of a warehouse —EREE 2,265 37,514

30. Related Party Transactions
(a) During the year, the Group had the following material

30. BERRS
(a) RER - AREBEHEA F5EEENETH

transactions with related parties: EVO R
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTFT
Bank loans guaranteed by R E I ST A R R A
Mr. Huang Xiangbin RITER - 15,000
Purchases of exclusive distribution rights FEE AT e
Vast Surplus Mgz - 45,392
0
2016 3R FERA T RBR AR

?.
(@] &?
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30. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group

30. BEARSZ (&)

(b) AEBEEZEEASHEHN

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AR¥ETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ERRREDER 2,274 937
Pension scheme contributions RIRE B 4 109
Equity-settled share option expense AR E MBI R 166 =
2,444 1,046

31. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies

The financial assets of the Group mainly include cash and bank
balances, pledged bank balances, trade and bills receivables,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss classified as held
for trading, available-for-sale investment and other receivables,
which arise directly from its operations. Financial liabilities of the
Group mainly include trade and other payables and interest-bearing
bank loans.

Risk management is carried out by the finance department which
is led by the Group's executive directors. The Group’s finance
department identifies and evaluates financial risks in close co-
operation with the Group's operating units. The main risks arising
from the Group'’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s financial risk management policy seeks to ensure that
adequate resources are available to manage the above risks and to
create value for its shareholders. The Directors regularly review these
risks and they are summarised below.

. A SR u (H Y o=
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e AEENERABIERREE S REMEN
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31. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to the
Group's bank deposits, available-for-sale investment and interest-
bearing bank loans. The interest rates and terms of repayment of
interest-bearing bank loans are disclosed in note 23 to the financial
statements.

The Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk exposure arising
from all of its interest-bearing loans through the use of floating rates
or a mix of floating and fixed rates. The Group also holds certain
borrowings at floating interest rate so as to manage part of the
fair value interest rate risk. In addition, the Group has not used any
interest rate swaps to hedge against interest rate risk.

As of 31 December 2016, floating interest rate borrowings
accounted for about 18% (2015: 21%) of the Group’s borrowings,
and fixed interest rate borrowings accounted for about 82% (2015:
79%) of the Group’s borrowings. Management would adjust the
proportion of floating rate borrowings based on changes in the
market interest rates to reduce the significant impact of the interest
rate risk.

If there would be a general increase/decrease in the market interest
rates by one percentage point, with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s consolidated pre-tax profit would have decreased/
increased by approximately RMB1,650,000 (2015: RMB819,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2016, and there would be no
impact on other components of the consolidated equity, except for
retained earnings, of the Group. The sensitivity analysis above has
been determined assuming that the change in market interest rates
had occurred at the end of the year and had applied the exposure to
interest rate risk to those financial instruments in existence at those
dates.

2016 &R

31.

MERBEEEERBKGE)

FEER

$EIE%$EEQEI$E??T¥%’X - AHEERER

FTRRITEFMERM TR o« AR REHEIRTT
ﬁ%?xﬁﬂﬁﬁ 5 Bl BRI B IS SRR I RE 23 -

$’§liﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ«%ﬁﬂY‘JZHEJJ&IE%"JT@,@
BERERMHABESMELNRSREN XA
% o ARENFAE TIRFEBHERGTSHEEIA
EIRAED A FEM R o AN - REEA B
FRAEART ) 2= R 7 2R [

20165128318  FEHEEEGREEE
E#418%(2015%F : 21%) * MEEFEEEG
REBHEEL82% (20155 : 79%) - BEIEEE
AT R & g 5 /ébﬂ AEELLB] - ARRK
TR EATE

T 45 F KL HL —EEDE -
BHMEERFTENERT  AEEBREE
201612 A31 A L FEMRE ISR
# A4 AR #1,650,0007T (20154 : AR
819,0007T) * ¥ AEBEIRAERMEMIBY (R
BEFBRINWESE - FRBREDI T IIIET
BHEREHENFERREAAEECANEEAE
HZELRITAEDANERRMONRREME
E o
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31. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

31. KEBREEEERBEX(E)

Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s purchase of products from the overseas suppliers is
denominated in US$ and Euro. Most of the Group’s assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB, except for certain items of cash
and cash equivalents, prepayments, other receivables, available-for-
sale investment and trade payables that are denominated in US$,
Euro and HKS.

The Group does not enter into any hedging transactions to manage
the potential fluctuation in foreign currencies. Management
monitors the Group's foreign currency exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure when the need arises.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 5.0% change
in RMB against US$, Euro and HK$. The 5.0% is the rate used when
reporting currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in the foreign currency rate. The sensitivity analyses of
the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of each
reporting period have been determined based on the adjustment
of translation of the monetary assets and liabilities at the end of
each reporting period for a 5.0% change in RMB against US$, Euro
and HKS$, respectively, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax for the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015 (due to changes in the fair value of cash and cash equivalents,
prepayments, other receivables, available-for-sale investments and
trade payables denominated in US$, Euro and HK$):

SN LB

REE B BSMLE R B Em AT REUTE
B - AREABNEENABAARKEE @ H
AT - BT TRt ENRE MRS EEY
ENFOR - R RWEOR - IHEERERES
BN RIBE A TRA R -

AREEE R SAERIEPER F A B IR ) INE
KE o EREGERAKREIINERR - LKER
HEREREIHMERINERL

TRIRARBRZET « BUT KRB JTiE K&
5.0%HEREE - 5.0% IRBREEEIEAE R
MONERBRFTALLR - AEEEBYH A E A fER
BB RS o NEERS WS BREE RINER,
SEBEDN - TIIRIBEA Rt EE2RIGTE
RIERT ARERZET  BUTRBCIERE
F5.0% D RIARSHRERRELEEREFER
HEHAREENE T 20165 20155128311
LEFERBANRNAOFEETE(BRUET - &
TEBTHENE S RESEEY - BNFOE -
AR - AT ERE R E SR FIEN
NEEZEE)

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT
Increase/(decrease) in profit before tax BB FE (L)
If RMB weakens against US$, Euro and HK$ MAERKEZET BTk
BIizE 8,719 (2,592)
If RMB strengthens against US$, Euro and HK$ AR H 32T« Btk
BITAE (8,719) 2,592
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31. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
Credit risk
Substantial amounts of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
and time deposits are held in major reputable financial institutions
located in Mainland China, which management believes are of high
credit quality. The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise trade and bills receivables, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss classified as held for trading, available-
for-sale investment and other receivables, arises from default of
the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments. The Group has no other financial
assets which carry significant exposure to credit risk.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy customers
with no requirement for collateral. It is the Group’s policy that except
for certain customers which are granted credit term ranging from
30 days to 60 days, other customers should make full prepayment
either in cash or bank accepted bills receivable. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and senior
management of the Company keeps reviewing and assessing the
creditworthiness of the Group’s existing customers on an ongoing
basis. The Group’s exposure to credit risk is also influenced by the
individual characteristics of each customer and default risk of the
industry in which customers operate. As the Group's exposure to
credit risk spreads over a diversified portfolio of customers, there is
no significant concentration of credit risk.

In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its exposure to a shortage of funds by
considering the maturity of both its financial liabilities and financial
assets and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of

funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank loans
and its own funding sources.

2016 &R
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31. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

31. MBRABREEEERBEE)

REEERERE(E)
UTRAEEE R A ERREBRERA LR
BRAFROBIBBER :

2016

Less than 3to
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
REXRE PR=ER ==+={EA wEm
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AR%®TR AR%®TR AR¥Tx
Interest-bearing bank loans STERITER - 10,092 158,623 168,715
Trade payables B 5 e 5RIA - 45,832 - 45,832
Other payables H b pE 3R 926 2,755 54,362 58,043
926 58,679 212,985 272,590

2015

Less than 3to
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
RERE LR=@EA ==+=f@A4 “aTE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARBTRT ARBTT AREBTET
Interest-bearing bank loans FHRIRITER - 17,773 67,153 84,926
Trade payables B SN FIA - 62,793 - 62,793
Other payables HAGFE R IE 697 2,728 51,349 54,774
697 83,294 118,502 202,493
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31. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
Fair values
Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time and are
based on relevant market information and information about the
financial instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature
and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgement
and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in
assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash deposits and interest-
bearing bank loans approximated to their fair values based on the
prevailing borrowing rates available for deposits and loans with
similar terms and maturities during the reporting period.

The fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss classified as held for trading are estimated based on valuation
techniques. The model incorporate observable inputs of certain
foreign exchange rates and risk-free interest rates. The carrying
amounts of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
classified as held for trading are the same as their fair values. The fair
value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss classified as held for trading measured
at fair value required observable inputs (Level 2) as of 31 December
2016 (2015: Not applicable).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other financial instruments
approximated to their fair values due to the short term to maturity at
the end of the reporting period.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders or raise new capital from its investors.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing financial risk during the year.

2016 &R
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31. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 31.

Policies (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group is currently funding its capital expenditure through
internal generated funds from its operations, proceeds from the
Listing and new bank borrowings. The Group monitors capital
using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity plus
net debt. The Group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio between
10% and 30% over the long term. Net debt is defined as interest-
bearing bank loans, net of cash and cash equivalents. Equity includes

MERBEEEERBKGE)

BAREHE (&)

AEERNBREEMSANLES - EWAAER
BRFIERITEERMNEEAHAY - XEEFA
BELX(BEFEREREERNAETFR)E
TEAK - NEBMBIR A A B ERHFT
10%E30% 2 E - BEFREIEFERITETH
ReRRSEEY - R RIETARES ARN

e IR - SRR BRI

equity attributable to the owners of the parent and non-controlling T
interests. The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
Interest-bearing bank loans sTEIRITER 165,000 81,915
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReRBEERBY (102,050) (38,138)
Net debt BRFE 62,950 43,777
Equity g% 457,275 193,554
Equity and net debt kB EFE 520,225 237,331
Gearing ratio BELE 12.1% 18.4%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

32. Statement of Financial Position of the Company  32. &2 B &R R &K
BEAARRBNHRE RNV BRARER DT -

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RHE AR RIRE 306 306
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Prepayments FEfS IR 313 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSH B A RIFIE 259,242 14,941
Cash and cash equivalents RekBFEEED 15,908 =
Total current assets REBEEHAE 275,463 14,941
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Other payables E e~ FRIE 61 1,300
Amounts due to a subsidiary A —RME A RRIE 3,618 =
Total current liabilities FEEERE 3,679 1,300
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 271,784 13,641
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BWEEBRBER 272,090 13,947
Net assets EEFE 272,090 13,947
EQUITY s
Issued capital BTN 130 95
Reserves (note) A EICES) 271,960 13,852
Total equity ERBE 272,090 13,947
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31 December 2016 2016412 H31H

32. Statement of Financial Position of the Company 32. XA TR TEK(E)
(Continued)

Note: Vo=
The movements in the Company’s reserves are as follows: RNATEEEET -
Retained
Share Share earnings/
premium option (Accumulated
account reserve losses) Total
RERA,
IR AP R E R BRERE (REER) st
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETTT ARETTT AREEFTT ARETT
At 1 January 2015 720151 A18 - - - -
Issue of new shares BITHR 14,533 = = 14,533
Loss and total comprehensive loss FREEN
for the year 2HEEEEE 14,533 = (681) (681)

At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 72015912 A31H &

201651 A1H 14,533 — (681) 13,852
Issue of new shares (note 24 (a)) BATHR (Mfat24(a) 267,578 - - 267,578
Issue of new shares (note 24 (a)) BITHRY (A1aE24(a)) 10,184 - - 10,184
Share issue expenses RN BT (28,853) = = (28,853)
Interim 2016 dividend declared (note 10) FIk20165FFHIAL B
(Hiz£10) (4,555) - - (4,555)
Equity-settled share option AR S E MBIk
Arrangement (note 25) T (B1aE25) = 995 = 995
Profit and total comprehensive Income FE R K
for the year ZHEB AL = = 12,759 12,759
At 31 December 2016 M2016512A318 258,887 995 12,078 271,960
33. Approval of the Financial Statements 33. MAEMBERK
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by WG ARER2017F3 27 HEESSHERF
the board of directors on 27 March 2017. REFZ o
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Definitions

" affiliate”
[EsE AL

"AGM"
[RRBFAR ]

“Articles” or “Articles of Association”

[ARRY ekl AE A= A2 4RA

“Board”

[E%g]

“Bruschettini”
[ B A

“Cayman Companies Law”

[R2ESAEE]

"CG Code”
[EEEAFA]

“Chengdu Hengsheng Ziguang”
e ERE S

“Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical”
[P B 2 B B |

“China” or “the PRC”
[HE

“"Company” or “our Company” or

“the Company”
[ARAE ]

2016 &R

any other person, directly or indirectly, controlling or controlled by or under direct
or indirect common control with such specified person

B MR RIE A TR A B s MR sk BR F A T B R E R A
S EEM AL

annual general meeting of the company

RARIBRBFRE

the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time),
conditionally adopted on 1 February 2016
AAER20165F2 A1 BB R ERMR BB ERZ MR (K TEHERT)

Board of Directors

=g

Bruschettini S.r.l., a limited company incorporated in the Italian Republic

BHDBAZER - REANAMBEZEMAINERAF

the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of
1961), as amended or supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
FEHEEME22E (1961 F FE35EM) A RVE(2013FE5TM) » K RKREET
Sk oS A Bt 5 g2k

Corporate Governance Code
PEERFA

Chengdu Hengsheng Ziguang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a limited liability company
incorporated in the PRC on 4 March 2015, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

PEMER R BERMAREERR - KN2015F3 4B EPEFEMKZHBR
NAE REARRZEZEMEAR

Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a limited liability company incorporated
in the PRC on 26 February 2014, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

PR EBERI A B SR M AR EE AR - K201452 A26 A ER B M I AR A
A REARAIZZEWME AT

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this prospectus,
Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan

hEARKANE - AERETTEEEE  RFIFITRERSE

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (B 712558 26472 jg A PR /A &), an exempted
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 16 March
2015

BRI B R BR AR - R2015F3 16 AEM S A ST M R ERHRE B R

A A]

EMABEERRERAT
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Definitions (Continued)
Ex(E)

“Controlling Shareholders”

[ =R AR

“Director(s)”

(%]

“Foscama”

Eitig st

"Group”, "our Group”, “the Group”,

" non

we"”, "us”, or “our”

[ARSE ] - [3RAPI Ikl ey )

" HK$”
[l

"HKSE"
[ BBRE P

“Hong Kong”
(&%

“Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar”

[FERFERLIER]

“Human Albumin Solution”

[ AMBAZERESHR]
"IFRS”
[ B B 75 s e 22 R |

“Institute of Chinese Medical Sciences”

[ e B eh B8 72k

1 74 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
o o
O o)o

N

Mr. Huang and Risun
454 KRisun

the director(s) of the Company
RNRARES

Biomedica Foscama Group S.p.A., a limited company incorporated in the Italian
Republic
Biomedica Foscama Group S.p.A. * IREAFIHFEE MBI BR A A

our Company and our subsidiaries and, in respect of the period before we became
the holding company of our present subsidiaries, the businesses operated by such
subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be)
RRATREMBIME R FAR(GERMKRBEEWNE R R ZZER QA ATE BB
= )AEREMTE R RIS AT & (R IERME ) L8 T

Hong Kong Dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BT BEEEEHR

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEMARHMBRAT]

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
R EEB R RTER R

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

BFERRBLFELARAT

refers to Octapharma’s human albumin solution 20% (containing 200 grammes
of total protein per litre) and human albumin solution 25% (containing 250
grammes of total protein per litre). The term Human Albumin Solution refers to
both products or either one of them as the context requires

BRI EEN20% AMBERTFR(BASHEEH2005%) R25% AMH
EREFR(EAERED25057R) - AMAEH SRR TMEERIEF &
(BFXE)

International Accounting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards,
amendments and the related interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board

B g ERE e mimr BN e s ER - BRMGSHmE 2R - B5] MR E

the Institute of Chinese Materia Medica, China Academy of Chinese Medical

Sciences (e B 887} 885 oh BEI 0 )
o B BT R o BE
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Definitions (Continued)

Bx=E&)
“Linzhi Ziguang” Xizang Linzhi Ziguang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (FEIME XN EEAR IR
[PREEE ] 7)), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC on 17 November 2014, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
PR RN BEESREMRA - R2014F11 A178EFEFMRAIHNERA
Al BAARRZEZENB AR
“Listing” the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the HKSE
[ ] BB A ER BT
“Listing Rules” the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE, as amended or
[ LAl supplemented from time to time
BB MESF EWRE - K TRHERI ST
“Main Board” Main Board of the HKSE
[E] HBHEA PR
“Medochemie” Medochemie Ltd., A limited liability company incorporated in the Republic of
[HEHZE] Cyprus and an Independent Third Party
Medochemie Ltd. * REFBEITEMBEFMAINOERAR] » BE=F
“MPCM” refers to marketing, promotion and channel management for the sale and
[  EENEBEEE promotion of pharmaceutical products for pharmaceutical manufacturers
REBELERHE MEHEMETNEN  HERREER
“Mr. Huang” Mr. Huang Xiangbin (Z£#2), our Chairman, Executive Director, Chief Executive
[EFLE] Officer and one of our Controlling Shareholders
WAL - B ERF  PUTESE - (TBHREGRIERRR 2 —
"Octapharma” Octapharma AG, a corporation limited by shares incorporated in the Swiss
[ DTS Confederation
Octapharma AG * P B F e B S BU AR B BR A 7]
“Prospectus” the prospectus issued by the Company dated 29 February 2016
B | RRAR2016562 4298 FIBMBRE
"Reporting Period” the financial year ended 31 December 2016
[$REH HE2016F12A31 B IEHMRFE
“Risun” Risun Investments Limited, a limited company incorporated under the laws of BVI
[Risun ] on 16 January 2015, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. Huang
Risun Investments Limited * 74201551 16 A - RE# R R B S L AR
N REAEREHENNEAR]
“RMB” Renminbi Yuan, the lawful currency of China
[ARE] ARETT - HEDEEEH
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Definitions (Continued)
Ex(E)

"SFO"
[ &5 M S {5 |

“Share(s)”
[ A%

“Shareholder(s)”
i

“Share Option Scheme”

[FERtEat 8]

“Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals”
[70)1] SR A %

“Sinco Biotechnology”

[ ERIA LRI
“U.S. dollars” or “US$"
E

“Vast Surplus”
M52 ]

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended or supplemented from time to time
EEEDIESN BB F RPEERD - ETRERISET

ordinary share(s) in the capital of the Company with nominal value of HK$0.0001
each
AR AR AN S AR TE B0.000 18 TTH E AR

holder(s) of Shares
[ASEST=DN

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by our Company on 1 February
2016, the principal terms of which are summarised in “Statutory and General
Information — D. Other Information — 1 Share Option Scheme” in Appendix VII
to the Prospectus

RAFR20169F2 A1 BB GRH RN BIRE 8] - B 2R BAREH
BENEER—MER —D. HER — 1 BAETE]

Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd (P0) || BRI 22 H R F (LA F]), a limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC on 1 April 2011
PO ERIREZEBR BT AR - R2011F4 R 1 BERBIEMKZBBR AR

Sichuan Sinco Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (P0)I|ERIZ A YR AR A ), a limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC on 25 November 2013
POl ERER AR ER AR - R2013F11 A25BEFBIFMA AR AR

U.S. dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America
EHRERBEETEEEET

Vast Surplus Corporation Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong on 6 October 2004 and wholly-owned by Mr. Huang Xiangbin
IERBERRIRF - R2004F10 A6 R EBEBEMKZHNBRAR - HEFWEES
BHE

In this Annual Report, the terms “associate, ”, “close associate,” “connected
person,” “connected transaction,” “controlling shareholder,
connected person,” “subsidiary” and “substantial shareholder” shall have
the meanings given to such terms in the Listing Rules, unless the context
otherwise requires.

s s s

core

The English translation of the PRC entities, enterprises, nationals, facilities,
requlations in Chinese are translations of the Chinese names. To the
extent there is any inconsistency between the Chinese names of the PRC
entities, enterprises, nationals, facilities, requlations and their English
translations, the Chinese names shall prevail.

| SRR = n =
1 76 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited o
o o
O o)o
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BEA [FEAL] [FEXSZ] [EREKE] -
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